
COMMONWEAL TH OF KENTUCKY 

RECEIVED 
JUL 0 5 2017 

BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION PUBLIC SERVICE 
COMMISSION 

In the Matter of: 

The Application of Cumberland 
Falls Highway Water District for Approval of 
Financing and Issuance of a 
Certificate of Convenience and Necessity 

) Case No. 2017-00 
) 
) 
) 

APPLICATION 

Cumberland Falls Highway Water District (Cumberland Falls), by counsel, 

pursuant to KRS 278.020 and 278.300, petitions the Commission for an order approving 

the construction of certain water facilities and the financing of the improvements through a 

loan from the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority. 

1. Cumberland Falls is a regulated utility district formed under KRS Chapter 74. It 

has no articles of incorporation. It provides water service to customers in Whitley County. 

Its contact information is: 

Cumberland Falls Water District 
Jimmy Creekmore, Chairman 
6726 Cumberland Falls Highway 
Corbin, KY 40701 
Email: cfhwd@yahoo.com 
Telephone: 606-528-0222 
Fax: 606-528-9875 

2. It currently serves approximately 3,200 customers in Whitley County. 

3. A description of its water system and its property stated at original cost by 

accounts is contained in its Annual Report, which is incorporated by reference - 807 KAR 
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5:001 (17)(1) and 807 KAR 5:001 (18)(b ). No material changes have occurred since the end 

of the latest 12 month period. 807 KAR 5:001(12). 

4. The proposed construction will include approximately 2,825 LF of 6-inch PVC 

waterline; approximately 32,545 LF of 4-inch PVC waterline; approximately 11,760 LF of 

3-inch PVC waterline; and associated appurtenances such as gate valves, blow-off 

assemblies, air release valves, residential meter settings, leak detection meters, etc. Some 

short segments of polyethylene pipe will be installed at directionally bored stream 

crossings and environmentally sensitive areas. The water mains will primarily be 

constructed along the county and state highway right-of-way's . The facilities have been 

designed to provide the customers with a minimum pressure of 30 psi at the meter at peak 

flow conditions. 

The new water line will replace approximately 39,300 linear feet of existing water 

distribution line that is undersized and/or has been prone to excessive leaking. Much of the 

line to be replaced was initially installed by private home owners 20 plus years ago to serve 

only the residences that existed at the time and was never intended to serve growth or be 

extended. This work should also lower CFHWD's water loss. 

Detailed description of the project is provided in Exhibit A (Copies of the Maps, 

Plans, Specifications and Bid Documents are provided as a separate document along with a 

petition for confidentiality). 807 KAR 5:001 (15(2)(a)(c)(d). 

5. The construction is in the public interest and is required to allow Cumberland 

Falls to continue to provide adequate service to additional residents of the county. Fifteen 

new customers will be served by the project. 



6. The total project cost is approximately $1 ,720,500. The District is financing the 

project with a $1 , 720,500 loan from the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority (KIA). See 

Exhibit D. 807 KAR 5:001(15(2)(e). 

7. Easements and rights of way have been acquired, see Exhibit B. The DOW 

approval letter is included in Exhibit B. 

8. This service will not compete with any other utility in the area. 

9. The proposed project, identified in Exhibit A, is scheduled to begin construction 

August 15, 2017 or upon PSC approval and be completed by March 13, 2018. Bid 

information is included with Exhibit B. Bids valid for 90 days were opened June 1, and 

the contract awarded June 19. 

10. No new franchises are required. The DOW and encroachment permits are 

attached as Exhibit B. 807 KAR 5:001(20(b). 

11 . Construction descriptions are in Exhibit A and Bid Documents, Exhibit F. Facts 

relied on to justify the public need are included in the project descriptions in Exhibit A and 

the Final Engineering Report, Exhibit C. 

12. Maps of the area showing location of the proposed facilities are in Exhibit A. 

13. Estimated operating costs for operation and maintenance, depreciation and debt 

service after construction to the extent that there are any are shown in Exhibit E. 807 KAR 

5:001 (15)(2)(f). 

14. Bid tabulations are provided in Exhibit F. 

15. A full description of the route, location of the project, description of 

construction and related information is in Exhibits A and C. 



16. The start date for construction; proposed in-service date; and total estimated 

cost of construction at completion are included in Exhibit A. 

17. No rate adjustment is being proposed. 

18. The following information is provided in response to 807 KAR 5:001 (14)(2): 

a. Articles of Incorporation - None. Cumberland Falls is a statutorily created 

water district under KRS Chapter 74; 

19. The following information is supplied pursuant to 807 KAR 5:001 (9): 

a. Facts relied upon to show that the application is in the public interest: See 

Exhibits A and C. 

20. The following information is provided as required by 807 KAR 5:001 (17): 

a. A general description of the property is contained in the Annual Report. 

The 2016 Report and audited financial information is the latest available from the District. 

b. No stock is to be issued; No bonds are to be issued in this case; 

c. There is no refunding or refinancing; 

d. The proceeds of the KIA financing are to construct the property described 

in Exhibits A and D. 

e. The par value, expenses, use of proceeds, interest rates and other 

information is not applicable because no bonds are being issued. 

21. The following exhibits are provided pursuant to 807 KAR 5:001 (18)(2): 

a. There are no trust deeds. All notes, indebtedness and mortgages are 

included in Exhibits G and H. 

b. No property is to be acquired. 807 KAR 5:001(18)(2)(c). 

22. The following information is provided pursuant to 807 KAR 5:001(12)(2): 



a. No stock is authorized. 

b. No stock is issued. 

c. There are no stock preferences. 

d. Mortgages are listed in Exhibit G. 

e. Bonds are listed in Exhibit H. 

f. Notes are listed in Exhibit G. 

g. Other indebtedness is listed in Exhibit G. 

h. No dividends have been paid. 

i. Current balance sheet and income statement are attached as Exhibit G. 

23. Plant additions will be classified according to USoA "Water Utility Plant 

Accounts": 331. 

24. The Kentucky Debt Officer has been notified of the KIA loan. See Exhibit 

D. 807 KAR 5:001(18)(g). 

25 . A deviation pursuant to 807 KAR 5:001(22) is requested for use of financial 

information greater than 90 days old and for any other filing requirement not essential for 

the review and approval of the application. 

For these reasons, Cumberland Falls requests an order approving the financing and 

the certificate and other authorizations that may be req::~· ed~ Ji'~ 

J N. Hughes 
24 West Todd St. 

Frankfort, KY 40601 
(502) 227 7270 
jnhughes@. johnnhughespsc.com 

Attorney for Cumberland Falls 
Highway Water District 



AFFIDAVfT 

COMMONWEALTH OF KENTUCKY 

COUNTY OF WHITLEY 

Jimmy Creekmore, after being sworn, states that he is Chairman of Cumberland Falls 
Highway Water District, that he is authorized to file this application and the statements in the 
application are true and correct to the· best of his knowledge. 

3 r..!. 
Sworn, acknowledged and subsaibed before me the ..--day of July, 2017. 

~l/Jmnlm 
N ryPublic I 
Registration Number: 5'-/ I i 5 3 

My commission expires: £ ... 3 I - I 9 



COMMONWEAL TH OF KENTUCKY 

BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

In the Matter of: 

The Application of Cumberland Falls 
Highway Water District for Approval of 
Financing and Issuance of a 
Certificate of Convenience and Necessity 

) Case No. 2017-00 
) 
) 
) 

PETITION FOR CONFIDENTIALITY 

RECEIVED 
JUL 0 5 2017 

PUBLIC SERVICE 
COMMISSION 

Cumberland Falls Highway Water District (CFHWD) , by counsel , petitions the 

Commission ("Commission") , pursuant to 807 KAR 5:001, Section 13, and all other 

applicable law, for confidential treatment of the Engineering Plans, Diagrams and 

Drawings included in Exhibit A of the Application , which are provided in a separate 

packet. The information in those documents contains strategic analysis of the CFHWD 

distribution and transmission systems, including diagrams and maps of the system. 

CFHWD also requests that the PDF electronic copy be maintained as confidential. 

KRS Chapter 61 requires information filed with the Commission to be available 

for public inspection unless specifically exempted by statute. Exemptions from public 

disclosure of the information relevant to this petition are provided in KRS 61 .878(1 )(m) . 

Under the Kentucky Open Records Act, the Commission is entitled to withhold from 

public disclosure information disclosed to it to the extent that open disclosure would 

"have a reasonable likelihood of threatening the public safety by exposing a vulnerability 

in preventing , protecting against, mitigating , or responding to a terrorist act and limited 
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to : • • I 

(f) infrastructure records that expose a vulnerability referred to in this 

subparagraph through the disclosure of the location, configuration , or security of critical 

systems, including public utility critical systems. These critical systems shall include but 

not be limited to information technology, commun ications , electrical , fire suppression , 

ventilation, water, wastewater, sewage, and gas systems and ; 

(g) The following records when their disclosure will expose a vulnerability 

referred to in this subparagraph: detailed drawings, schematics, maps, or 

specifications of structural elements, floor plans, and operating, utility, or security 

systems of any building or facility owned , occupied , leased , or maintained by a public 

agency." 

This Commission has recognized that similar reports with diagrams and maps 

"are infrastructure records that disclose the location , configuration, or security of public 

utility systems" and therefore , should be treated as confidential. See Case No. 2014-

00166 In the Matter of 2104 Integrated Resource Plan of Big Rivers Electric 

Corporation, KY PSC Order, p. 7 (August 26, 2014) . 

 

The information contained in the specified documents provides detailed 

information about CFHWD's distribution system and the location of critical components ; 

as such, the disclosure of which could threaten the public safety generally and provide 

sensitive information relevant to the security against terroristic events. CFHWD petitions 

the Commission to classify as confidential and protect from public disclosure the 

requested report. Because of the nature of the documents, providing a redacted copy 



for public view would be uninformative and of no practicable value to anyone. CFHWD 

seeks a deviation pursuant 807 KAR 5:001 (22) to allow the entire documents to be 

considered redacted and an exemption from filing a partially redacted version of the 

documents for the public record . 

The information for which the Company is seeking confidential treatment is not 

disseminated within the Company except to those employees with a legitimate business 

need to know and act upon the information and is generally recognized as confidential 

and proprietary information in the industry. 

If the Commission disagrees with this request for confidential protection, CFHWD 

requests that it hold an evidentiary hearing (a) to protect the Company's due process 

rights and (b) to supply the Commission with a complete record to enable it to reach a 

decision with regard to this matter. Utility Regulatory Commission v. Kentucky Water 

Service Company, Inc., Ky. App. , 642 S.W.2d 591 , 592-94 (1982) . 

 

CFHWD requests that the information be kept confidential for an indefinite 

period . 

For these reasons , CFHWD petitions the Commission to treat as confidential , 

indefinitely, the information referenced in this petition in its entirety 

rJ•ll.~,/ 
John N. Hughes 
124 West Todd Street 
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601 
502-227-7270 
jnhughes@johnnhughespsc.com 
Attorney for Cumberland Falls 
Highway Water District 



Exhibits 

A) Plans and Specifications: Two (2) hard copies and one (1) PDF Disk 
Construction Required by Public Convenience or Necessity 

B) KDOW Authorization to Bid 
KDOW Construction Approval 
KY Transportation Encroachment Permits 
Whitley Co. Fiscal Court Right-of-Way Resolution 

C) Project Narrative 
Final Engineering Report 

D) Project Funding: 
KIA Conditional Commitment Letter 
KIA Board Meeting Minutes November 5, 2015 
KIA Loan Resolution 
KIA Time Extension Approval Letter 
KIA Funding Application 
KY Debt Officer Notification 

E) Estimated Cost of Operation 

F) Engineer's Letter of Recommendation 
Tabulation of Bids Received 
Estimated Project Costs (As-Bid Budget) 

G) 2016 Audit 
May 31 , 201 ?Financial Statement 

H) Existing Long Term Debt 

F:\PROJECTS\2006\2006234\psc submittal\PSC Material.doc 



EXHIBIT A 

ENGINEERING REPORT 

TWO PAPER COPIES AND ONE PDF DISK 
CONFIDENTIAL 

SPECIFICATIONS 

TWO PAPER COPIES AND ONE PDF DISK 



PUBLIC CONVENIENCE OR NECESSITY 

The Cumberland Falls Highway Water District (CFHWD) was originally formed to 
provide a safe, dependable supply of potable water to the citizens in the rural 
areas of Whitley County. Since its inception, the CFHWD has grown until it now 
serves more than 3,250 customers over a large portion of Whitley County. 
WCWD has nearly reached its goal of making treated water available to every 
citizen within its boundary, with only a few small and/or low population density 
areas left unserved. 

The proposed construction will include approximately 2,825 LF of 6-inch PVC 
waterline; approximately 32,545 LF of 4-inch PVC waterline; approximately 
11 , 760 LF of 3-inch PVC waterline; and associated appurtenances such as gate 
valves, blow-off assemblies, air release valves, residential meter settings, leak 
detection meters, etc. Some short segments of polyethylene pipe will be 
installed at directionally bored stream crossings and environmentally sensitive 
areas. The water mains will primarily be constructed along the county and state 
highway right-of-ways. The facilities have been designed to provide the 
customers with a minimum pressure of 30 psi at the meter at peak flow 
conditions. The construction is now scheduled to begin by August 15, 2017 and 
be completed by March 13, 2018. 

The new water line will replace approximately 39,300 linear feet of existing water 
distribution line that is undersized and/or has been prone to excessive leaking. 
Much of the line to be replaced was initially installed by private home owners 20 
plus years ago to serve only the residences that existed at the time and was 
never intended to serve growth or be extended . This work should also lower 
CFHWD's water loss. 

The project funding will also allow the District to purchase radio read meters to 
replace the last of the conventional meters in its distribution system and upgrade 
its SCADA system. These will enhance the overall efficiency of operation of the 
distribution system 

Approximately 15 new customers will be served by the project and approximately 
245 existing underserved customers will directly benefit from improved service 
and CFHWD's entire customer base will benefit financially from lower costs. The 
project will reduce purchased water costs by replacing existing leak prone lines; 
reduce maintenance costs resulting from frequent leak repairs; and reduce 
transportation/personnel costs associated with the monthly meter reading. It will 
also improve service to users on small undersized lines who experience 
significant pressure loss during times of peak system use and when leaks occur 
in the system. 

F:\PROJECTS\2006\2006234\psc submittal\Public Convience or Necessity.doc 



Exhibit B 

KY DOW Authorization to Bid 
KY DOW Construction Approval 

KY Transportation Cabinet Encroachment Permits 
and 

Whitley County Fiscal Court Right-of-Way Resolution 



MATTHEW G. B EVIN 

GoVERNOR 
CHARLES G. S NAVELY 

SECRETARY 

E NERGY AN D E NVIRONMENT C ABINET 
D EPARTMENT FOR E NVIR ONMENTAL PROTECTION AARON B. K EATLEY 

CoMMISSIONER 

Jimmy Creekmore, Chajrman 
Cumberland Fal l Water District 
6926 Cumberland Fall Highway 
Corbin (Whitley), Kentucky 4070 I 

Dear Mr. Creekmore: 

300 SOWER BOU LEV ARD 

FRANKFORT,KENTUCKY40601 

June 28, 20 17 

Re: F l6-002 
Cumberland Falls Hwy Water District--34 132 
Acti vity ID: FGL20160007 
Project ame: Line Replacement & Reinforcement 
Authority to Award 

The Project Review and Cost Summary which you submjned for your Drinkjng Water Stale Revolving 
Fund project has been reviewed and is approved for selection of the lowest acceptable bidder: 

Contract Number: Contract # I 
Contractor's Name: Clay Pipeline, Inc. 
Amount of Contract: $779,543.50 

The documentation for Di sadvantaged Business Enterprise (DBE) pa11icipation will be approved under a 
separate leuer. 

The documentation for Davi -Bacon Contract Award information and Project Wage Rate will al o be 
approved eparately. 

You may award contracts and issue work orders to begin construction. Our approval of contracts is not 
required prior lo issuance of a work order. The executed comracl documents shall contain the contractor's 
payment and construction schedule . 

Payment cannot be proce ed unul the loan agreement has been executed by all parties. All payments 
must be requested by you and supported by adequate documentation of costs and labor compliance. 

You are remjnded that this project is subject to the requirements of Executive Order 11 246 which 
prohibits discrimination based on race, color, re ligion, sex, or national ori gin and requires contractors and 
subcontractors on federally assisted construction projects to take affirmat ive action lo employ women and 
rrunoriues and to ensure that discrimination does not occur. The Office of Federal Contract Compliance, U.S. 
Department of Labor, published addi tional Regulations, 4 1 CFR 60-4, in the April 7, 1978, Federal Regi ter, Vol. 
43, o . 68, to funher implement Title VI of the Civil Rjght Act of J 964, a amended, and Execuuve Order 
11246, as amended. As recipient, you are to ensure that contracts under thi loan are admjrustered so as to be in 
compliance with these requirement . 

Ken1uckyUnbridledSpiri1.com An Equal Opportunity Employer M/F/D 



All change orders must have the approval of this office. If another contract in which participation is 
desired will be Jet, a new Project Review and Cost Summary must be submitted. 

Your construction of this project is a step forward in protecting our valuable water resources. Do not 
hesitate to contact Joel Murphy, Project Manager, at (502) 782-7024. 

BG:jjm 

c: Kentucky Infrastructure Authority 
Ken Taylor, Kenvirons 
Timothy Schwendeman, Cumberland Valley ADD 

Sincerely, 

~J' 
for Buddy Griffin, Supervisor 
SRF & SP AP Section 
Water Infrastructure Branch 



MATTHEW G. BEVIN 
GoVERNOR 

CHARLESG. SNAVELY 
S ECRETARY 

ENE RGY AND E NVIRO NMENT CABINET 
D EPARTMENT FOR ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AARO N B. K EATLEY 

CoMMISSIONER 

Mr. Howard Mose 
Cumberland Falls Water District 
6926 Cumerland Falls Hwy 
Corbin. KY 4070 I 

Dear Mr. Mose : 

300 SOWER B OU LEV ARD 

FRANKFORT. K ENTUCKY 4060 I 

May 11 , 20 17 

RE: C FHWD Line Replacement and 
Reinforcement Project 
F l 6-002 
Whitley County, KY 
Cumberland Falls Hwy Water District 
AI #: 34 132, FGL20 160005 

The Kentucky Division of Water (DOW) has reviewed for completeness and adequacy the 
construc tion p lan and specifications submitted for the above referenced conu·act(s). The DOW has 
previously granted technical approval on October 14, 20 16. The plan consist of approximately 2,825 
linear feet of 6 inch PVC, 380 linear feet of 6-inch PE, 33,780 linear feet of 4 inch PVC, and 10,205 
linear feet of 3 inch PVC water line. The approval conditions and a Ii t of eligible/ ineligible item are 
enclosed. Please note that ine lig ible items cannot be funded u ing State Revolving Fund (SRF) 
monies, and must be paid by other funding ources. 

We have previously sent one (1) et of approved plans and pecification . An identical set 
sho uld be made available at the project s ite at all times. If modi fications are made to these plans and 
specifications before bidding, two (2) complete sets of as-bid plan and specifications must be 
ubmitted to the DOW for approval. A second DOW constructio n approval mu t be i sued by separate 

corre pondence before proceeding with adve11i ing for bid . Any red line change that were made by 
DOW personnel on the approved plans shall be incorporated into the bid e t plan unless an alternative 
is approved. 

You may now advert ise for bids on the con tructio n of thi project. In addition to other 
notifications, th i project mu t be advert i ed in the new paper of the largest daily circulation in the 
project area. 

You are cautioned not to adve11ise un less you have a proper wage decision. The Federal Davis­
Bacon wage rate are applicable for this project. Plea e contact all other funding ources for their 
requirements pertaining to federa l wage rate . 

Ken1uckyUnbridledSpiri1.com An Equal Opponunity Employer M/F/D 



CFHWD Line Replacement and Reinforcement Project 
Fl6-002 
Whitley County, KY 
Cumberland Falls Hwy Water District 
AI#: 34132, FGL20160005 
Page 2 of 3 

You are reminded that the construction contracts are subject to the equal employment 
opportunity requirements contained in Executive Order 11246. Equal employment opportunity 
affirmative action by the prime contractors and all subcontractors is mandated throughout the duration 
of the contract. Documentation of efforts to comply with Executive Order 11246, Equal Employment 
Opportunity is required to be kept by the borrower. 

Review the attached Project Review and Cost Summary form for details of the information to 
be collected and retained in your files or to be submitted to DOW for review and approval. This fo1m 
must be completed, signed by the recipient, and with the necessary information be then forwarded to 
the DOW. This signature will certify that all the information to be retained by the recipient has been 
secured and is available for review by the Division at the pre-construction conference. The required 
information must be approved by the DOW before executing any contracts. 

Along with the Project Review and Cost Summary form, the following items must be 
submitted to the DOW for review and approval before executing any contracts: 

• The bid advertisement 
• Revised Project Budget 
• Certified bid tabulation 
• Documentation of compliance with DBE Good Faith Effort in accordance with 40 CFR 

33.301 

These items will be reviewed as a pa1t of the Authority to Award process. The DOW will 
authorize you to award the contracts once these documents are approved 

After the Notice to Proceed is signed, the DOW will need a copy of the executed contract 
documents, including plans and specifications. 

Changes orders will require approval from the DOW before payment can be authorized from 
the State Revolving Fund. Submission of plans and specifications may be required for change order 
work. 

Upon completion of the project, as-built drawings shall be provided to the DOW. As-builts 
shall be stamped, signed and dated by a professional engineer. A written certification stating that the 
project was constructed according to the approved plans shall be provided to the DOW by a 
professional engineer. 

The previously issued construction permit has been issued under the prov1s10ns of KRS 
Chapter 224 and the regulations promulgated pursuant thereto. Issoance of this approval does not 
relieve the applicant from the responsibility of obtaining any other approvals, permits or licenses 
required by this Cabinet and other state, federal and local agencies. 



CFHWD Line Replacement and Reinforcement Project 
Fl6-002 
Whitley County, KY 
Cumberland Falls Hwy Water District 
AI#: 34132, FGL20160005 
Page 3 of3 

You are cautioned that the advertisement and award of this contract will be subject to the laws 
and regulations that govern the State Revolving Fund (SRF) and to the conditions of your loan 
agreement. If we can be of further assistance, please call Daniel Kulik, Project Engineer, at (502) 782-
6998. 

TH:DK 
Enclosures 

Eligible List, Ineligible List, Approval Conditions 
Project Review and Cost Summary Form 
1 set plans and specification 

C: Kenvirons , Inc. 
Kentucky Infrastructure Authority 
Cabinet for Economic Development 
Whitley County Health Department 
Division of Plumbing 

Si~ftd-
TeITy Humphries, P.E. 
Supervisor, Engineering Section 
Water Infrastructure Branch 
Division of Water 



F16-002 
Cumberland Falls Water District 

SRF ELIGIBLE ITEMS: 

Contract: The plans consist of approximately 2,825 linear feet of 6 inch PVC, 380 linear feet of 6-inch 
PE, 33,780 linear feet of 4 inch PVC, and 10,205 linear feet of 3 inch PVC water line. 

SRF INELIGIBLE ITEMS: 

NA 

APPROVAL CONDITIONS: 
1. Provide Clear Site Certificates 
2. Complete and return the Project Review and Cost Summary Form. 



MAITHEW G. BEVIN 
G OVERNOR 

'•' ,, 

.ftJ .. ' ·v · 
CHARLES G. SNAVELY 

S ECRETARY 

ENERGY AND ENVIRONMENT CABINET 

Department for Environmental Protection Aaron B. Keatley 
COMMISSIONER 

300 SOWER BOULEY ARD 

FRANKFORT, KENTUCKY 40601 

October 14, 2016 
Mr. Howard Moses 
Cumberland Falls Hwy Water District 
6926 Cumberland Hwy 
Corbin, KY 40701 

Dear Mr. Moses: 

RE: CFHWD Line Replacement and 
Reinforcement Project 
Cumberland Falls Hwy Water District 
AI# 34132, APE20160001 
PWSID # 1180093-16-001 
Whitley County, KY 

We have reviewed the plans and specifications for the above referenced project. The plans include the 
construction of approximately 2,825 linear feet of 6 inch PVC, 380 linear feet of 6-inch PE, 33,780 linear feet of 4 
inch PVC, and 10,205 linear feet of 3 inch PVC water line. This is to advise that plans and specifications for the 
above referenced project are APPROVED with respect to sanitary features of design, as of this date with the 
requirements contained in the attached construction permit. 

Based on DOW records, this project is being funded by a State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan. Therefore, 
this approval is for the technical aspects of the project only. Currently, an Environmental Review related to 
your funding application is under review. Therefore, you are NOT authorized to advertise for bids at this 
time. Should you choose to proceed with the bidding and award a contract prior to DOW approval, this 
will be at your own risk and payment from the SRF program is not guaranteed 

If you have any questions concerning this project, please contact Daniel Kulik at 502-782-6998. 

TH:DK 
Enclosures 
C: Kenvirons Inc 

Whitley County Health Department 
Public Service Commission 
Division of Plumbing 

KentuckyUnbridledSpirit.com 

Sin~4d-

Terry Humphries , P.E. 
Supervisor, Engineering Section 
Water Infrastructure Branch 
Division of Water 

An Equal Opportunity Employer M/F/D 



Distribution-Major Construction 
Cumberland Falls Hwy Water District 

Facility Requirements 

Activity ID No.:APE20160001 

Page 1 of5 

PORT0000000021 (Water Line) 2,825 linear feet of 6 inch PVC, 380 linear feet of 6 inch PE, 33,780 linear feet of 4 inch PVC, and 10,205 linear feet of 
3 inch PVC water line: 

Narrative Requirements: 

Condition 
No. 

T-1 

T-2 

T-3 

T-4 

T-5 

T-6 

T-7 

T-8 

T-9 

T-10 

T-11 

Condition 

Construction of this project shall not result in the water system's inability to supply consistent water service in compliance with 401KAR8:010 through 8:600. [401 
KAR 8: I 00 Section 5] 

The public water system shall not implement a change to the approved plans without the prior written approval of the cabinet. [ 40 I KAR 8: I 00 Section 4(3)] 

A proposed change to the approved plans affecting sanitary features of design shall be submitted to the cabinet for approval in accordance with Section 2 of this 
administrative regulation. [401 KAR 8: 100 Section 4(2)] 

During construction, a set of approved plans and specifications shall be available at the job site. Construction shall be performed in accordance with the approved plans 
and specifications. [ 401 KAR 8: 100 Section 3(1 )] 

Unless construction begins within two (2) years from the date of approval of the final plans and specifications, the approval shall expire. [401 KAR 8: JOO Section 3(3)] 

Upon completion of construction, a professional engineer shall certify in writing that the project has been completed in accordance with the approved plans and 
specifications. [401 KAR 8: 100 Section 4(1)] 

The system shall be designed to maintain a minimum pressure of 20 psi at ground level at all points in the distribution system under all conditions of flow . 
[Recommended Standards for Water Works 8.2. J, Drinking Water General Design Criteria IV. I .a] 

Water lines should be hydraulically capable of a flow velocity of 2.5 ft/s while maintaining a pressure of at least 20 psi . [Drinking Water General Design Criteria IV. l.b] 

The normal working pressure in the distribution system at the service connection shall not be less than 30 psi under peak demand flow conditions. Peak demand is 
defined as the maximum customer water usage rate, expressed in gallons per minute (gpm), in the pressure zone of interest during a 24 hour (diurnal) time period. 
[Drinking Water General Design Criteria IV. l .d] 

When static pressure exceeds 150 psi, pressure reducing devices shall be provided on mains or as part of the meter setting on individual service lines in the distribution 
system. [Drinking Water General Design Criteria IV. l .c] 

The minimum size of water main in the distribution system where fire protection is not to be provided should be a minimum of three (3) inch diameter. Any departure 
from minimum requirements shall be justified by hydraulic analysis and future water use, and can be considered only in special circumstances. [Recommended 
Standards for Water Works 8.2.2, Drinking Water General Design Criteria IV.2 .b] · 



Distribution-Major Construction 
Cumberland Falls Hwy Water District 

Facility Requirements 

Activity ID No.:APE20160001 

Page 2 of5 

PORT0000000021 (Water Line) 2,825 linear feet of 6 inch PVC, 380 linear feet of 6 inch PE, 33,780 linear feet of 4 inch PVC, and 10,205 linear feet of 
3 inch PVC water line: 

Narrative Requirements: 

Condition 
No. 

T-12 

T- 13 

T-14 

T-15 

T-16 

T-17 

T-18 

T-19 

T-20 

T-21 

T-22 

T-23 

Condition 

Water mains not designed to cany fire-flows shall not have fire hydrants connected to them. [Recommended Standards for Water Works 8.4.1.b) 

Flushing dev ices should be sized to provide flows which will give a velocity of at least 2.5 feet per second in the water main being flushed. [Recommended Standards 
for Water Works 8.2.4 .b, Recommended Standards for Water Works 8.4.1.b] 

No flushing device shall be directly connected to any sewer. [Recommended Standards for Water Works 8.2.4.b, Recommended Standards for Water Works 8.4.1.b) 

Pipe shall be constructed to a depth providing a minimum cover of 30 inches to top of pipe. [Drinking Water General Design Criteria IV .3 .a] 

Water mains shall be covered with sufficient earth or other insulation to prevent freezing. [Recommended Standards for Water Works 8.7) 

A continuous and uniform bedding shall be provided in the trench for all buried pipe. Backfill material shall be tamped in layers around the pipe and to a sufficient 
height above the pipe to adequately support and protect the pipe. Stones found in the trench shall be removed for a depth of at least six inches below the bottom of the 
pipe. [Recommended Standards for Water Works 8.7] 

Water line installation shall incorporate the provisions of the A WWA standards and/or manufacturer's recommended installation procedures . [Recommended Standards 
for Water Works 8.7) 

All materials used for the rehabilitation of water mains shall meet ANSI/NSF standards. [Recommended Standards for Water Works 8.1] 

Packing and jointing materials used in the joints of pipe shall meet the standards of A WWA and the reviewing authority. [Recommended Standards for Water Works 8.1] 

All tees, bends, plugs and hydrants shall be provided with reaction blocking, tie rods or joints designed to prevent movement. [Recommended Standards for Water 
Works 8.7) 

All materials including pipe, fittings, valves and fire hydrants shall confonn to the latest standards issued by the ASTM, AWWA and ANSI/NSF, where such standards 
ex ist, and be acceptable to the Division of Water. [Recommended Standards for Water Works 8.1) 

Water mains which have been used previously for conveying potable water may be reused provided they meet the above standards and have been restored practically to 
their original condition. [Recommended Standards for Water Works 8.1] 
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PORT0000000021 (Water Line) 2,825 linear feet of 6 inch PVC, 380 linear feet of 6 inch PE, 33, 780 linear feet of 4 inch PVC, and 10,205 linear feet of 
3 inch PVC water line: 

Narrative Requirements: 

Condition 
No. 

T-24 

T-25 

T-26 

T-27 

T-28 

T-29 

T-30 

T-31 

T-32 

T-33 

T-34 

Condition 

Manufacturer approved transition joints shall be used between dissimilar piping materials. [Recommended Standards for Water Works 8.1] 

Pipes and pipe fittings containing more than 8% lead shall not be used. All products shall comply with ANSI/NSF standards. [Recommended Standards for Water Works 
8.1] 

The minimum size of water main which provides for fire protection and serving fire hydrants shall be six?inch diameter. [Recommended Standards for Water Works 8.2, 
Drinking Water General Design Criteria IV.2.a] 

Gaskets containing lead shall not be used. Repairs to lead?joint pipe shall be made using alternative methods . [Recommended Standards for Water Works 8.1] 

Pipe materials shall be selected to protect against both internal and external pipe corrosion. [Recommended Standards for Water Works 8.1] 

Dead end mains shall be equipped with a means to provide adequate flushing. [Recommended Standards for Water Works 8.2] 

The hydrant lead shall be a minimum of six inches in diameter. Auxiliary valves shall be installed on all hydrant leads. [Recommended Standards for Water Works 8.4.3] 

A sufficient number of valves shall be provided on water mains to minimize inconvenience and sanitary hazards during repairs. [Recommended Standards for Water 
Works 8.3] 

Wherever possible, chambers, pits or manholes containing valves, blow?offs, meters, or other such appurtenances to a distribution system, shall not be located in areas 
subject to flooding or in areas of high groundwater. Such chambers or pits should drain to the ground surface, or to absorption pits underground. The chambers, pits and 
manholes shall not connect directly to any stonn drain or sanitary sewer. Blow?offs shall not connect directly to any stonn drain or sanitary sewer. [Recommended 
Standards for Water Works 8.6] 

At high points in water mains where air can accumulate provisions shall be made to remove the air by means of air relief valves. [Recommended Standards for Water 
Works 8.5.1] 

Automatic air relief valves shall not be used in situations where flooding of the manhole or chamber may occur. [Recommended Standards for Water Works 8.5. I] 



Distribution-Major Construction 
Cumberland Falls Hwy Water District 

Facility Requirements 

Activity ID No. :APE20160001 

Page 4 of 5 

PORT0000000021 (Water Line) 2,825 linear feet of 6 inch PVC, 380 linear feet of 6 inch PE, 33,780 linear feet of 4 inch PVC, and 10,205 linear feet of 
3 inch PVC water line: 

Narrative Requirements: 

Condition 
No. 

T-35 

T-36 

T-37 

T-38 

T-39 

T-40 

T-41 

T-42 

T-43 

T-44 

Condition 

The open end of an air relief pipe from automatic valves shall be extended to at least one foot above grade and provided with a screened, downward?facing elbow. 
[Recommended Standards for Water Works 8.5 .2.c] 

Discharge piping from air relief valves shall not connect directly to any storm drain , storm sewer, or sanitary sewer. [Recommended Standards for Water Works 8.5 .2.d] 

Water pipe shall be constructed with a lateral separation of IO feet or more from any gravity sanitary or combined sewer measured edge to edge where practical. If not 
practical a variance may be requested to allow the water pipe to be installed closer to the gravity sanitary or combined sewer provided the water pipe is laid in a separate 
trench or undisturbed shelf located on one side of the sewer with the bottom of the pipe at least 18 inches above the top of the gravity sanitary or combined sewer pipe. 
[Drinking Water General Design Criteria lV.3.b] 

Water lines crossing sanitary, combined or stom1 sewers shall be laid to provide a minimum vertical distance of 18 inches between the outside of the water main and the 
outside of the sanitary, combined or stonn sewer with preference to the water main located above the sanitary, combined or storm sewer. [Drinking Water General 
Design Criteria IV .3 .c] 

At crossings, one full length of water pipe shall be located so both joints will be as far from the sewer as possible. [Recommended Standards for Water Works 8.8.3.b] 

There shall be no connection between the distribution system and any pipes, pumps, hydrants, or tanks whereby unsafe water or other contaminating materials may be 
discharged or drawn into the system. [Recommended Standards for Water Works 8.10.1] 

Water utilities shall have a cross connection program conforming to 40 I KAR 8. [Recommended Standards for Water Works 8.10.1] 

Installed pipe shall be pressure tested and leakage tested in accordance with the appropriate AWWA Standards. [Recommended Standards for Water Works 8.7.6] 

New, cleaned and repaired water mains shall be disinfected in accordance with A WWA Standard C65 l. The specifications shall include detailed procedures for the 
adequate flushing, disinfection, and microbiological testing of all water mains. In an emergency or unusual situation, the disinfection procedure shal l be discussed with 
the Division of Water. [Recommended Standards for Water Works 8.7.7] 

A minimum cover of five feet shall be provided over pipe crossing underwater. [Recommended Standards for Water Works 8.9.2] 
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PORT0000000021 (Water Line) 2,825 linear feet of 6 inch PVC, 380 linear feet of 6 inch PE, 33, 780 linear feet of 4 inch PVC, and 10,205 linear feet of 
3 inch PVC water line: 

Narrative Requirements: 

Condition 
No. 

T-45 

T-46 

Condition 

Valves shall be provided at both ends of water crossings so that the section can be isolated for testing or repair; the valves shall be easi ly accessible, and not subject to 
flooding for pipes crossing underwater. [Recommended Standards for Water Works 8.9.2 .b] 

Permanent taps or other provisions to allow insertion of a small meter to determine leakage and obtain water samples on each side of the valve closest to the supply 
source for pipes crossing. [Recommended Standards for Water Works 8.9.2.c] 



Kentucky Transportation Cabinet 
Department of Highways 
Division of Maintenance 

Permits Branch 

ENCROACHMENT PERMIT 

KEPT No.: 11-2016-00139 

Pennlttee: Cumberland Falls Hwy. Water District 

Permit Type I Subtype: Utilities I Water 

Work Completion Date: 8126/2017 

$0.00 

$0.00 

$0.00 

This pennft has been: APPROVED~ DENIED D 

Joel Holcomb 011 Engineering Support - TEBM 

SIGNATURE TITLE 

8129/2016 

DATE 

TC 99-1 (B) 
0312016 

Page 1of1 

The TC 99-1{8), including the application TC-991(A) and all related and accompanying documents and 
drawings make up the permit. It is not a permit unless both the TC 99-1(A) and TC 99-1(8) are both present. 

Whitley - KY 90 36.845690 



Matthew G. Bevin 
Governor 

August 29, 2016 

COMMONWEAL TH OF KENTUCKY 
TRANSPORTATION CABINET 

Department of Highways, District 11 Office 
603 Railroad Avenue 

Manchester, Kentucky 40962 
(606) 598-2145 

www.transportation.ky.gov/ 

Cumberland Falls Hwy. Water District 
6926 Cumberland Falls Highway 
Corbin. Kentucky 40701 

Subject: Permit#: 11-2016-00139 
Pennit Type: Utilities - Water 
Approval 

Dear Applicant: 

Attached is your permit approval and documentation for the subject pennit. 

Greg Thomes 
Secretary 

Be advised that all work must be done in conformity with pennit and application conditions. If you 
have any questions, please contact the Permits Section at this office. · 

Sincerely, 

Joel Holcomb 
D 11 Engineering Support - TEBM 

Attachments 

An Equal Opportunity Em~oyer M/F/D 



NOTICE OF COMPLETION OF ENCROACHMENT PERMIT WORK 

PERMITEE 

Name: Cumberland Falls Hwy. Water District 
Contact Person: 
Address: 6926 Cumberland Falls Highway 
City: Corbin 
State: Kentucky 
Zip: 40701 
Telephone: (606) 528-0222 

PROJECT IDENTIFICATION 

Permit Number: 11-2016-00139 

I wish to notify the Department of Highways that the above mentioned permit work and any necessary 
right-of-way restoration have been completed and are ready for final inspection. 

Applicant 

Please return this form to the address below when work is completed and ready for final inspection. 

Please Return to: Permit Engineer 

Whitley Co- KY 90-Mp 7.1 

Department of Highways, District 11 Office 
603 Railroad Avenue 
Manchester, Kentucky 40962 
{606) 598-2145 
www.transportation.ky.gov/ 

Whitley - KY 90 36.845690 



Permittee Information 

Kentucky Transportation Cabinet 
Department of Highwavs 

Permits Branch 

APPLICATION FOR ENCROACHMENT PERMIT 

KYTC No. 

JC 99·1 (A) 
8/2012 

Pace 1of4 

1/-j/)/~ -4'J/.3'1 
Name Cumberland Falls Hwy. Water District Permit Information 

Address 6926 Cumberland Falls Highway Addtess 

City Corbin/Wiiiiamsburg 
- -
City Corbin State KY Zip 40701 

. 
State KV Zip 40701 County Whitley - .-... - --·· """ 

!;~~~~:·· 
.......... --··-· ....,..·--·--~--.--· ... -· .... ······-··- ·· ......... _,. ........ 

Phone# 506 528·0222 KY90 
Mile· 

7.10 j Li .. .. i.aa~ ~ Point 

Contact Les Moses longitude (X) ·84d 14' 46" - Y*Y. ;?'Y.~t:1#-
Phone 606 528·0222 Cell 606 344·3844 latitude (Y) 36d50' 44 .. 3L. ,YV'5&,~ 
Em.iii cfhwd@yahoo.com lttformarlon ~tow Jfll«J our by KYTC 

Contact 0Alr!Ught 0Entran<e 

Ph on~ Cell {2f'Utmt~ 00ther: _td,_75,-.. 
Em.all 

Otett 0Rlght ox.inc 

A«:es.s: 0fuf1 0 P3ttl31 0'bvP~rmit 

General Description of Work: 

MM 7 OS to MM 7 . 16~ lnstilltation of 3* Waterfine on North side of KY 90 and parallel. 

::::> 
Signature Date 

This Is itot .t pfft'nlt unless and untll the permltteefst AKeives iln approved TC 99·1(8) trocn ICYTC. This 1ppllutlon wlll become void 
If not approved by the canullatlon date. The canc:ellallon date will be one year from the dat• tho permlttci. \ubmltt their 
ac>plfation. 



Kentucky Transportation Cabinet 
Department of Highways 

Permits Branch 

APPUCA TtON FOR ENCROACHMENT PERMtT 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

lC 99·1 (AJ 
S/2011 

Page 2of 4 

1. Th' penn1t, including this applfc:nicn and all r~~tcd and ;,cccml).l~!ng document\ •nd dr.twittgs m;dting up the 

P4!rmit. rem.iins in effoct and iS bindlna upon the J\pptiant/Permittee. its wcce?Ssoti ;and ;migns, ;,s Iona as the 

cncroa<hment(sJ exists .\nd ;ilso until the permiuce Is flMllV rdlcvl!d by the Department of Highw.ays t•om au its 

oefla•tions. 

z. Applicant ~all meet .all requirements of the Oeiln WaU!f Act if the ptoject will di~turb o~ ilCrc or more. the 

.JPpllunt sti.11 obtain a ICPDES ICVR 10 Pettnit from the Kentucky OM~ of Water . .\It disturbed arcu shiill mecrt the 
requirements of the Depiftmcnt of Hl&hwolv'S Standard Sp«lfkatlons. Sections 212 and 2U. ;as amended. 

J:. INDEMNflY: 

A. PERFORMANCE BONO: The permittee sh.1 prawte to the Depanment a perlOfm.Jnce bond 

.xcording to the Petmits M~ttual, Sectio" PE·20J as t1 1u;ir.11ntec of c011for1n.1nce with the 
Department's Encroachment P~rmit rc:qulrcmenu. 

B. PAYMENT BONO: At the dlscret:on of the department, a payment bond w.11 be required of the 

permit tee to en54ite payment of fiquidated d.-imagM .J\r.e·ned to the petmluee. 

C. LIA81UTY INSURAHCE: lJabllity tnsuunce wlU be reqWed cf the permittee (in an amount apprOYed 

by the department» to cover alt 11.lbilitics .:1u0<iilted wlch the en<ro.ichmcnt. 

D. It stt.:il be the responsibifitv of the permittee. its ~uttc1~rs ~nd .uugns. to maintain all indemn•ties 
in full force ;ind effect unUI the permltt~ fs .tuChoriled to relelm: the Indemnity by the 
Oep~ment. 

4. A. copy of this .lpplleation and all related documents m41kln1 up the 'pprOYed permit will be arven to the applicant 
.ind ~•II ~ m;ide re;adily av;ai~btc: for tcvfew at lhe wort site at all tifM,. 

5. Perpetu;al ~lnttnllfl(t of the enctoadtment is the responsibility of the permltttt, Its SU(cessors ltnd u~ns. 

with t~ apptov.-il o' the Department..,, required, unlcu othet'Wisc \tated, 

&. P~rmit1ee, its succ~ws and a~signs, sh.l{I comply with and acrees to be bound by :he r~uite?mcnts .ll'ld terms 

of (al th•s application :ind all related documents m.tldng up the ;ipprovcd permit, ibJ by the Oep;mment' i Permits 

Manu.JI. and {cl by the M.inual on Uniform Traffic Control Oe\'lces, both manuals as revised to and in effect on the 
d.Jtc of iuuaru:e. of the ~rmlc, .aU of which cioc:uments .ire milde., IM~ thereof by this reference Compll:incc by the 

permlttee. its successors oltld ;migns. with wbscqucnt revisions to .sppllab&e pr1Wisions of ~Uter manu;al or thcr 
pol!cy of the Department ma\' be mi>de :a condition of Jowlna the enctoachment to ~slst under the l)\'!rmH. 

1. Pctmin~ aarces that this and anv ctncroachmcnt m.iy be ordered removed by the Oep.Jrtment at any timct, ind 

for any reilson, upon thirty days wrinco notice to the Ian known address of the appliQnt or to the addr~s .at the 

loc.Jtion of the cncro.tch~nt. The pernun~ <Jgrces thilt the cent rsf removing ~nd of restotlng the usod.lted right· 

of-way is the responsibifity of lhe petmittee. its ~ucctt'4tS and ilsslgns. 

a. Petmittee. its wcc~sors .and n\JaM, .lllfCe that if the Oep.Jnment determines th<at motet vchk:ul.lt safety 

dtflc.umcic~ de~op as i result of the instal~tion or use of the cncroadtment, the permitttt, its successors .ind 

assigns, shall provide ;and bear the c•pcnin to adjust. reroute, Cf reconstruct the faclllt s • .tnd/or add sign\, 

.1uxifiarv f;tnci, or attw!or cortocti~ ~•surll'S reasonably deemed n~cs:my by the Oep.lrtment within a r~ascn.a~ 
tune ;,fu~r tteeipt of a written notice of 5.UCh dcflciencv. fhe periOd within whkts such adjustments, rclacation1. 
additions, mcxtifiQtfon~. <ind/or oth~r co.-rectw~ meawres must bl! completed wifl be ~pccified in the notlec. 

9. Whc:rC? tr'1fflc sianats Jre requited as a condition of crantine the rcquem:d permit or are 1here.1fte< r~ulred to 
correct mottY vehicular wfcty dcflc icncic~. u determln4.>d by the Ocpanmoent, tnci coJts for ~gn~f equipment ;ind 
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inst.iU.ltlon(~) sh.lb~ borne by the permiuce, IU. succes.10rs .ind as$i&n$. .lnd/or the Dep;irtment in Its re.-soniblc 

disc~tion ilnd ontv in accordance wl1h trn: Ot~rtmcnt's current policy set forth in the Traffic Opcr;itions Manu.11 

.lod Permits Man~I. A.tty modiflc.ltions to the perml"ec's entrance ncceswry to ;accommod.ite \ign.lliJiation 

Cincludtna ne<es~ryeasement(s} on priv.lte propcrtvl ~hall be the r~om.ib,.lty of the permlttee, Its succuwn and 

aulgns, at no expense to the Dt!PJf1ment. 

10. The requested cncroxhment 'hall not lnfrincc on the frcnt.aac righu of"' abutllnl owner without the&' written 

consent as hereinafter described. Eich abutting OWf'et $hall t•l)f"ess their consent. which sh.ill be bfndiflg on their 

succasien .ind ;miens, by the wbmiss.lon of .i not.011lred sc.itemcnt ;n follows, ·1 iweJ. 

------------------------.,._. hereby con~nt to the gr.mtiog of t~ 
petmit request~ by the appliC.lnt ;along Route ------------' which permit daes affect front• 
richts .1lon1 mv (Ot.ir) adjacent re.:tl prOpc!fty... 81( sfgNture(st 

~ubicrlbff ind sworn by 

-~~------~-~------__.. onthhd~te _______ ~~---~-
11. The p"rmit, if 3pprolltd, is SCJbject to the acreement thilt it shill not Interfere with .\ny similar tights or perm1t(s) 

ptcviousfy gral\tcd to any other p;arty. c•cl'pt .lS otMfwiSC! provided by fo)W. 

12. Permitt~ ~all indudc docvment.iUon which describes the facilicies to~ conitrue1cd. PermiUee. its successors 

.ind .11'1'1&n~. ;agree' .is .J cond1tlcr'I of the &rilnting ot the permit to construct .11nd iNlnt.iln ¥n'f .lnd all pctmitted 

facilities or other encro.chments in strict ;accordance with the submitted and approved permit dotumcnt.ition al1d 

the policies and ptocedur.e1' of the ~p;a11ment. Permittee, its succeuofs and as~ns. sh.111 not use f.Jc.ilit ies 

.lu•hotized herein in any manner contrary to that pfe1Cnbed by the ;approved permit. Ontv normal usage! as 

contemplated by the parties and by this .ipplicabon .ind routine maintenance are authorized by trn: ~mit. 

U.Petmitr~. ils succcmors and .-iul1ns, at .111 times from the date pcrmitt~ WOtlc ls ccmmefl<~ until such time a 

.111 permitted facilities or other encr~hmcnts are removed ftom the tlght-of·wav and the richt-of·way restored, 
sh.an defend, protect, lndomnlfy and ~ Mrmltu the Department from ;my~ all 11.lbility cl~lms ;ind derf'!.lnds 

;arising out of the work, encr~hment, malntena,,ce. Of othl!f undcrtakin1 by the permlttee. lu successors and 

.1ulgns, related or undcnakcn pursuant to the gr;intcd p.."lmil. due to .:inv dJlmec:s xt or omission by the pcrmltttt, 

its servants. "'ICRtS, employeM. or contractors. This provision sh • not iflUf(! to the benefit of any third partv nor 

oper.1te to enJ.:uge any llab1lhy of the Department beyond that c•i•tms o>t common law or otherwise if this rl&ht to 

indemnity did not c•ist 

14.UCJOn a violation of .iny provision of the perm • ar othcrwi~c In its rc.:uonable dlsuetlon, the Oeparrment miy 
r~ulrc .iddition.11 iction by the permlttec, Its iucceuot~ ;md .u"1n~. up to and Including the: rcm0\'.11 of th~ 

enctOU(hment ~nd rescor.ition of the rlght·of·wav In the event addittonat actions required by the Dtp.;ar1~t under 

the permit .ire not undett.iken .:n 01dcrcd .lnd within .l reaionilble Hmc, the Dcp0>rtm1:nt moiv 111 lu disc:reUon c;iuse 

those or other additio~I cou«tlve .lCttons to be undertak~n ind the 0eCJ.1rtmcnt m;w and sh.lll re<OV€r the 

re.l~n.able costs of thos.e corrective .Jctlons from the permlttce. lb succ~i.~rs .lnd .lUigns. 

15.PermittC?e, it5 succcsiofs ;md assiens, ~h.111 use the tneroachment premi~ in compliance with .all rcquitements 

of fcdet";il l.lw and rcgul.>tion, lndue! lng those Jmpo~d pursutlnt to Title VI o1 the Cavil Right Att of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 

2000d ct seq} and the rci.tcd rcgu~tioni. of the US. Ocp.Jrtmcnt of rransportation in Title 49 C,F,R Part 21. alt as 

amended, 

16.Ptrtnitte~. its ~ucccssot~ ;and .lsslsns. ;,grcc th.1t If t~ Ocpartm~t determines it is. neccss.>ry for the faalltic' or 

other enaoachment authorized by the permit to be removed, relocated or reconstructed in connection with the 

t conitructtan, 1clo<:i>tlon or 1mpro~menc of .a highwa-v. the Oc!p;inment may rl!VOkc permission f« the 
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encroachment to rt!main under tht! ~rmlt Jnd ml)\' order its r~ovil, reloc.ation ot reconstruction by the permitttt. 

!'ts successors Jnd assigns, at the expense of thl! pl!l'mitt~. l!xcept wttcre the De~rtment Is required by QW to ~V 

.lny Of .ill of those costs. 

17.Permitttt a&'~ lh.1t the oauthorued perm ti' personal to the petmittec and shall rem.Un In effect untO such 
time .n (aJ the peuruuee's ri&hts to the adjolfl1ng real property to hive bcmefitted from the requested encro.ichmeftt 

h<ivl? been rclinqu~ed. (bl until all permit obllg.Jtlon~ h.lvc bttn .uwm~ by oappropriate suc:tt~JOrs and .1Uigns, 

and (c) unl~s and until ;i written reJe.-.se from permit obligations h;as been granted by the Dcpartmtnt. The permit 

.ind Its rcquireme-nts ~h.111 afso bend the re~I property 10 ha11e bcncflned from the requested cncro.J<hment to the 

extent permitted by l;aw. The permit and the!' related en<.roachment become the responsibility of the s.uc:cnie>t$ .lnd 
.nslgns or the per-mitt~ ~nd the wccessors and uslgns of each property owner benefiltlng from t"4! encro;achment. 

or the encro.achrnc!nt may not otherwise pcrmi~s.ibfy continue to be malnta ned on the right-of-way. (Dau not ~ply 

to utillty encroachln(!nt~ ~tvlng the gener.11 publk.) 

11.lf wort authorlied by th<? permit is within a hishw~ coni1ruc;tlon project In l~ construction ptwie, it shall II« 

the respan5'bility of the permittec to m;ilcc pc:rsontll COC\tact with the 04!partment'!o Engineer on the project in order 

to coordl~te 1111 permlUC?d work with the Department's prime contr.actor on t~ pro)e<t. 

19. This permit Is not intended to. nor shall it. affect, aUer or a tevi:ite anv rl!quir~ent Imposed upon the permittee, 

its $UCcessars and as'Slgni, by .1ny othctr agenc.v. 
zo. PCJmittee, Its wccet>sors and assigns. agrtts to contain amt mtlintain al dirt. mud, ~nd other debris ema~tlng 

from th~ encroachment away from tht! surround In& rlght·of·w.iy and the tr~I w~y of tM hA&hw;iy herc • .rter ;ind~ 

alf timcn that its oblig3tions under the permit ft!m.1 in in effect. 



TempofOl)I Mound in O/lffn A!Ns 

-- ........... 
' ..... 6"-12" 

Foundo6onl__L.,..:LN:.~= 
NQ~; No mcks larger than 1- 1/r allowed in emb«lmtNlt zon11. 

l)pically, optll1 ortJos ore mol gror:kd. dres$ed ond seeded 
followinv t..-o soaking roins. •. excluding KYTC rood ROW's 

Unless ofherwis1' specified material excovot6d from trtmch moy 
bt1 usffff for lino/ bot:/cfll providdd it is rttlot!Vfll)' ITIN! of largo 
rock (>8j. or mixttd with suflidont dlrl lo minimize 110ids end 
:rt1tflemtMl ond free of ofht!lr ·unsuitable mt11Vi'ol6 ... n t1pprol't!d 
by the £nginer 

The Englneer moy requirt1 st:l~fi~ plocement ~f an extra bvfler 
loftY for t1xtrwnely rocl<y backfill to prevMt migration 

Select bocltfill lightly compacted (bucl<et s/loping} using suiiolJle 
on-si/11 material or dumped sand. 
Sond or very sel~ct moleriol, hand lomp«I 
Houndllng to bl! corefillly ploced - Sand or sandy/clay ~oil. Na. !Is 
may bt! rt!qulred if weak foundation is encountwed 

'edding to be sand or oppro~ ~ul'val~(, (t1xcept No. 57$ may be 
ntquired ii weok foundation Mcounlt!reri) hond ploct:d ond smoeithed 

t1D. uniform grade for support of piptt 

tn soft, we/, muddy or otherwise yit!!lding foundoli'on CQ(ldi/ions, 
undt'Yt:utting and replac~mtNJt with No. 2 Slone and/or Closs JI 
chonnel lining, or equfvolenf. will be rl!tlUlred. Objflctive 16 /fl I provk/6 o t~ch bottom fr11~ of forge sfM~s. clcxls. frr>zen 
matorlol. etc. which is unyt8/dl11g. 

1}pi'cal cf.:$irt:d rhnsilies in tJPM areos ore d11plclt:d a/Jo~ ln the boxeP to the IHI of lht1 li9urt1. In olhor laying siluulions, mon1 slringttnt ttl«:tlan. 
placement ond compaction will be rt:quired. 

Trench width should /111 no widt:r tlH111 necessary for odtu1uolt: work room ond to anure &r:lf~ ftorlfing condilions. Nominal outa/de diomoter (O.D.) pipe 
plvs 6 4 on eoch side is f.)-pk:olf.Y crmskkr«/ minimal. ,,f/h e• minimum on ttllt:h sit:M for grorily st1tHr lnslollofion. For gro.,it.r nwer; pipe /Q be Ndd«f 
on No. 9 slon11 rmd remoindt1r of embttdmMt zont1 to bf! bockrillt1d with S011d. 

TRENCH BACKFILL OPEN AREAS - PLASTIC PIPE 
Mor., 2011 Scale: .J4 "=1'-0" 
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~:._::;;;,;;~:).::~~~>' 
.. /, ?:~~:/ ... -=-~~~!:::; 

··.XX ':'' •;'-/.· .... v~·,:-~ . · · · :>.'~' · · · 
··~~ ..... Y;· . ~, .r, • .. • 
0~'0 
. •• • ~ ... -~ t:" ~:;~;y.~ i;;.xcavoted . ,,,, ,,,/ ____ _ 
;J§:~·>t,; Trench Width 
~~:;/> .. ~· 
.;'\°\(/</, 
···') .. :-,~~·· 
''/..ii•';{ ·' ~· -N)~"- . 
7/;':v.' -~ 
~~~~~t ·:'·< .. ; ·~'\.;: 
.,:-;:.:-;-~i 
·:'/..-.!/..,( .. 
'//~, Pipe 1· 
~?~ ,. 0 .0. 

Select, Compacted Bae/di/I ot" 
"Flowob!e Fill" No Granular 
Mofedal 

~ 
I\; 

;~?::,,. ... ! Increase depth of Select 
Cover to 12" when 

-----+--- •<.'Y ''? ' required by KYTC 
...... 
~ 
~ 
lb • 

~ I Haunching, "''"S'i;;•f, •. " ,,, ,, ,,,.,,_ _ _,,,,,, < • . , .• 'f 
l;:j -» '" < . 

8edc/in9 I ·,:, ~'Z°I:• ..!-.--

Foundation 
(when required) 

see ljp/col Oetail for 
"Trench Backfill - Open Ar~os" 
for Plastic Pipe 

Se~ A WWA Cf 50 Standard 
for Due file Iron Pt;oe -
Type 4 (not under pavement) 
Tjpe 5 (under pavement)~ 

" Wiren "Opem-culiing" of Slate Higluvay is permit/ad. pipt> loyi'ng. snc~ment rtK}uir~mllnls, · /;ockfirl placement, 
poY'l!Jm6nf replcceme11t. etc. shall b~ as requirtJr:I by iht1 encroachment ~nni't issued by the Kentucky Trrmsportatlon 
Cob/net (KYTC). 8y ~ft!!rf!ncfl', SCJCh pet'ITlif(s) sllol/ became part of the contract. It shall be t11e CONmACTOH'S 
r~ponsio1?i(y to mci'ntaln o <:(lpy of K'r7C {Jt!!rmit(s) on the job site at all ti'me~. 

TRENCH BACKFILL ON HIGHWAY ROW 
Oec., 2010 N T.S. 
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Kentucky Transportation Cabinet 
Department of Highways 
Division of Maintenance 

Permits Branch 

ENCROACHMENT PERMIT 

KEPT No.: 11-2016-00140 

Permittee: Cumberland Falls Hwy. Water District 

Pennlt Type / Subtype: Utilities I Water 

Work Completion Date: 812612017 

This permit has been: APPROVED IBJ DENIED D 
Joel Holcomb 011 Engineering Support - TEBM 

SIGNATURE TITLE 

8/29/2016 

DATE 

TC99-1 (B) 
03/2018 

Page1 of1 

The TC 99-1(8), including the application TC-991 (A) and all related and accompanying documents and 
drawings make up the permit. It is not a permit unless both the TC 99-1(A) and TC 99-1{8) are both presenl 

Whitley Co - US 25W - Mp 26.89 Whitley - US 25 W 36.900586 -84.173324 



Matthew G. Bevin 
Governor 

August 29, 2016 

COMMONWEAL TH OF KENTUCKY 
TRANSPORTATION CABINET 

Department of Highways, District 11 Office 
603 Railroad Avenue 

Manchester. Kentucky 40962 
(606} 598-2145 

www.transportation.ky.gov/ 

Cumberland Falls Hwy. Water District 
6926 Cumberland Falls Highway 
Corbin, Kentucky 40701 

Subject: Pennit #: 1 l-2016-00140 
Pennit Type: Utilities - Water 
Approval 

Dear Applicant: 

Attached is your pennit approval and documentation for the subject permit. 

Greg Thomas 
Secretary 

Be advised that all work must be done in conformity with pcnnit and application conditions. If you 
have any questions, please contact the Pennits Section at this office. 

Sincerely, 

Joel Holcomb 
D 11 Engineering Support - TEBM 

Attachments 

An Equal Opportunity Employer M/F/O 



NOTICE OF COMPLETION OF ENCROACHMENT PERMIT WORK 

PERMITEE 

Name: Cumberland Falls Hwy. Water District 
Contact Person: 
Address: 6926 Cumberland Falls Highway 
City: Corbin 
State: Kentucky 
Zip: 40701 
Telephone: (606) 528-0222 

PROJECT IDENTIFICATION 

Permit Number: 11-2016-00140 

I wish to notify the Department of Highways that the above mentioned permit work and any necessary 
right-of-way restoration have been completed and are ready for final inspection. 

Applicant 

Please return this form to the address below when work is completed and ready for final inspection. 

Please Return to: Permit Engineer 
Department of Highways, District 11 Office 
603 Railroad Avenue 
Manchester, Kentucky 40962 
(606) 598-2145 
www.transportation.ky.gov/ 

Whitley Co - US 25W - Mp 26.89 Whitley- US 25 W 36.900586 -84.173324 



Kentucky Transportation Cab· 

Department of Highways m.:-,,.~~~~lAIE 
Permits Branch 

APPLICATION FOR ENCROACHMENT PERMIT 

Permlttee Information 
KYTC No. 

Name Cumberland falls Hwy. Water District Permit Information 

ddress 6926 Cumberland Falls Highway 

City Corbin 

State KV Zip 40701 

Phone• 606 528·0222 

Contact Les Moses 

Phone 606 528·0222 Cell 606 344· 3844 

Em.ill cfhwd@yatloo.com 

Contact 

?hone Ct!lt 

emJil 

General Description of Work: 

Address 

City Corbin/Williamsburg 

State t<V Zlp 

County Whitley 
·- ~~~ .. __ -

U52SW 
Mlle· 
Pofnt 

ln/0tmatlon below ro ~ fil/H our by KYTC 

0 AJr Rlaht 

Erutllltlc' 

Acccs.s : 

0 Entrance 

00ther: 

QRJght 

O rull 0Panial 

rC99·11At 
8/ 2012 

Pagel of 4 

40701 

26.89 

O x-inc 

E2(by Permit 

MM 26.89 Crossing US 25W with 4• Waterline in 10• Steel Casing Pipe. Long·84d 10' 23'" W lat 36d 54' 2 .. N 
MM 20 49 Connecting 3" Waterline to eidstlng 6" Waterline on R/W. long ·84d 13' 13"' W Lat 36d SO' 6'" N 

MM 14 99 to MM 15.20: Installation of 6" Waterl ine on North side of US 25W (Cumberland F.alls Highway} and partl lel, 
lOOR: ·84d 9' 43"W lat:36d 46' 42" N 

tmE('I (!Nina duly alrthorked rC!~ntltm(•) or OWMr(sll DO AGREE TO AU. TERMS ANO COKOlltoNS OH TH( 

Signature Date 

This Ii noc 1 ~rmlt unleu and unlll the permlttee{s) receiltcrs an appr~d TC 99-1(1) (rom K\'TC. This appllatlon wHI be<ome vold 
If not approved by the canail~Uon dat•. The c.ancallalfon date will be one year from tht date thcr ~mitttt JVbmUs thalr 
ilppl~Uon. 



Kentucky Transportation Cabinet 
Department of Highways 

Permits Branch 

APPLICATION FOR ENCROACHMENT PERMIT 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

TC 99-1 ft\t 
8/2012 

P;igf l of 4 

1. The pcrrnit, lndudlng this ;ippllutlcn ;ind ;ill rel.Jtcd 3nd accom~nylng documents and dr.illllngs m.1lc' a up ttH! 
permit, remains In effect and is bindins upon the Appficanl/Pcfmitttt, its suacuors ilnd .as.signs, as Ions .u the 

encrOiKhm~t(s) ~•ists ilnd also until the pcrm1ttce Ii finally rcllC"ile!d by the oe~rtment of Hi&hw.lys from .al tts 

obli~ticns. 

1. AppUc;.ant shall meet all requirements of the acm W.alc< Act if Che pro{c:ct wilt disturb one .lcre or mote. the 

appllc.ant shall obl.ain ;a KPOES ICYR 10 Permit from the ICentutky Division of Wi1t<?r. All dtsturbt!d ;are•s shal meet the 

·~UifflTIC!nls or the Oepar1ment of lll&hway's Standard Specifl<atlons. Sections 212 iJnd 213 • .is amended. 
!. INDIMNllY: 

A. PERFORMANCE BOND: the permittee shall provide to the Department ii performance bond 
~crdlna to the Permits Milnual, Section PE·203 ;is • gu.uantec of canform.1ncc with the 

Department's Encr0.1Ch~nc Petmlt requlrem~ts. 

8. PAYM£NT BOND: At the discretion of the dj!p.anrMnt, a payn\C!nt bond will be requftcd of the 

permittee to ensure pt1yment of liqukfatcd d.am.l&CS a~sed to the ~mitt«. 

C. UA81LITY INSURANCE: U.bllity lnsurill\Ce wilt be required Qf the permittce (in an amount appr~ 

by :he dep.1rtmcinl) to c~ :all l i4bllitics .lSM><~tcd with the c:nao;ichmcnt. 

D. It sh an be the r~pons.ibility of the permlttee, its s11Ccessorsand assigns, to maintafn all lf'demnities 
In full force and effect until the pecmltttt h .:iuthoriied to rt!fC'&SG tm- Indemnity by the 

D@pilrtmttnt. 
4. A copy of this application and all rNtcd documenu m.1kln11 up the 1ppr~ permit will be &Wen to the applicant 
.ind ~.all be m.lde read!lv :ivailable for revk!w at the wofk $Ile .11t ~I times. 
5. Perpetual ma ntennce of the encroac:hlTIC!nt is the t~ponslblfltv o·f the p~mlttee, Its successors and assigns. 

wi:h the .JPfJ'OV'11 ol the Oe~rtment as rcqulr~. unlcsi otherwise ltatcrd. 

6. P~rmittee, its wcces~s and .assi1ns. sh~ll campfy with and aRrtt1 to ~ bound by the requltements and terms 

of(~) this .Jpplic:atiGn and all ret.lted do<:umcnts m;iklng up t~ .IPPfOVC!d ~rmit, (bJ by the Depo1rtment'' Permits 

Manu.il, ;:ind (c) by the Manuill on Un.lform ?raffle Control Devices, both manuals as t~d to and in effect en the 

d.ue of iuuance of the permit, .all of which documents arc mildc a p.lrt th1.'1'cof by thl1 reference. Compll.:snce by the 
CK!rmittc!e, iti 'ucccssors and ilWRnS, wlth wbseciuent revisions to appllc:able provisions of either manual 04" other 

policy of lhe Department may be made a condition of atlowlng the .mcroachmcnt to persist under the permit. 

7. l•ermitte?O t11rces that this ~nd any (?ncroa<hmcnt may be ()(dcr~ remoYCd by the Department at any timc, and 
tor any rt:a)On, upon thirty dJys w'inen oot(ce to the last known address of the appll~nt or Co the: address :n the 
location of c~ encrc.ichmcnt The perm!ttcc .isrccs t~t the cost of remavlng ~nd of 1~torln1 the .:mociat~ right· 

of·w.iv is the rMC>on1ibrlitv of the !J<!tminee. its success.on and assigns. 

I. Pcrmitt~, Its SU(CttSOts and .lnicns, .:11rce that if the Department detcrmine5 tt\.at motor vthlcul.lr ufcw 
deficiencies ~lop as a result of the inst.1llt&tlon ar use or the encroachment, the pennlttee. Its WCCCS$0<5 and 
assigns, sh.JI! provide .:ind bear the e•pen~ to ad1ust. relocate, or reconstruc:t the f~cilillc\, and/or ;add !.lgns. 

au1tiliary lanes. or other correttM? m~:msrCl rct;is.on;ably decml?O nece.s.~ry by the Oepattml!nt within a reason.iibl4? 

time .after receipt of ;i written notice of wen deficiency. The period wlthtn which wc.h <Jdjustments, rcloc:.>tfons, 
Jddltions, modlflC..JtJOns, and/ot other corre<tive m~aiurcs must be completed will be specified In the not~. 

9. Where traffic sfcna!s are requimd as a condition of granting the requested petm1t or are thereafter required to 

( O<rW mOt Of vehlcuf.ilr s,t(ety dcflt1cl\Clci. 3S det~rmin~ by the Deo:irtmcnt, the CO\~S for signllf equipment ~nd 



Kentucky Transportation Cabinet 
Department of Highways 

Permits Branch 

APPUCA TION FOR ENCROACHMENT PERMIT 

TC 99·1 {A) 
8/2012 

Page 3 of 4 

lnst<tll~tlof'l(sf ihaQ be borne by t.he ;>«mltttt, Its succeisors and aulans, and/or the ~partment In its rcawn;,tMc 
discretion and only in a<cordancc wilt, the Oepiartment's current policy set forth In the Traffic Op~.1tions Manual 
11nd Permits Manual. Any mocfifl~lJons to the petmittec's cntrt1nce ncccswty to .)(Commodate slgnalliation 

(includrna neces~ty eas~ment(s) on private pro~rwJ di.ill be the rcsponwtMlltv of the permitttt, Its succCJjGrs and 

assigns. at no expense to the ~ment. 
10. The requested cncro.Jchment shall not infringe on the front~e rights of an abtittlna owner wlthcxit their written 
consent as hetelnafter described. E'ach abutting owner $!1411 espress their consent, which sh.111 be bCndin& on their 
ttlCteison md uslgns, by t~ ~ubmlst.!on of a not~rl:ed statement u fofknvs, •t (wet. 

------------------------- hereby coruent to the grantinc of the 
permit requested by the appfk:.Jnt <1lon1 Route __________ .,, which P<!trnlt d~s ;affoct fJont3p 

ri&hts ,1long mv (our) ad~cent tcrat ptOP<!rty. • By si1nat1.1re(st 

subscribed and sworn by 
----~~----~--~~~--_,on!hkdatc _____________ _ 

11. Th~ ~rmat, if 3PP<O~, Is subject to the agreement that It shall not Interfere with ~ny sll'Niar rigtlu or permit(sJ 
prcvl°"sty groanted to .-ny othc:r party, CllC~Pt as otherwi~ provided by law. 

12..P@rmittec shall inducfl? documentdtlon wtlkh d~ribes the facilities to be constructed. Pt'mluee, lts wccessors 
;ind •s~gn~. aarH-S .'IS a condition of the gr.>ntlng of enc permit to c:onwuct Jftd m.aint.aln ~Y '11nd alt P<!rmittcd 

facilitlM or other en<:roactlments in strict accordance w1th the submitted ;nd <1pproYe<1 permit document.ltion .and 
the policies .-ind p1ocedurcs of the Oepill1ment. Permlttce. Its su«esws and ~s.uans. ~.111 not use facilities 

.iutnorized herein in any manner contrart to th.at prescrl!Hd by the approwd permit. Only normal cisaae .u 
cantemplat~ by the p.artles ;md bv thk appUcatlon and toutlne malnlen.1nce are .lulhorlzed by the permU. 

13. Permlltcc, its wcccU01s ;and .:JSSicns, at alt time's from the d.ne PttmiUed work Is commenced until such time n 
alt permitted fatlllt!es or other encra.cttments .lfC removed from the right·Of-way and the right-of.way te<itored, 

sta.11 detfond. prated, lndemftlfy and i.ave harmlns the Oet~rtmcnt from .inv .ind .Jlf liabllity d.-iims ;and <l~•nds 
arislnit out of the work, encroachment, miintenanc~. or ot~r undtrt.lkln& by the permltt~. its successors and 
.lUlgn$, relAted or undcrtilke-n pur~u.int to the gr;tnted permit, due to Jny cl.limed ;ict or omiisicn by the QCtmlUcc. 

its st-rv.lnts. a1tcnh, employees, or contractors. Thi' provision thal1 not inure to the benefit of anv third ~rtv noc­
oi;>er.ne to enl.trge .:inv ll.lbillty of the Oep1rtment beyond that l.!.1dtting .u common law or otherw1$4! If this right to 

indem11ity did not c11iit, 

14.Upan ;a violation of any provision of the permit, or ottti?rwi~ in its reasonable dlsaetlon, the Department mav 

require <1ddltion.:al .1ctlon by the permltt~. its succer.scn and .:m.igns, up to and includin1 'he removal of the 

encroa<:hmt!'nt and rcstor,1tlon of the right-of·way. tn the ~erlt additional actions required by the D~pattment under 

the e>trmlt ;ate not undt!r..lken as ordered and w~thi11 a rcason.lbl~ h~. Ute Oep.artment mav in its dkcrction cau~ 

thaS(! or other <1dditional co1rcctive :&cttons to be undertaken and the Ot!paf1mcnt may and shall rec:o~r the 

rc.l\Cn.lble con~ of tho~ corrective actions from the permiuee. its succM'°'s and lls\.lgns. 

ts. Permitt~. its wcccSSOI'$ and as~1tns, ~.ilt use the encroachment premhes in compli.lncc with .111 requirements 

of fcderill lilW OJnd f<.'8ul.ltion, fn(fudlng those impcu~d pursuant to Tiiie VI of !ht Civil Right Al:t of 1964 (42 U.S C. § 

ZOOOd et ;eq.) and the rcl;ncd r~gu liltfon~ of the U.S. DcP<Jrtment of Transponation in Title 49 C.F R. Pa11 21. .is 

amended. 

16. Permitlee, Its ~cces.sors and as ans, agrc:c: th.at If the Department dctermlriM It Is nccC?~Wt\' for the Ci1Clllt!~ Of 

other encro.iichment authorired by the p~rmi( to be removed, r~Jouted or reconstructed in connection wifh the 

rcconstruc1ion, relo<aUon or impro...ement of il highway. the ~partment m.iy 1tNolce pc!rmH.Pcn tar the 



Kentucky Transportation CabiMt 
Department of Highways 

Permits Branch 

APPUCA TION FOR ENCROACHMENT PERMIT 

TC99·1 (Al 
8/2012 

Page4 oU 

encroachml!fll to remain under the permit Jnd moay ordet its removal. re~tlon or rC?Constructlon by the ~fmitttt, 

its sum~j.SOfS and usigns. at the e)(pensC! of thC! ~rmittff, c•cel)t where the Department is required bv law to ~V 

.1ny or .ii of those costs. 

17.Pcrmitt~ agren th;u the authorized permit is J)<?rsonal to the ~rmiUee and sh.111 reimin In effect until such 
lime .JS (a) the permlltff's rights to the •djoininc re.JI property to haYot benefitted from the requested eiu:ro.Khment 
ha~ been fefinqui~cd. lbJ until 1111 permit obll1atlons havct b4!an assumed by .Jppropr~te successors .ind assicns, 
and (c) unlns and until .a Wfitten release from permit obti9ations has bttn sranted by the Department. The permit 
and Its requirements sh.ill alM> ~nd the real pro~rty to havC! IH!ncrrucd from the rc:qucitcd eneto.xhmcnt to che 
l!lltent permitted by law. The permit and the related encroachment become! the rc-spansibllity of the successors and 

•n$ians of the pc!fmlttc~ and the sucCHsors ind .iulsns of each property owner bcnefinln& from the enctOKhment. 

0< theen~chment may not othC!~C petmlsslbly continue to be malntain«!d on the! right·of•wav. {Docs not .ippfy 

to utility eRCr~hments ~na che ~e<1I public.) 

II. If wotk authatited by the pcrrmit is within ;a hi&hw.ay constn.ictlon project in the constructiOn ph~~. it sh ~ 
the responsibllltv of the pctmittcc to make personal contact with the Department's Enalnttr on the ptoject In order 

to coordin.-atc .:ill permitted wad with Che ()cp.lrtmcmt's prime contr.l<tor on the praJKI. 

19. lhls P1!rmit is not intended to, nor shall it, ;affect. :iltet or alleviate any te<iuireme"t imposed upon the S)trmlnee. 

its ~ucceuon c"Jnd assigns, by •nv other agency. 

ZO.Permittff, its suc:ceuor> and au.iins. agrees to cont~in .>nd maintain 111 dirt, mud, and other debris em;matin1 

from the entrOi<hment .iway from the 'S4lnoundln1 rl1ht·of·w.sv and the tmel way of the highw:iv hen~.Jfter .Jnd .u 

'111 times that its obfit.;itions under tht! ~mn r1?moiin in C?ffcct . 
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~ 5 Feet I 
MJntrJ1Jm • 

Permlt No. 

Aou-te No. 

Pavement Width 

Edge of 
Pavement 
Surface 

¢_ 
Edge of 
Pavement 
Sur-face 

Encasement Pipe 

~ 5 Feet •I 
Mininum 

42 Inert 
Mlninum 

A/W 
Une 

1. Push Ptt and Aeceivino Pit shat 1 be back-fl I Jed and thoroughly CCR1>0Cted. 

2. All artch lines ar-e to r"ernoln apen at 011 times. 

3. Seed and straw ol I disturbed areas inmediately after corq>lat1ng the Wor"k· 

4. Provide trofflc control os re~uired fo insure the safety of fhe trovetrng 
pubJtc tn OCcor"donce with the ~rent edition of the "Manual on 
Unifcrm Troff ic Control Devices • 

ALL SERVICES OVER 2• JN DIAMETER SHALL REQUIRE ENCASEMENT. 
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Vnlt1n ofherwi'st: spttelfittd. mofllrlol ttJtcaWJft1d from lrt1nch moy 
be used for lino/ bacltfill proi#<Jttd if 1$ ~lo/illff/y frH of lofTltt 
rrx:k (.>8"). or mlxed 'Mth sufliclenl dirt to minimize void!l and 
setllemtml and me of other unsvitoblt1 motedols... os cpproV!ld 
by tht1 E:nginnr 

lhe Cngi'neer ma)' require selecfiVtJ placement of on e>dro bulfu 
lo)'t!Jf' for ttJtfrtNntJI.)' rocky bDCkfill lo prelltfl'lt migration 

Se/eel backfill, lightly compoctdd (l>ucket shaping) using $tJl/able 
on-site mofttriol, or dumped $1X/d.. 

• Sand or very select moleriol, . hand lamped 
Haunching to be cont!Ully placed - Sond or sandy/clay soil. No. !J's 
moy be required if wt1ak foundation is enCQUnlere<I 

6dding to /J~ sand or approved equil!fl/ent, (ucept Na. 57$ moy bf! 
required if weok foundation enc()Uf1fered) hand placed end smocfh~tJ 

uniform grade for $Upporl of pipe 

In soft, wet. muddy or olllerwl$e yialdi'ng foundotiM condilic>tJs, 
11ndereullin9 attd replot:emtlf'1f wrth No. 2 Stan" ond/or C/a$S II 
chonn~ lining, OI' eqviYOIMf. will b11 required. ObfectlWI is to 
proVfd8 a tr6nch bottom fr~e of lory11 stones. clods, frozm 
matttriol, e/c. which Is unyltl/dlng. 

NOTES; No roc/t$ k/1'9..r than 1-1/2· Q//otttd In ~~tin/ IOM. 

Typicol d'1si'l'lfd densiiks in 01JM ar«1$ are depicted abo~ ln the bOJfH to th~ lefl of fhtt ligu~. In other /oylnq sililation$, m«e stringent m~fion, 
placement tlfld compaction will 11' l'•q11;1W1. 

r~nch width should ba no 11'/dtlr than nt1t:n6oty for a~<1uatrt rmrk roam and to onu~ Rife warlrihg cr:m<111;ar.8. Nominol ot.ilsidtP dian,,ltlf' (O.b.) piptt 
plus 6• on each side 1s lypicol(Jt considtfted minimal, wilh 8" minlmum 011 eodJ side ff;r' grrJ'91y sewv insta/lalion. r"" grovi(y sn1ttr.. pipe f'1 be /HJdtl~d 
en No. 9 stont! ond !"t!moindt!r of f!nWtNlmt!nl MM to ~ bocJdilled filh sand. 

TRENCH BACKFILi OPEN AREAS - PLASTIC PIPE 
Mor., 2011 Scale: ·14 ".::r I ·-o" 
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Haunching 

Bedding 

Foundab'on 
( when required) 

E.'xcavoted 
Tr~nch Width 

Select, Compacted Back!ill or 
"Flowable Ft~/" No Cronulor 
Moteriol 

~-, lncreas~ depth of Select 
Cover lo f.2 11 when 

--.,..--+---t~~.;:-------i----'-requir~d by KYTC 

See Typical Oeta17 for 
''Trench Backfill - Open Areas" 
for Plastic Pipe 

See AWWA C/50 Standard 
for Ductile Iron Pipe -
Type 4 (not vnder pavement) 
l)pe 5 {under pavement)# 

,. Whetn "O;;fln-culflng" or Slate H'rghfl'ay i$· permitted, pipe loyi'n9, a11cosNmt111t r~qf.H'remt:nk;. /Jacldid placement. 
pavemont rHplacemenf, etc. 5holl be as raquired l>y t/Jt1 encroachment permit issued by the Kentucky Trrrnsportation 
Cc/Jkret (l<Y!r:). Sy ref~nce, 'StJc/1 f).:]rmit(s) sllatl /;~come part of thd contract. It shall b~ lhd CONTRACTOR'S 
respons//Jllily to maintoi'r1 a copy of KYTC permif(s) on the job sit~ at all limes. 

!RENCH BACKFILL ON HIGHWAY BOW 
Oec., 2010 N. T. S. 
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Kentucky Transportation Cabinet 
Department of Highways 
Division of Maintenance 

Permits Branch 

ENCROACHMENTPERMrr 

KEPT No.: 11-2016-00138 

Permittee: Cumberland Falls Hwy. Water District 

Permit Type I Subtype: Utilities I Water 

Work Completlon Date: 8126/2017 

This permit has been: APPROVED [8J DENIED 0 

Joel Holcomb 011 Engineering Support - TEBM 

SIGNATURE TITLE 

8/29/2016 

DATE 

TC 99-1 (B) 
0312016 

Page 1of1 

The TC 99-1 (B), including the application TC-99 1 (A) and all related and accompanying documents and 
drawings make up the permit. It is not a permit unless both the TC 99-1(A) and TC 99-1(8) are both present. 

Whitley Co-KY 511 - Mp 2.13 WhiUey - KY 511 36.853580 



Matthew G. Bevin 
Governor 

August 29, 2016 

COMMONWEAL TH OF KENTUCKY 
TRANSPORTATION CABINET 

Department of Highways, District 11 Office 
603 Railroad Avenue 

Manchester, Kentucky 40962 
(606) 598-2145 

www.transponation.ky.gov/ 

Cumberland Falls Hwy. Water District 
6926 Cumberland Falls Highway 
Corbin, Kentucky 4070 I 

Subject: Permit#: 11-2016-00138 
Permit Type: Utilities - Water 
Approval 

Dear Applicant: 

Attached is your permit approval and documentation for the subject permit. 

Greg Thomas 
Secretary 

Be advised that all work must be done in conformity with penni~ and application conditions. If you 
have any questions, please contact the Permits Section at this office. 

Sincerely, 

Joel Holcomb 
D 11 Engineering Support - TEBM 

Attachments 

An Equal Opportunity Employer M/F/D 



NOTICE OF COMPLETION OF ENCROACHMENT PERMIT WORK 

PERMITEE 

Name: Cumberland Falls Hwy. Water District 
Contact Person: 
Address: 6926 Cumberland Falls Highway 
City: Corbin 
State: Kentucky 
Zip: 40701 
Telephone: (606) 528-0222 

PROJECT IDENTIFICATION 

Permit Number: 11-2016-00138 

I wish to notify the Department of Highways that the above mentioned permit work and any necessary 
right-of-way restoration have been completed and are ready for final inspection. 

Applicant 

Please return this form to the address below when work is completed and ready for final inspection. 

Please Return to: Permit Engineer 
Department of Highways, District 11 Office 
603 Railroad Avenue 
Manchester, Kentucky 40962 
(606) 598-2145 
www .transportation.ky.gov/ 

Whitley Co~ KY 511 - Mp 2.13 Whitley - KY 511 36.853580 --84.197483 



Permittee Information 

Kentucky Transportation Cabinet 
Department or Highways 

PC?rmlts Branch 

TC 99--1 (AJ 
8/ 2012 

a=:a.~~~llill.._.111!. Pace l of 4 

APPLICATION FOR ENCROACHMENT PERMIT 

KYTC No. // .. ...21/&-A!J/JS . 
Name Cumberland Falls Hwy. Water District Permit Information 

Address 6926 Cumberland Falls Highwav Address 

City Corbin/Williamsburg 
-

City Corbin State KY Zip 40701 
----·---· 

'C1 rtv Whitley State ICY Zip -~ozwv~ -- ,. ____ --------
Phone• 606 528-0222 ~I ~ -... ~ ute No. KV SU 

Mlle-
2.U 

Point 

Contact l esMoses longitude (XJ ·84d1rs1 .. -of< /??f/'r.f 
Phone 606 528-0222 Cell 606 344· 3844 Latitude (V) 36ds1· 12· -?~. 3'51SS-tJ 
Em~ll cfhwd@y<ihoo.com tnformotlon bdow to N J1"'1d Ollf by KYTC 

Contact 0AlrRlght 0 Entr;inc<! 
- ~l~ _Mtnv Pho"1! Cell Oocher. 

£mall 

01.e~ 0Aight 0 X·ing 

Ace~s: 0Fun 0 Pitrtiitl 0"YPermit 

General Description of Work: 

MM 2.13 Connecting 4" Waterline to e1tisting 6" Walcrllni? on R/W. 

Sigriaturc \7 Date ,.,., 
Thi1 Is not a pefmft unless ind uncU the permittee(s) r•calvos an approwd TC 99·1(BJ from tcVTC. This appllallon will be<ome void 
If not •PJ1rovtd by Utci c.lncallation data. The c;anccllatlon d.at• will be OM ~ar from the d;atc the permltteci wbmlts their 
appfkatlon. 



Kentucky Transportation Cabinet 
Department of Highways 

PC?rmits Branch 

AP PUCA TION FOR ENCROACHMENT PERMIT 

TERMS ANO CONDITIONS 

TC 99·1 (Al 
8/2012 

?~gc 2 of 4 

l . The permit, lndudln1 this 3QtJfic3t!Qf1 .Jnd au rtl.lttd .Jnd .J<campanying documc:nt~ .Jnd dr.Jwfngs making up the 

permit. u~m;Uns · effect .lnd ' ' bind & upon the ApS>liCCJnt/Permlttcc. its sua:euors oand auians, ;u; long as the 

encro.>chment(s) ~xi,ts Jnd AliO uAt I the petmittce k finaltv tellc'fflf by the Oep.lnment of Hlghw~vs from all its 

ab'igiationr;, 

z. Appllc.1nt sha ~et 1111 r~ultemcnts of the Oean Water Act If the! Pfofcct will disturb one .Jere er mo•e, the 

appllcant sh.lll obt11in ii KPO£S KYRlO Pcrmil from the Kentucky OMdon of Water. Alf di\tutffd .m~a' shoall meet the 

requirements of the Dcp.irtmcnt of Highway's Standard Sped fiutions, Seciions 212 and ll3, .is .1mcnded. 

J. IN0£MNITY: 

A. PERFORMANCE SOHO: The petmlttee shill provide to the l)epirtmcnt ii PC?fformaace bond 

;accordlnc to thct Permits Manual, Section PE·20l as • gu;Jr3ntec of conforrNncc with the 
Dep<1rtment's Encro;,chmc?nt Petmit requirements.. 

9. PAYMENT' BOND: At the dl:$creclon of the department, a p.-Jymcnt bond wltl be required of che 

pcirmittee to C?nsure paymC?ttt of Uquldatcd d.lmll&ci ;ismsed to the ~rmittee. 

C. UABIUTY INSURANCE: Uabilltv lt\i~ran.ce will be required of the permlttee lin an ;amount i19Proved 
by the departmenO to cover atl li.lbll!tics ilssocl.lted with the encr~chmcnt. 

0. It s.hilll be the respon1ibifitv oft~ permittee, its successors and .ssJens. to m<1mt41in alf indC?mnit~s 
in fufl force tlnd effect until the petmittce Is ;iuthOfizcd to relcJK" the Indemnity by the 

Department. 

4. A COPV of thls appllc.itlon and all ref<ltcd documents ~king up the 41pproved permit wfll ~ &lvcn to the .ippllunt 

ilnd ~ti.JU b11 m:oJdc readitv ;:avall.lblc '°' f~ i1t thr weft !Jtc at an timcis. 

S. P~~tu~I maintenance of the enuoachment Is the re1pottslbilltv of the permltt~. iu wccesson ind ass ens. 
wl~h the ;>pp1ov3' of thct Oepanmcnt .as required. unlcu othelV!li~ statod. 

6. Pemrittec. its wcccssors .lnd JS5igns, shaU comply with and aartts to be bound by the 1equlf4!n'lents 11nd terms 
of (;1 ) thls 3')pfic.>tion 02nd .afl related documents m;iklng up thc ;ipproved permit, (b) by the Dep;artm~nn Permtt\ 

Man1.101I. and tel by the Manu.-il on Unirorm Tt;:iffic Control OINices. both 1Nnuals i1S rcvi~ to ;and effe<t on the 
d.:ite of 1,suilnce of the petmlt, .lll of which documents .uc made a 1mt thereof by this reference. Compllance by the! 

jH!rmluee. its successors and usigns, with subsequent re~lsioni to appfiC.lhle prOYisi~ of cithl!r manual or other 

policy of the Department m.sy be m-'de a condltlon of a.llowlni the encro~hmen1 to ~si$t under the ~rm1t. 

7. Permtnec: agr~ that this and any oncroolchmcnt may be ordered relTl<M!d by t~ O<?part~nt 01t anv time. and 

fo r any reason, upon thirty d;rys wtittcn notice to the last kncwn •ddrcm of the appllt.Jnt or to thl! Jddreu at the 

locati()n of the cncr~chmont The petmltttt .-igrces th.lt the cost of removing and of restoring :ho oauocioatcd righi · 

of-wav is the responsibility of th~ pcrmittee. Its successors and assigns, 
L Pcfm1ttcc, Its wcccucrs oand assigns. J&rco th.lt 1f the Oe~nment determine~ th.at motor vehicubr $.Jfe ty 

defJclendes develop ilS a r6ult of the instalf.:itlon or use of the encroachment. the pl!rmittee, its succusors and 

.issigns, sh.al provide ilnd be.Jr the e•pcn~ to .:adjust. reroute. or reconstruct the facllltic\, an4/or add signs • 

.luxiliaty Llnes, or other cotrcr;tive measur~s rcaMJnably dttmcd ne<C$sary by t .he Oep.inment within ;a rNson~bfe 

time .Jfter receipt of a written notice of wch dc:tlclency. The period within which such adjustmcmts. rcloc:ation5, 
addltiom, modifk.l ons. Jnd/or other correctivt metJsutos must be! completed will be ~~clfled In the notl(e. 

9. Whc!rc tr<>fflc sign.-lls ue required as a condition of gr~nting the r~ested pe-rmit or are thereafter required to 

corr~t motor v~htwl;ir s.:ifctv dcfidcncl~ •• u dctermln~ by ch~ Dep;artmen1, the coses for 'Signal equipment .ind 



Kentucky Transportation Cabinet 
Department of Highways 

Permits Branch 

APPLICATION FOR ENCROACHMENT PERMIT 

TC99·1 {A) 
8/2012 

Page 3 of 4 

lnst;,11.ltion(i) sh.lit be bMnc by the perm1ttee, its successors and as~ns, tlnd/Of the Depart~nt in Its re.u()n.ibfc 

diKretion ind only in Kcordan<e wilh the Department's current policv s.et forth in tht! Traffic Oper.nlons Manual 
and Permits Man~f. Any mOdlflcottfons to the permiuee's cntr~ce necess.iry to accommodate i/gnall1.lUon 

(lndudlng n«esSMV C?a~ment( .. ) on ptivtit~ property) $hall be the rCJpan1ibffity of the permltttt, •ls wcC1?'1SOts and 

uslgns, at no e~s.e to the Depa"ment. 
10. The rcqul:$tcd encro.lchment sf\;i not lnfrln~ on t~ front.a10 rf&hts or .ln abuUin1 owner without thi:ir written 
conM!nt 1u hetein.ifter described. Etich abuttina own<?r shall e•prcu their consent, whkh shift be b ndlng on thl!ir 

wcccmon and taf.Silns. by the submission of a no1;irl1ed 'ltatcml.'flt ai foffaws, ·1 (we). 

-------------------------' hc!rcby consent to the grantlnl of the 
permit requested by tile appllc.int 31on1 Route ----------..1 which permit doM o1ffect front»ie 

along my (our) P~rtv: By sitNture(s) 
subictlbcd and swom bv 

-~-----------------_,.onlhlsdate ____________ ~----
11. The permit, If 4'pprolled, Is subject tot~ ag,~tMnt tliat it sh.111 not interfe«! with ;iny similar r ahts or petmlt(s} 
pre\tlougy er anted to any other patty, except ;is othcnri~ provided by Llw. 
12.Permittee sha incltsdc documcnt.atfon which describes the facilities to be connructed. Permittee. s successors 
.md .uslans. iJ8rel!s as a condltlcn of the cranting of the permit to constr"ct and malnt.-iln ~v and illl permitted 
facilitH!s or 4ther encroachments in strict ..ccatdan<e with the submitted o1nd approved permit d0C1Jmentation and 

the policit'S and proccduros of the Oe~rtment. Permlu~. its su<ccssats and as"cns, sh.Ill not uW! facilitlH 

.suthotilcd herein in any manner contrary to lNt prescribed by the :i~roved permit. Only notm1I usact as 
contemplated by the panl~ and by this aP9(1c<>tiOft and routine milntenance are authori1ed by the permit. 
U. P~mlttee, its wcccucrs iM'ld ;assJ&ns, .lt all tlmH from the d.tc~ ~rmittctd weflt is commtrn:od until sue.h time.~ 

Jll pe<mltted facilities gr othei encroa<hments a~ removed from the rlght·o f..wJV and the ~ ht-of·wav restored. 

sh•ll defend, pfot«t, Indemnify end save ~rmloss the Oc~rtmtnt from .lny .lnd .ill liability dilims and dcfl'..lnds 
arising ovt of tt\e work, encroachment, maintenance. or ether undertakin& by the permltttt, · s successors and 

.lssign~. r~lated or undertaken punu.lnt to Ult gr;anled pctm•t. du~ to ilny cbim~ ace or ominlon by the petm1ltec. 

its servants, <Jgents, emplove~. or contr.xtors. This pro-.rision shall not inure to the benefit of any third pJrtv nor 
opcr.itt to e-ntarae any llilbll y ol the Oepartml?f1t b<?YOnd that e1ei~tlns at common lolw or oaherwii.e If thts rf11ht to 
indemnity did l\Ot c•ist . 
14.Upcn 41 yiofafon of any provlSfon of the permit, or otherwise in ~t' reasonable dlsact n, the Otp>ittment m.ty 
require additioNI action by the pcrmit\ce. Its successors ..and •mi1ns, up ta and including the? r4!flloval of the 
encro.ichm('nt and restoration of the rlght·of·way. tn tile event additional actions requirc:d bv the Oep.1rtment under 

the permit ~re not undttrt..ilcon .u ordcrcid ..and within a reuon.>ble tJ~. t~ OcPMtmcnt milV 1n thi dt1cretion cause 
those? or othc!r additionaf corrective .ictlons to be undertaken and the Department may ;and Mta• recoo..er the 
•c.lson.Jbfe costs of tho~ corr~!ivc ac!ions from the permlttcc. its wccessors 3nd as~gns . 

lS. Permittn. iti succcsSQrs iJnd ;issigns, shalt u~ the encroachment pref'llt~s compli;ancl? with ;al requircmcmts 
of federal law and tc:gubt on, lnduding chose lrnJ14sed pursu.-nt to t itle VI oft~ Civil Right Act of 1'64 (42 U.S C. § 

200Dd et se?q.) ilnd the r4!1.lted rcrcula~ions of the U.S 0c:""1rtmcmt of Transportation in ht e 49 C.F ft Part 21. alt ;is 
imended. 

16. Permltttt, lcs wcet"s.so1s .lnd .1SSll"'· .JCrtt t~t if the Ocp,;mmcnt dct~mlncs ft is ncccs."'1rv for thct f.Wlllfn or 
oth~r encr()i(.l\m!nt authorired by the permit to be removed, reloc.lted Of' rKonstructed 1n connect·on with the 
reconstruction. r<?location or improvement of .l hfghwily, the Oc:P.111ml?f1t m.ty revoke pcrm~~n for lhc 



Kentucky Transportation Cabinet 
Department of Highways 

Permits Branch 

AP PUCA TION FOR ENCROACHMENT PERMIT 

re 99·l (At 
8/2012 

Page4 of 4 

encro.>chtMnt to tt!m3fn under the petmlt ;ind m<ly ordtr its remov.:it. reloc.ltlon or reconstruction by the pctmlUee, 

its iuccessors and assftns, at the expense of the p~mltttt. r•cept wtlere the DeP<Jrtment Is required by law to pay 
.Jny or ;ill of those costs. 

17.Pcrmltttt ilgren thilt the authorized permit is personal to th~ pennitteo and s~lt remain fn effect until such 

time .u (aJ the permitttt's rfahts co the adjolnin11 real propctty to h;avc beneftu~ from tht requested tncr001chment 

h;ive bc~n rclinqui1hcd, (bJ untU 1111 permit obllptlons h.lve bffn assumed by ~ppropriate succcsson 1nd anisnr. • 

.-ind (c) unleu and untlf .:a written re a.se from permll obligations has been 1ranted by the 0¢p.1t1mcnc. The permit 

:ind its requlrem~ts sh.all illso bind the '"'' prapetty to h.ave bentmncd from the tcq~ted enc:r~tnt to thct 
e•tcmt permitted by law. The permit .ind the related enacwchment become the responsibility of the ~c,~sors ~nd 

t'l'Jslcns ot tht ~rmlUei! o'lnd ttle successors and aulgns of each pro&M!fty owner IM!ncflttlng from the tttcro.lchment, 

or tM encrwchment t'NY not ote,e~ permls" bly continue to be maintained 0J1 the richt-of·wav. (~snot appfy 

to utility encro.:ichments ~rvlnt the aener,,I public.) 

11.lf work authoriztd by the pc!t'mit is within a highway conwuction project In the construction phase. it shall be 

the r~nsibiffty of the PC!fmittee to make pcfSOOil cont.let with the Oe~rtment's Englnttr on the project In ord~ 

to coordinate all permitted wotk with thct Dc:partmcnt's ptlmc contr.ictar on tht! project. 

1'. This permit Is not intended to, nor shall it. affect, .liter or allhi<tte anv rtqultem~nt lmpcsed upon the permltttt, 

its succ~~rs ;and ~~ans, by any otf\tt JI~· 
ZO.Pecmlttff. Its succesiers and assigns, agrtts to contain and m;ilntJin all dh1, mud, 1nd other debtls ema~tinl 

from the enuoachmcnt ~way frcm the surrOt1ndin1 ri1ht·of·w.1y .tnd lhe troivel w;,y of the hl&hway hefeafter and ilt 

,. Um~s that its obl18i1tlons under the permit rem~in in effect. 
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Tjpico/ly, cpttn arttas ore final gradttd. dr~sS«J ond slfft:ied 
lollod'in9 two sooking r01"1s ••• exc/11di'ng KYTC road ROW's 

lJntea othtN'wise specifl«I. material exca'lt1tl!d from treneh may 
bt1 usttd for fi'noJ bocltlill pmWdt1tl if ls rwalfrttlf frtlt!! of large · 
rock (.>8"), or mind with s11f/iclt!l'lt dirt to mini'tru"zl! 'l'Oids end 
settlt!ml!nf. ond fr«t of othN unsuilO/J/" m(lfonot$ •.. os opproWNI 
by lhe EnglntHN' 

1/ltt Engineer mo}' r11QUfrt1 si!l«li~ plOCfln'll!l'Jt td an 11xtro buff«' 
layer for oxlremtJ/y roclry backfill to prt1l'flllt migration 

Select boclrlfll. lightly compacfl!d (butlrttt shaping) 11s1"n9 suitob/lf 
on- siftJ mofariol, or dumped sontl. 
Sond or 11ery sell!Ct moleti'ol hand tamped 
Haunching to be coreliJ/ly placed - SQnd or S'117dJ'/doy S017. No. !J s 
moy be required if weak foundation is encountered 

'eddi'ng lo be sonil or opproiltrd fK/Ui11t1l1N1t. (eJtcilpt No. 51$ moy bt1 
reqr1ire<1 if weok foundollon l!f'lcounf~d) llond plactnl ond smooth«/ 

Ll.12. unif""7'{ grade for support of pipa 

tn sort. wot, muddy or otht!rwis& .)'idding fou11dotlcn conditions, 
u11derc11tlln9 and replactlffltmf with No. 2 Stontt 0r1d/« Closs II 
chonnt!I lining. or equillOlent will bfl requinJd. Ob.ittcfi'!m ls to 
provide o trt1t1ch boffqm trn of lorge :st011es, clods, frozen 
moteri'ol. elc. which is un)ieldin9. 

N(iT{S: M:I rock$ torger fhan 1- 1/r ollowl!d in t1mbt1dmenf rone. 

iypicttl desired densities in op~n ort!OS OnJ depicted obow in I/le l>o¥es lo the /tJft of fM figUl't!. In oth~ loyil)(I siluolion:s, l11()ll'e !lttittgMI sl!lecllon, 
plocttment <md compaction will /Jo required. 

Tnmr:h widlh s"'1uld bt1 no ,.,itfg 'ihari necttnol)' for odttquote worl: mom ond to assu,. :soff! worl<i119 condifi'oM Nominal ot1nidt! diomt1trr (ao.) pi'pe 
plus 6" on «K:h side 1~ typically considtll'tld minimal. with 8" minimum on eoch $i<k for 9rovlty st1~r it1$1ollofion. Fr>r grovil,Y soww; ~ to btt bl!di:kd 
<m No. 9 stone and ~m<Jinder of em/JeilmMi rontJ lo be b<Jcl<fi/lt!d with sand. 

IBENCH BACKEILL OPEN AREAS - PLAS]C PIPE 
Mor., 2011 Seals: * ·~ 1 '-0" 
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Foundat/on 
(when required) 

Select, Compacted Backfill or 
"Flowable Fill" No Granular 
Motqr/a/ 

See A WWA C150 Standard 
for Ductile Iron Pipe -
Type 4 (not 1.1nder pavement) 
Type 5 {under pavement)"' 

" When ''Opsn-cutting" of Stat• Highway is p(ll'm/tted. pi'pe toying, encasement r6quirenumts, lxzckf/11 placMn!Wf. 
pavamenl mplocemenf, <1tc. shall fJtr as r11quir~ by ·the ~nc;roocltmt1ni p~rmlt lssuM by tM K!!ntucky Tnmsporlafion 
Cabinet (KYTC). By teft!rence, such permlt(s) shall become part of the controct. It snot/ ~ t/11! CONTRACTOR'S 
responsibltity to maintain a copy of KYTC permi"t(s) an !ht: job sii11 at all l!"in~s. 
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L ~~LEY WHITLEY COUNTY FISCAL COURT 
-~OUNTY RESOLUTION NO. 2016-15 

RESOLUTION #2016-15 
Use of County Road Right-of-way for Water and Sanitary Sewer Lines 

A RESOLUTION OF THE WHITLEY COUNTY FISCAL COURT 
AUTHORIZING CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT OF WHITLEY, KENTUCKY, 

TO USE COUNTY ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY FOR WATER AND SANITARY SEWER LINES 

WHEREAS, the Cumberland Falls Highway Water District is responsible for operating and maintaining the 
water distribution and treatment and sanitary sewer collection and treatment system for the County of Whitley; 

WHEREAS, the Cumberland Falls Highway Water District has determined that it is in the public interest to 
acquire grants to construct water and sanitary sewer line extensions to provide service to unserved areas; 

WHEREAS, the Cumberland Falls Highway Water District understands that it shall not interfere with any 
rights or permits granted to any other party or require that Whitley County residents submit to annexation for 
services provided by the Cumberland Falls Highway Water District; 

WHEREAS, the Cumberland Falls Highway Water District shall at all times defend, protect and save harmless 
Whitley County from all liabilities, claims and demands arising out of work undertaken by the Cumberland 
Falls Highway Water District due to any negligent act or omission by the Cumberland Falls Highway Water 
District, its servants, agents, employees or contractors and are · to repair the given roads to their original 
condition and if proper repairs are not made as soon as reasonably possible fo any county road or right-of-way 
disturbed by the Cumberland Falls Highway Water District, at its sole discretion, may repair the road or right­
of-way and charge the Cumberland Falls Highway Water District for all cost of repair, as well as, any legal 
expenses, court cost and all attorney's fees reasonably incurred in order to collect the cost ofrepairs; 

WHEREAS, maintenance of any damage or encroachment on the county roads or right-of-way is the 
responsibility of the Cumberland Falls Highway Water District. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, this the 20th day of September 2016, by Whitley County, Kentucky: 

The Whitley County Fiscal Court gives permission to the Cumberland Falls Highway Water District to install 
and maintain water and sanitary lines and facilities in the county roads right-of-way. 

Done this the 20th day of S Motion by Bro £.l)Y) and 
seconded by ~4----"4.o'l"4-~""'-"'--------' members present voting in favor. 

By: 

mi chwartz 
ey County Clerk 

Recorded in Fiscal Book£_ Page J..12_. 
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Project Narrative 
Cumberland Falls Highway Water District 

Line Replacement and Reinforcement Project 

The proposed construction will include approximately 2,825 LF of 6-inch PVC 
waterline ; approximately 32,545 LF of 4-inch PVC waterline; approximately 
11 , 760 LF of 3-inch PVC waterline ; and associated appurtenances such as gate 
valves, blow-off assemblies, air release valves, residential meter settings, leak 
detection meters, etc. Some short segments of polyethylene pipe will be 
installed at directionally bored stream crossings and environmentally sensitive 
areas. The water mains will primarily be constructed along the county and state 
highway right-of-ways. The facilities have been designed to provide the 
customers with a minimum pressure of 30 psi at the meter at peak flow 
conditions. The construction is now scheduled to begin by August 15, 2017 and 
be completed by March 13, 2018. 

The new water line will replace approximately 39,300 linear feet of existing water 
distribution line that is undersized and/or has been prone to excessive leaking. 
Much of the line to be replaced was initially installed by private home owners 20 
plus years ago to serve only the residences that existed at the time and was 
never intended to serve growth or be extended. This work should also lower 
CFHWD's water loss. 

The project funding will also allow the District to purchase radio read meters to 
replace the last of the conventional meters in its distribution system and upgrade 
its SCADA system. These will enhance the overall efficiency of operation of the 
distribution system 

Approximately 15 new customers will be served by the project and approximately 
245 existing underserved customers will directly benefit from improved service 
and CFHWD's entire customer base will benefit financially from lower costs. The 
project will reduce purchased water costs by replacing existing leak prone lines; 
reduce maintenance costs resulting from frequent leak repairs ; and reduce 
transportation/personnel costs associated with the monthly meter reading. It will 
also improve service to users on small undersized lines who experience 
significant pressure loss during times of peak system use and when leaks occur 
in the system. 

There are no other existing public water systems in the area. 

F:\PROJECTS\2006\2006234\psc submittal\Project Narrative.doc 



FINAL ENGINEERING REPORT 

CFHWD - LINE REPLACEMENT AND REINFORCEMENT PROJECT 

CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 

CORBIN, WHITLEY Co, KENTUCKY 

PROJECT No. 2006234 

JUNE 2017 



FINAL ENGINEERING REPORT 

CFHWD - LINE REPLACEMENT AND REINFORCEMENT PROJECT 
CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 

I. INTRODUCTION 

The Cumberland Falls Highway Water District (CFHWD) was originally formed to 
provide a safe, dependable supply of potable water to the citizens in the rural 
areas of Whitley County. Since its inception, the CFHWD has grown until it now 
serves more than 3,250 customers over a large portion of Whitley County. 
CFHWD has nearly reached its goal of making treated water available to every 
citizen within its boundary, with only a few small and/or low population density 
areas left unserved. 

II. PROPOSED FACILITIES AND SERVICES 

General Description. The proposed construction will include approximately 
2,825 LF of 6-inch PVC waterline; approximately 32,545 LF of 4-inch PVC 
waterline; approximately 11,760 LF of 3-inch PVC waterline; and associated 
appurtenances such as gate valves, blow-off assemblies, air release valves, 
residential meter settings, leak detection meters, etc. Some short segments of 
polyethylene pipe will be installed at directionally bored stream crossings and 
environmentally sensitive areas. The water mains will primarily be constructed 
along the county and state highway right-of-ways. The facilities have been 
designed to provide the customers with a minimum pressure of 30 psi at the 
meter at peak flow conditions. The construction is now scheduled to begin by 
August 15, 2017 and be completed by March 13, 2018. 

The new water line will replace approximately 39,300 linear feet of existing water 
distribution line that is undersized and/or has been prone to excessive leaking. 
Much of the line to be replaced was initially installed by private home owners 20 
plus years ago to serve only the residences that existed at the time and was 
never intended to serve growth or be extended. This work should also lower 
CFHWD's water loss. 

The project funding will also allow the District to purchase radio read meters to 
replace the last of the conventional meters in its distribution system and upgrade 
its SCADA system. These will enhance the overall efficiency of operation of the 
distribution system 

Approximately 15 new customers will be served by the project and approximately 
245 existing underserved customers will directly benefit from improved service 
and CFHWD's entire customer base will benefit financially from lower costs. The 

F:\PROJECTS\2006\2006234\psc submittal\Final Eng ineering Report 062317.doc 



project will reduce purchased water costs by replacing existing leak prone lines; 
reduce maintenance costs resulting from frequent leak repairs; and reduce 
transportation/personnel costs associated with the monthly meter reading. It will 
also improve service to users on small undersized lines who experience 
significant pressure loss during times of peak system use and when leaks occur 
in the system. The locations of the major elements of the project are shown on 
the attached U.S.G.S. topographic maps. 

Land. The acquisition of land by deed was not required for any of the proposed 
facilities. 

Rights. Private easements have been acquired for the water distribution lines 
where necessary but most of the distribution lines will be on State and County 
road right-of-way. Encroachment permits for the lines have been obtained from 
the Kentucky Department of Highways and a motion approved by the Whitley 
Co. Fiscal Court for the use of the County road right of way. 

A permit has been obtained from the Ky. Division of Water for the construction of 
the project and approval will be requested from the Kentucky Public Service 
Commission. 

Ill. COST AND FUNDING 

Attached to this report are copies of the certified bid tabs, as-bid budget and 
estimated Operating Budget for the first year of operation. 

IV. CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 

Conclusions 

A. The proposed facilities will allow the CFHWD to provide more reliable service 
to its customers at a reduced cost. 

8 . The financial feasibility indicates that the CFHWD can service the proposed 
loan on the existing rates without jeopardizing the financial integrity of the 
operations. The existing rates are sufficient to cover operating expenses, 
debt service, debt service coverage, and provide some net unobligated 
monies. The revenues are not sufficient to cover the full amount of 
depreciation allowed in the rate base. 

Recommendations 

The project, as presented herein, is feasible with the indicated funding and the 
existing rates. The District should proceed with construction of the project once 
approval is received from the KY Public Service Commission . 

F:\PROJECTS\2006\2006234\psc submittal\Final Engineering Report 062317.doc 
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KENVIRONS, INC. 
452 Versailles Road 
Frankfort, KY 40601 

Project No 2006234 

BID TABULATIONS 

Owner: Cumbertand Falls Highway Water District 
Project: Line Replacement and Reinforcement Project 
Bid Date: June 1, 2017 at 1:30 P .M. Local Time 

1 6" PVC SOR 17 Pioe LF 2 825 $12.40 $35 030.0D $13.00 $36 725.00 $10.0D $28 250.00 $24.00 S67 800.00 $25.22 S71 246.50 

2 4" PVC SOR 17 Pioe LF 32 545 7. 10 231 069.50 10.20 331 959.00 10.00 325 450.00 22.00 715 990.00 22.31 726 078.95 

3 3" PVC SOR 17 Pine LF 11 760 6.40 75 264.00 9.30 109 368.00 10.00 117 600.00 21 .00 246 960.00 21 .34 250 958.40 

4 Directional Bore No. 1 LS 1 13 585.00 13 585.00 3 ODO.DO 3 ODO.OD 18 950.00 18 950.00 25 ODO.OD 25 000.00 5 820.00 5 820.00 

5 Directional Bore No. 2 LS 1 4 560.00 4 560.00 3 ODO.OD 3 ODO.OD 6 800.00 6 800.00 11 ODO.OD 11 000.00 5 820.00 5 820.00 

6 Directional Bore No. 3 LS 1 2 575.00 2 575.00 3 ODO.DO 3 ODO.OD 4 800.00 4 800.00 10 000.00 10 000.00 5 820.00 5 820.00 

7 Directional Bore No. 4 LS 1 9 620.00 9 620.0D 21 ODO.OD 21 ODO.OD 12 100.0D 12 100.00 19 ODO.OD 19 000.00 5 820.00 5 820.00 

8 Directional Bore No. 5 LS 2 575.00 2 575.0D 3 ODO.OD 3 ODO.OD 4 750.00 4 750.00 10 ODO.OD 10 000.00 5 820.00 5 820.00 

9 Directional Bore No. 6 LS 10 940.00 10 940.00 3 ODO.OD 3 ODO.OD 13 250.00 13 250.00 21 ODO.DO 21 000.00 5 820.00 5 820.00 

10 Directional Bore No. 7 LS 7 420.00 7 420.0D 3 ODO.OD 3 ODO.OD 9 675.00 9 675.0D 16 000.00 16 000.00 5 820.0D 5 820.00 

11 Directional Bore No. 8 LS 16 950.00 16 950.0D 24 ODO.OD 24 ODO.OD 45 750.00 45 750.oo 49 ODO.OD 49 000.00 5 820.0D 5 820.00 

12 Bored & Jacked Casino for 3 .. & 4" Pice LF 40 95.00 3 80D.OD 128.0D 5 120.0D 110.00 4 400.0D 120.00 4 800.00 145.50 5 820.00 

13 Ooen Cut and Case for 6" Pioe LF 30 60.00 1 800.0D 55.00 1 650.0D 50.0D 1 500.0D 70.0D 2 100.00 82.45 2 473.50 

14 Ooen Cut and Case for 3" & 4" Pioe LF 350 60.0D 21 ODO.OD 42.0D 14 70D.OD 50.0D. 17 500.0D 70.00 24 500.00 82.45 28 857.50 

15 Free Bore - All Sizes LF 10D 30.00 3 ODO.OD 35.00 3 500.0D 30.0D 3 ODO.OD 60.00 6 000.00 106.70 10 670.00 

16 6" Gate Valve EA 1 125.00 1 125.00 1100.00 1100.0D 1 175.00 1175.00 825.00 825.00 824.50 824.50 

17 4" Gate Valve EA 17 1 000.00 17 000.00 920.00 15 640.00 950.00 16 150.00 700.00 11 900.00 776.00 13192.00 

18 3" Gate Valve EA 858.00 7 722.00 860.00 7 740.00 850.0D 7 650.00 660.00 5 940.00 727.50 6 547.50 

19 6" x 6" Sleeved Tie-In EA 575.0D 1150.0D 1 155.00 2 310.00 1150.0D 2 300.00 1 300.00 2 600.00 3 395.0D 6 790.00 

20 4" x 4" Sleeved Tie-In EA 500.00 1 500.0D 995.0D 2 985.0D 1150.0D 3 450.00 1 300.0D 3 900.00 3 201.0D 9 603.00 

21 3" x 3" Sleeved Tie-In EA 512.0D 2 048.0D 965.0D 3 860.00 850.0D 3 40D.OD 1 300.00 5 200.00 3 104.00 12 416 .00 

22 3" x 2" Sleeved Tie-In EA 600.00 600.0D 970.0D 970.0D 750.00 750.00 1 300.00 1 300.00 2 910.0D 2 910.00 

23 6" x 6" Taooina Sleeve and Valve EA 2 075.00 6 225.0D 3 035.00 9105.00 2 400.00 7 200.00 2 900.00 8 700.00 3 880.0D 11 640.00 

24 6" x 4" Taooino Sleeve and Va lve EA 1 850.00 7 400.00 2 750.0D 11 ODO.OD 2 ODO.OD 8 000.00 2 650.0D 10 600.00 3 686.00 14 744 .00 

25 4" x 4" Taooina Sleeve and Valve EA 1 730.00 8 650.0D 2 540.0D 12 70D.OD 1 900.00 9 500.0D 2 625.0D 13 125.00 3 492.00 17 460.00 

26 6" x 3" Taooina Sleeve and Valve EA 1 700.00 510D.OD 2 165.00 6 495.0D 1 900.00 5 70D.OD 2 600.0D 7 800.00 3 395.0D 10 185.00 

27 3" x 3" T aooino Sleeve and Valve EA 1 450.0D 5 800.0D 2 10D.OD 8 400.0D 1 750.0D 7 OD0.00 2 500.0D to 000.00 3 201 .0D 12 804 .00 

28 4" x 4" x 3" Tee Tie-In EA 690.00 690.0D 1130.0D 1130.0D 1 250.00 1 250.00 1 20D.OO 1 200.00 2 910.00 2 910.00 

29 Cut and Cao Ex. 6" Water Line EA 290.00 580.0D 715.0D 1 430.0D 1 ODO.OD 2 ODO.OD 1 OD0.00 2 000.00 1 455.0D 2 910.00 

30 Cut and Cao Ex. 4" Water Line EA 265.00 1 325.00 655.00 3 275.00 1 000.0D 5 000.00 1 000.00 5 000.00 1 455.00 7 275.00 

31 Cut and Cao Ex. 3" Water Line EA 800.00 2 400.00 650.00 1 950.00 900.00 2 700.00 1 000.00 3 000.00 1 455.00 4 365.00 

32 Cut and Cao Ex. 2" Water Line EA 256.00 512.00 645.00 1 290.00 800.00 1 600.00 1 000.00 2 000.00 1 455.0D 2 910 .00 

33 Cut and Cao Ex. 1" Water Line EA 105.00 210.0D 585.0D 1170.0D 700.00 1 400.00 1 000.00 2 000.00 1 455.0D 2 910.00 

34 4" Blow-Off Assemblv EA 1 350.0D 6 750.00 1 365.0D 6 825.0D 1 500.0D 7 500.0D 1 50D.OD 7 500.00 2 134.0D 10 670.00 

35 3" Blow-Orr Assemblv EA 16 1175.00 18 800.0D 1 265.00 20 240.0D 1 350.0D 21 600.0D 140D.OD 22 400.00 2 425.00 38 800.00 

36 New Meter Service EA 33 655.00 21 615.00 190.00 6 270.0D 775.00 25 575.00 700.00 23 100.00 776.00 25 608.00 

37 Reconnect Meter Service EA 144 372.00 53 568.00 400.00 57 600.0D 375.00 54 000.00 370.0D 53 280.00 664.45 95 680.80 

38 Relocate Meter Service EA 46 475.00 21 850.0D 220.00 10 120.00 500.00 23 000.00 400.00 18 400.00 776.00 35 696.00 

39 Reolacement Meter Set LS 37 555.00 20 535.0D 225.00 8 325.0D 60D.OO 22 20D.OD 70D.OD 25 900.00 664.45 24 584.65 

40 Leak Detection Meter LS 10 795.0D 7 950.0D 830.0D 8 300.00 1 500.0D 15 ODO.OD 80D.OD a 000.00 4 365.0D 43 650.00 

41 314" Service Tubina LF 10400 5.0D 52 ODO.OD 5.0D 52 ODO.OD 5.00 52 ODO.OD 10.0D 104 000.00 19.40 201 760.00 

42 Master Meter Settina LS 1660D.OO 1660D.OD 15 ODO.OD 15 ODO.OD 23 ODO.OD 23 ODO.OD 26 ODO.OD 26 000.00 6 305.0D 6 305.00 

43 Gravel - Miscellaneous as aooroved .TN 40D 21.00 8 40D.OO 5.0D 2 ODO.OD 25.0D 10 ODO.DO 25.0D 10 000.00 29. 10 11 640.00 

44 Air Release Valve EA 875.00 1 750.00 1 820.00 3 640.00 800.00 1 600.00 900.00 ' •• • """""' 2 716.00 5 432.00 

45 Pavement Reolacement 

45A Asohalt LF 2 000 3.25 6 500.00 33.00 66 000.00 25.00 58 200.00 

458 Concrete LF 500 68.00 34 000.00 34.00 17 000.00 30.00 14,550.00 

TOTAL BASE BIO $779,543.50 $931,892.00 $1,020,475.1111 -"-' .• $1 ,699,120.00 "• 'T $l!e57,637.30 

Denotes an anthmetic error was made on the Bids submitted. Values reported m the Bid Tabulation have been corrected based upon the umt pnce submitted. E ~., :• \t:DNANL~EI H \ - ~ 
The above is a true and complete tabulation of the Bids received by Cumberland Falls Highway Water District at their office located at 6926 Cumberland Falls Highway, : : : • 
Corbin, KYonJune1 , 2017at1 :30P.M. localTime. : • TAYLOR : : 

l -: .,, \ 11680 ; f!; E 
~ ~o. .· ,-:-f ~ 

~ /,. -""- / T -:. ;(\ ··.!ic,,..Ns~S>.·· ~ ~ ft::..- <R · ,._; -:0 ',{\. •. c;: •" r~ ~ 
-r~--;;:-==~z<:-c~--- ~ ''&n •• •••• ·•• ~V' ,, 

Date ,,,,, u'fONA\.. € ,,,, .. ,,,,.,. .. ,,,,,, 
F \PROJECTS\2008\200l234\Bld T& 



Part Ill - Budget Information 
Project Cost Summary 

Project Title: CFHWD Water Line Replacement and Reinforcement 

Project Budget: Estimated ..... 1 -..,........,....,...--------
en1erda1e 

As Bid ..... 1 -..,........,...,...1_-J_u_n-_17 __ _..... 
enter date 

DWSRF Funding Funding Funding Funding 
Cost Classification KIA Loan Source 1 Source 2 Source 3 Source 4 

1 Administrative Expenses 30,000 
2 Legal Expenses 25,000 
3 Land , Appraisals , Easements ~ ,:;-,~;...:~~---

4 Relocation Expense & Payments 

5 Planning 30,000 
6 Engineering Fees - Design 72,200 
7 Engineering Fees - Construction 14,400 
8 Engineering Fees - Inspection 47 ,500 
9 Engineering Fees - Other 10,000 
10 Construction 779,544 
11 Equipment 126,000 
12 Miscellaneous 100,000 
13 Contingencies 485,856 

Total 1,720,500 - - - -

Date 
Funding Sources Amount Committed Cost Categories 

1 Funding Source 1 -

2 Funding Source 2 - Treatment 

WRIS# WX: 21235002 

Revised I __ ....,.-____ __ 
enter date 

Funding Local Unfunded 
Source 5 Funds Costs 

2,500 

- 2,500 -

Funding 
Source 

3 Funding Source 3 - Transmission and Distribution DWSRF 

4 Funding Source 4 - Source 
5 Funding Source 5 - Storage 

Total - Purchase of Systems 
Restructuring 

Date Land Acquisition 
Local Funding Sources Amount Committed 

1 tap fees - CFHWD 2,500 5/21/2015 TOTAL COSTS 
2 
3 

Total 2,500 

Total Funding 1.123.ooo 

2 Revised 5/2006 

Total 
30,000 
25,000 

2,500 

-
30,000 
72 ,200 
14,400 
47,500 

10,000 
779,544 
126,000 
100,000 
485,856 

1,723,000 

Total Cost 

779,544 

779,544 



Cumberland Falls Highway Water District 
XXXII. PROPOSED OPERA TrNG BUDGET (WATER SYSTEM) 

(1st Full Year of Operation) Year Ending March 31, 2019 

A. Operating Income: 

Water Sales 
Disconnect/Reconnect/Late Charge Fees 
Other (Describe) 

Less Allowances and Deductions 

Total Operating Income 

B. Operation and Maintenance Expenses: 

$1 ,870,000 
63 ,000 

0 
( ) 

$1 ,933 ,000 

(Based on Uniform System of Accounts prescribed by National Association of 
Regulatory Utility Commissioners) 

Source of Supply Expense 
Pumping Expense 
Water Treatment Expense 
Transmission and Distribution Expense 
Customer Accounts Expense 
Administrative and General Expense 

Total Operating Expenses 

Net Operating Income 

C. Non-Operating Income: 

Interest on Deposits 
Other (Identify) 
Total Non-Operating Income 

D. Net Income 

E. Debt Repayment: 

Interest 
Principal 
Fees 

Total Debt Repayment 

F. Balance Available for Coverage 

1 
F:\PROJECTS\2006\2006234\psc subminal\operatingbudget - first full year.doc 

$580,000 
20,000 

2,000 
400,000 
225 ,000 
175,000 

$1 ,402,000 

$531 ,000 

$ 5,000 

$ 5,000 

$ 536,000 

$119,200 
128,000 

3,225 

$250,425 

$285,575 



Exhibit D 
Project Funding 

KIA Conditional Commitment Letter 
KIA Board Meeting Minutes November 5, 2015 

KIA Loan Resolution 
KIA Time Extension Approval Letter 

KIA Funding Application 
and 

KY Debt Officer Notification 



Telephone: (502) 227-7270 

State Local Debt Officer 

JOHN N. HUGHES 
Attorney at Law 

Professional Service Corporation 
124 West Todd Street 

Frankfort, Kentucky 40601 

Email: jnhughes@johnnhughespsc.com 

June 30, 2017 

1024 Capital Center Drive, Suite 340 
Frankfort, Kentucky 40601 

Re: Cumberland Falls Highway Water District 
Notice of Intent to Issue Securities 

Dear Officer: 

Pursuant to the regulations of the Kentucky Public Service Commission, specifically 807 
KAR 5:001: Section 18{1){g), the Cumberland Falls Highway Water District (the "District") 
notifies the State Local Debt Officer that the District intends to issue securities in the form of a 
state revolving loan from the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority (the "KIA") to fund a Water 
Main Replacement Project with an estimated budget of $1,720,500. 

We will file the appropriate documents with your office in accordance with the 
requirements of KRS 65.117 once the securities are issued. 

Very truly yours, 

The Cumberland Falls Highway Water 

District k 
ByJl:!:ug~& 

Attorney for the District 



KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 
1024 Capi tal Center Drive, Su ite 340 

Steven L. Beshear 
Governor 

November 16, 2015 

Frankfort, Kentucky 40601 
Phone (502) 573-0260 

Fax (502) 573-0 157 
ht tp://kia. ky.gov 

Cumberland Falls Highway Water District 
Attn : Jimmy Creekmore, Chairman 
6926 Cumberland Falls Highway 
Corbin , KY, 40701 

KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 
FEDERALLY ASSISTED DRINKING WATER REVOLVING LOAN FUND 

CONDITIONAL COMMITMENT LETTER (F16-002) 

Dear Chairman Creekmore: 

The Kentucky Infrastructure Authority ("the Authority") commends your efforts to 
improve public service facilities in your community. On November 5, 2015, the Authority 
approved your loan for the Waterline Replacement and Reinforcement project, subject 
to the conditions stated below. The total cost of the project shall not exceed $1,723,000 
of which the Authority loan shall provide $1 ,720,500 of the funding. Other anticipated 
funding for the project is reflected in Attachment A. The final loan amount will be equal 
to the Authority's portion of estimated project cost applied to the actual project cost. 
Attachment A incorporated herein by reference fully describes the project. 

An Assistance Agreement will be executed between the Authority and the Cumberland 
Falls Highway Water District upon satisfactory performance of the conditions set forth in 
this letter. You must meet the conditions set forth in this letter and enter into an 
Assistance Agreement by November 16, 2016 (twelve months from the date of this 
letter) . A one-time extension of up to six months may be granted for applicants that 
experience extenuating circumstances. Funds will be available for disbursement only 
after execution of the Assistance Agreement. Systems that lack the technical , financial, 
and managerial capability to ensure compliance with the requirements of 401 KAR 
Chapter 8 and the Safe Drinking Water Act , may not enter into an Assistance 
Agreement with the Authority, unless the assistance will ensure compliance and the 
owners or operators of the system agree to undertake feasible and appropriate changes 
in operations to ensure compliance over the long-term . 

KentuckyU n brid ledS pi r it.com An Equal Opportun ity Employer M/F/D 



Chairman Creekmore 
November 16, 2015 
Page 2 

The Assistance Agreement and this commitment shall be subject, but not limited to, the 
following terms: 

1. The Authority project loan shall not exceed $1 ,720,500. 

2. The loan shall contain principal forgiveness in the amount of 25 percent, 
but not to exceed $430, 125. Amortized loan and forgiveness amounts 
will be based on actual project costs drawn from the Authority. 

3. The loan shall bear interest at the rate of 0.75 percent per annum 
commencing with the first draw of funds. 

4. Interest shall be payable on the unforgiven amount of actual funds 
received . The first payment shall be due on June 1, or December 1, 
immediately succeeding the date of the initial draw of funds, provided that 
if such June 1, or December 1, shall be less than three months since the 
date of the initial draw of funds , then the first interest payment date shall 
be the June 1, or December 1, which is at least six months from the date 
of the initial draw of funds. Interest payments will be due each six months 
thereafter until the loan is repaid. 

5. Full principal payments will commence on the appropriate June 1, or 
December 1, within twelve months from initiation of operation. Full 
payments will be due each six months thereafter until the loan is repaid. 

6. The loan shall be repaid over a period not to exceed 20 years from the 
date of initiation of operation for the project. 

7. A loan servicing fee of 0.25% of the annual outstanding loan balance shall 
be payable to the Authority as a part of each interest payment. 

8. Loan funds will only be disbursed after execution of the Assistance 
Agreement as project costs are incurred. 

9. The Authority loan funds must be expended within six months of the 
official date of initiation of operation. 

10. Fund "F" loan funds may be considered to be federal funds . OMB Circular 
A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments and Non-Profit 
Organizations, requires that all recipients and subrecipients expending 
$500,000 or more in a year in federal awards must have a single or 
program-specific audit conducted for that year in accordance with the 
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Circular. If the federal amount expended plus all other federal funds 
expended exceeds the threshold, you are required to arrange for an A-133 
audit to be performed by an independent, licensed CPA, or in special 
cases, the Auditor of Public Accounts of the Commonwealth of Kentucky. 
Please note that the guidance for single audit requirements changed for 
calendar or fiscal years beginning after December 26, 2014. Please 
consult with your independent auditor as soon as possible to understand 
how the changes will affect you . 

11. The Authority requires an annual financial audit be provided for the life of 
the loan. 

12. The final Assistance Agreement must be approved by ordinance or 
resolution, as applicable , of the city council or appropriate governing 
board. 

The following is a list of the standard conditions to be satisfied prior to execution of the 
Assistance Agreement or incorporated in the Assistance Agreement. Any required 
documentation must be submitted to the party designated. 

1. The Authority to Award (bid) package must be submitted to the Division of 
Water for approval within 14 days of bid opening. 

2. The Assistance Agreement must be executed within six (6) months from 
bid opening . 

3. Documentation of final funding commitments from all parties other than 
the Authority as reflected in the credit analysis shall be provided prior to 
preparation of the Assistance Agreement and disbursement of the loan 
monies. Rejections of any anticipated project funding shall be 
immediately reported and may cause this loan to be subject to further 
consideration . 

4. The loan must undergo review by the Capital Projects and Bond Oversight 
Committee of the Kentucky Legislature prior to the State's execution of the 
Assistance Agreement. The committee meets monthly on the third 
Tuesday. Any special conditions listed in Attachment A must be satisfied 

. before the project is presented before the Committee. 

5. Any required adjustment in utility service rates shall be adopted by 
ordinance, municipal order or resolution by the appropriate governing 
body of the Borrower. Public hearings as required by law shall be held 
prior to the adoption of the service rate ordinance, order, or resolution . 
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Any required approvals by the Kentucky Public Service Commission shall 
be obtained. 

6. The Borrower must complete and return the attached "Authorization for 
Electronic Deposit of Vendor Payment" form to the Authority. 

7. Documentation of Clearinghouse Endorsement and Clearinghouse 
Comments. 

8. Prior to project bid, an environmental review shall be conducted by the 
Division of Water for all construction projects receiving DWSRF funds. 

9. Technical plans and specifications and a complete DWSRF specifications 
checklist shall be approved by the Division of Water prior to project bid. 

10. All easements or purchases of land shall be completed prior to 
commencement of construction. Clear Site Certification of all land or 
easement acquisitions shall be provided to the Division of Water. DOW 
representatives shall be notified for attendance of the pre-construction 
conference. 

11. Project changes or additions deviating from the original scope of work 
described in the Project Profile may require a new or amended 
environmental review and change order review before they can be 
included in the DWSRF loan project. 

12. Applicant must provide certification from their legal counsel stating that 
they have prepared construction specifications in accordance with all 
applicable state or federal wage rate laws, and that the procurement 
procedures, including those for construction, land, equipment and 
professional services that are a part of the project, are in compliance with 
applicable federal, state and local procurement laws. 

13. Implement the Kentucky Uniform System of Accounting (KUSoA), or an 
alternative approved by the Authority and assure that rates and charges 
for services are based upon the cost of providing such service. 

14. The Borrower shall comply with all Davis Bacon related monitoring and 
reporting and require all contractors to pay wages pursuant to applicable 
prevailing wage rates (federal or state) for all work relating to the subject 
Project. 

15. The project shall comply with the reporting requirements of the 
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Transparency Act, and shall complete the attached Transparency Act 
Reporting Information Form and provide to the Authority no later than 30 
days after the KIA Board approval date of your loan. 

16. If the project has a "Green Reserve" component, the Borrower must 
submit a Business Case, if required. 

17. Based on the final "as-bid" project budget, the Borrower must provide 
satisfactory proof, based on then existing conditions, that the revenue 
projections in the attached descriptions are still obtainable and that the 
projections of operating expenses have not materially changed. The "as 
bid" project budget shall be reviewed and approved by the consulting 
engineer. 

18. The project shall comply with American Iron and Steel requirements of 
The Consolidated Appropriations Act of 2014 (H.R. 3547), which became 
effective January 17, 2014, unless engineering plans and specifications 
were approved by the Division of Water prior to the effective date. 

Any special conditions stated in Attachment A must be resolved . 

Please inform the Authority ·of any changes in your financing plan as soon as possible. 
We wish you every success for this project which will benefit both your community and 
the Commonwealth as a whole. 

Sincerely, 

~} 
Amanda Yeary 
Kentucky Infrastructure Authority 

Attachments 

cc: Timothy M Schwendeman, Cumberland Valley Area Development District 
Les Moses, Cumberland Falls Highway Water District 
Kenneth Taylor, PE, Kenvirons, Inc. 
Dirk Bedarff, Peck, Shaffer & Williams LLP 
Borrower File - Cumberland Falls Highway Water District - F16-002 
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Please sign and return a copy of this letter indicating your acceptance of this 
commitment and its terms. Also attach the completed "Authorization for Electronic 
Deposit of Vendor Payment" Form. 

Date 



AUTHORIZATION FOR ELECTRONIC DEPOSIT 
OF BORROWER PAYMENT 

KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 
(FUND F16·002) 

Borrower Information: 

Name: Cumberland Falls Highway Water District 

Address: 6926 Cumberland Falls Highway 

City: Corbin 

Federal l.D. # 

-----State: KY Zip:--.:.4.::..07:...:0::..:1'-------

------Telephone:~ 

Financial Institution Information: 

Bank Name: Cumberland Valley National Bank 

Branch: Phone No: 606-528-.3120 -------------
City: J.andap State: .KL. Zip: 40743 

Transit I ABA No.:=-.'------

Account Number: 

I, the undersigned, authorize payments directly to the account indicated above and to 
correct any errors which may occur from the transactions. I also authorize the Financial 
Institution to post these transactions to that account. 

Signature: d:z,: z ~~J ;£ !3'1-1·1:-zc 
~ / 

Name Pr.~nted: Jimmy Creekmore 

Please return completed form to: 

Date: 11-24-15 

Job Title: Chairman 

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority 
1024 Capital Center Drive, Suite 340 
Frankfort, KY 40601 
phone: 502-573-0260 
fax: 502-573-0157 



TRANSPARENCY ACT REPORTING INFORMATION FORM 

CLEAN WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND 
AND 

DRINKING WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND 

This form is required for projects funded in whole or in part from the Clean Water State Revolving 
Fund or the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund. This form is to be completed and returned with the 
signed Conditional Commitment Letter from the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority. · 

Borrower Information: 

Name: 
Data Universal Numberin s stem <PUNS No.*: ,. :. 
KIA Loan Number: 
Street Address 
City, State and Zip 
Zi must include 4 di it extension 

*If the DUNS No. provided above is registered under a different name than the recipient of 
funding, please provide the registration name below: 

I DUNS Name · •u11P. 

*If the recipient has not yet obtained a DUNS Number, please do so no later than 30 days after 
the KIA Board approval date of your loan request and provide notification to KIA of the number 
once issued. For instructions on DUNS registration , please contact jeff.abshire@ky.gov. 

Physical Location of Project (Primary Place of Performance) 

Street Address 
City, State and Zip 
.Zi must include 4 di it extension 

Federal Congressional District(s) of Project 
Location 

.69·z~,,~ij~_J~K"!:'.4- ,:,-~g~r:::~1~:~xt,-.;,:;:;:z~~-', 

=~~t1~~~1~~~~~i~~~~~J.~r:; 

Reliance upon Federal Assistance (please answer the below questions Yes or No): 

Did recipient receive 80% or more of its annual gross revenues from Federal 
procurement contracts (and subcontracts) and Federal financial assistance subject 
to the Transparency Act, as defined at 2 CFR 170.320 (and subawards) during the 
last fiscal year? 
Did recipient receive $25 million or more in annual gross revenues from Federal 
procurement contracts (and subcontracts) and Federal financial assistance subject 
to the Transparency Act, as defined at 2 CFR 170.320 (and subawards) during the 
last fiscal year? 
Does the public have access to compensation of senior.executives of the recipient 
through periodic reports filed under Section 13A or 15D of the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934 or Section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986? 

DUNS Registration Information: http://fedqov.dnb.com/webform OR 1-866-705-5711 

Registration can be completed over the phone or via the web. Phone registration requests 
take approximately 1 O minutes and are free. Internet requests are fulfilled within 24 hours. 



ATTACHMENT A 

Cumberland Falls Highway Water District 
F16-002 



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY Reviewer Sarah Aitken 
KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY Date .5. 2015 
FUND F, FEDERALLY ASSISTED DRINKING WATER KIA Loan Number 
REVOLVING LOAN FUND WRIS Number 002 

BORROWER CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 
WHITLEY COUNTY 

BRIEF DESCRIPTION 

The project will replace approximately 39,500 LF of waterline due to undersized lines and continuous leak repairs. In add ition, 
extensions of the distribution system will be made totaling 17,200 LF which will serve approximately 20 additional users. The 
District will reinforce 3,200 LF of waterline, relocate approximately 500 LF of waterline, and replace the master meter. Lastly, the 
project includes replacement of the remaining conventional meters with new radio read meters_ and upgrades to the radio based 
SCADA system. 

PROJECT FINANCING PROJECT BUDGET · RD Fee% Actual% 

Fund F Loan $1,720,500 Administrative Expenses $36,500 
Local Funds 2,500 Legal Expenses 25,000 

Land , Easements 2,500 
Planning 10,000 
Eng - Design I Const 8.6% 8.0% 100,000 
Eng - lnsp 5.4% 5.0% 63,000 
Eng - Other 10,000 
Construction 1, 150,000 
Equipment 126,000 
Contingency 100,000 
Other 100,000 

TOTAL $1 ,723,000 TOTAL $1,723,000 

REPAYMENT Rate 0.75% Est. Annual Payment $72,825 
Term 20 Years 1st Payment 6 Mo. after first draw 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES Engineer Kenvirons , Inc. 
Bond Counsel Peck, Shaffer, & Williams, a division of Dinsmore & Shohl , LLP 

PROJECT SCHEDULE Bid Opening Feb-16 
Construction Start Apr-16 
Construction Stop Jan-17 

DEBT PER CUSTOMER Existing $691 
Proposed $1 ,060 

OTHER DEBT See Attached 

OTHER ST ATE-FUNDED PROJECTS LAST 5 YRS See Attached 

RESIDENTIAL RA TES Users Avg . Bill 
Current 3,174 $47.40 (for 4,000 gallons) 
Add itional 20 

REGIONAL COORDINATION This project is consistent with reg ional planning recommendations. 

I Cash Flow Before I Cash Flow After Debt Service I CASH FLOW Debt Service Debt Service Coveraqe Ratio 
Audited 2013 282,414 143,997 138,417 2.0 
Audited 2014 254, 138 144,266 109,872 1.8 
Proj ected 2015 406,250 143,401 262,849 2.8 
Projected 2016 577,587 164,244 413,343 3.5 
Projected 2017 544 ,469 200,537 343,933 2.7 
Projected 2018 515,075 249,242 265,833 2.1 
Projected 2019 485,093 249,624 235,469 1.9 
Projected 2020 454,511 250,086 204,425 1.8 



Reviewer: Sarah Aitken 
Date: ~er 5, 2015 

Loan Number: -

KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 
DRINKING WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND (FUND "F") 

CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT, WHITLEY COUNTY 
PROJECT REVIEW 

WX21235002 

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The Cumberland Falls Highway Water District is requesting a Fund "F" loan in the 
amount of $1 , 720,500 for the CFHWD - Line Replacement and Reinforcement project. 
The project will replace approximately 39,500 LF of waterline due to undersized lines 
and continuous leak repairs. In addition, extensions of the distribution system will be 
made totaling 17,200 LF which will serve approximately 20 additional users. The District 
will reinforce 3,200 LF of waterline , relocate approximately 500 LF of waterline , and 
replace the master meter. Lastly, the project includes replacement of the remaining 
conventional meters with new radio read meters and upgrades to the radio based 
SCADA system. 

The District provides services for Whitley County. The District purchases water from 
Corbin Utilities Commission, West Laurel Water Association, and Williamsburg 
Municipal WTP. 

II. PROJECT BUDGET 

Administrative Expenses 
Legal Expenses 
Land, Easements 
Planning 
Engineering Fees - Design I Const 
Engineering Fees - Inspection 
Engineering Fees - Other 
Construction 
Equipment 
Contingency 
Other 
Total 

Total 
$ 36,500 

25,000 
2,500 

10,000 
.100,000 

63,000 
10,000 

1,150,000 
126,000 
100,000 
100,000 

$ 1,723,000 



Ill. PROJECT FUNDING 

Amount 
Fund F Loan $ 1,720,500 
Local Funds 2,500 
Total $ 1,723,000 

IV. KIA DEBT SERVICE 

Construction Loan 
Less: Principal Forgiveness (25%) 
Amortized Loan Amount 
Interest Rate 
Loan Term (Years) 
Estimated Annual Debt Service 
Administrative Fee (0 .25%) 
Total Estimated Annual Debt Service 

V. PROJECT SCHEDULE 

Bid Opening : 
Construction Start: 
Construction ·Stop: 

VI. RATE STRUCTURE 

A) Customers 

February 2016 
April 2016 
January 2017 

% 

100% 
0% 

100% 

$ 1,720,500 
430, 125 

$ 1,290,375 
0.75% 

20 
$ 69,599 

3,226 
$ 72,825 

Customers Current Proposed Total 
Residential 
Commercial 
Industrial 
Institutional 
Total 

B) Rates 

Date of Last Rate Increase 
First 1 ,'ooo Gallons 
Over 1,000 Gallons per 1,000 
Gallons 
Cost for 4,000 gallons 
Increase% 
Affordability Index (Rate/MHI) 

3, 114 
56 
4 

31 
3,205 

Current 
06/01/15 

$21 .18 
8.74 

$47.40 
22 .0% 

2.1% 

20 
0 
0 
0 

20 

3,134 
56 
4 

31 
3,225 

Prior 
03/22/12 

$17 .36 
7.16 

$38 .84 



VII. DEMOGRAPHICS 

Based on current Census data from the American Community Survey 5-Year Estimate 
2009-2013, the District's service area population was 8,953 with a Median Household 
Income (MHI) of $27,721. The median household income for the Commonwealth is 
$43,036 . The project will qualify for a 0.75% interest rate because the District's service 
area MHI is below 80% of the State's MHI. 

County 
Population Unemployment 

Year City % Change County % Change Date Rate 

1980 8,075 33,396 June 2004 6.4% 

1990 7,419 -8 .1% 33,326 -0.2% June 2009 11 .9% 

2000 7,742 4.4% 35,865 7.6% June 2013 10.0% 

2010 7,304 -5 .7% 35,637 -0.6% June 2014 9.3% 

Current 7,305 0.0% 35,718 0.2% 

Cumulative % -9 .5% 7.0% 

VIII. 2010 CAPITALIZATION GRANT EQUIVALENCIES 

1) Green Project Reserve - The Drinking Water capitalization grant does not contain a 
"green" requirement. 

2) Additional Subsidization - This project qualifies for additional subsidization in the 
amount of $430, 125. 

IX. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (See Exhibit 1) 

Financial information was obtained from the audited financial statements for the years 
ended December 31, 2012 through 2014. Percentage references in the History section 
below are based on whole dollar amounts and not the rounded amounts presented . 

HISTORY 

Revenues increased 3% from $1.57 million in 2012 to $1 .63 million in 2014 due to a 
previously approved rate increase. Operating expenses decreased 7% from $805,876 
in 2012 to $754,469 in 2014 as result of a decrease in District staff. The debt coverage 
ratio was 1.2, 2.0 and 1.8 for 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively. The balance sheet 
reflects a current ratio of 17.0, a debt to equity ratio of 0.6 and the number of months of 
operating expenses in unrestricted cash is 3.9. 

PROJECTIONS 

Projections are based on the following assumptions: 

1) Revenues will increase approximately 11 % in 2015 and 2016 to account for the 
22% rate increase effective March 22, 2015, and will remain flat thereafter. 

2) Operating expenses will increase 2% annually for inflation . 



3) Debt coverage ratio will be 2. 7 in 2017 when principal and interest repayments 
begin. 

Based on the proforma assumptions, the District shows adequate cash flow to repay 
the KIA Fund F loan . 

REPLACEMENT RESERVE 

The annual replacement cost is $4 ,300. This amount should be added to the 
replacement account each December 1 until the balance reaches $43,000 and 
maintained for the life of the loan . 

X. DEBT OBLIGATIONS 
Outstanding 

Waterworks Revenue Bond , Series 1996 
Waterworks Revenue Bond, Series 2001 
Waterworks Revenue Bond , Series 2007 
RD , 2015 

$ 549,037 
420,949 

1,271 ,054 
803,000 

$ 3,044,040 Total 

XI. OTHER STATE OR FEDERAL FUNDING IN PAST FIVE YEARS 

Project Title Funding Source Amount 
US 25 Transmission Main and Pump USDA RD 1,200,00 

XII. CONTACTS 

Legal Applicant 
Entity Name 

Authorized Official 

County 

Email 

Phone 

Address 

Applicant Contact 

Name 

Organization 

Email 

Phone 

Address 

Cumberland Falls Highway Water District 

Jimmy Creekmore (Chairman) 

Whitley 

cfhwd@yahoo.com 

606-528-0222 

6926 Cumberland Falls Highway 

Corbin , KY 40701 

Les Moses 

Cumberland Falls Highway Water District 

cfhwd@yahoo.com 

606-528-0222 

6926 Cumberland Falls Highway 

Corbin, KY 40701 

Maturity 
2035 
2041 
2044 
2055 

Type 
Loan/Grant 



Project Administrator 

Name 

Organization 

Email 

Phone 

Address 

Consulting Engineer 

PE Name 

Firm Name 

Email 

Phone 

Address 

XIII. RECOMMENDATIONS 

Timothy M Schwendeman 

Cumberland Valley Area Development District 
• 

timsch@cvadd.org 

606-864-7391 

342 Old Whitley Road 

London , KY 40744 

Kenneth Taylor, PE 

Kenvirons , Inc. 

ktaylor@kenvirons .com 

502-695-4357 

452 Versailles Road 

Frankfort, KY 40601 

KIA staff recommends approval of the loan with the standard conditions. 



CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT (WATER FUND) 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY (DECEMBER YEAR END) 

Aud ited Audited Audited Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Balance Sheet 

Assets 

Current Assets 1,084,506 1, 149.437 1,175,799 1,244,032 1,344,100 1.412,687 1.466,054 1,513,147 1,554,032 

Other Assets 5,602,926 5.461 ,595 5,362,769 5,334,696 7,149,999 7,143,696 7,074,917 6,961 ,645 6,663,936 

Total 6,667.434 6,631 ,032 6,536,568 6,578,728 6.494,099 8,556,565 8,540,971 6,494,993 8.417,971 

Liabilities & Equity 

Current liabilities 48,566 64 ,808 69,268 71 ,577 73,892 68,714 92,042 95,377 84,718 

Long Term liabilities 2,365,055 2,321 ,719 2,280,669 2,231,669 3.471,044 3.405,544 3,337,044 3,265,544 3,205,044 

Total liabilities 2.413,623 2,366,527 2,349,937 2,303,246 3,544,936 3.494,256 3.429,086 3,360,921 3,269,762 

Net Assets 4,273,811 4,244 ,505 4 ,188,651 4,275.462 4,949,163 5,062,327 5, 111,665 5,134,072 5,128,209 

Cash Flow 

Revenues 1,577,498 1,590,790 1,634,631 1,81 4,441 2,014,030 2,014,030 2,014 ,030 2,014,030 2,014,030 

Operating Expenses 1.411 ,136 1,313,871 1,384,925 1.412,623 1.440,875 1.473,993 1,503,367 1,533,369 1,563,951 

Other Income 6,484 5,495 4,432 4,432 4,432 4.432 4,432 4 ,432 4.432 

Cash Flow Before Debt Service 172,846 282.414 254 ,138 406,250 577,587 544,469 515,075 485,093 454,511 

Debt Service 

Existing Debt Service 143,345 143,997 144 ,266 143,401 164,244 164,124 176.417 176,799 177,261 

Proposed KIA Loan 0 0 0 0 0 36.413 72,625 72,625 72,825 

Total Debt Service 143,345 143,997 144,266 143.401 164 ,244 200,537 249,242 249,624 250,086 

Cash Flow After Debt Service 29,501 136.417 109,872 262,649 413,343 343,933 265,833 235.469 204.425 

Ratios 

Current Ratio 22.3 17.7 17.0 17.4 16.2 15.9 15.9 15.9 18.3 

Debt to Equity 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 

Days Sales in Accounts Receivable 33.2 33.0 31 .7 31.7 31 .8 31.8 31.8 31.6 31 .8 

Months Operating Expenses in Unrestricted Cash 3.1 3.9 3.9 4 .3 4 .9 5.4 5.7 5.9 6.1 

Debt Coverage Ratio 1.2 2.0 1.8 2.8 3.5 2.7 2.1 1.9 1.6 

10/27/2015 8:41 AM. FinancialsPresentation 
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KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 
Minutes of the Full Board 

Meeting Date/Location: November 5, 2015 -1 :00 p.m. 
Kentucky Infrastructure Authority 
1024 Capital Center Drive, Suite 340, Frankfort 

Members present: 
Mr. Tony Wilder, Commissioner, Department for Local Government 
Ms. Pamela Trautner, Finance and Administration Cabinet 

(Proxy for Se.cretary Lori H. Flanery, FAC) 
Ms. Lona Brewer, Energy and Environment Cabinet 

(Proxy for Secretary Leonard K. Peters, EEC) 
Mr. John Fischer, Economic Development Cabinet 

(Proxy for Secretary Larry Hayes, EDC) 
Mr. Jeff Derouen, Executive Director, Public SeNice Commission 
Mr. C. Ronald Lovan , representing the American Water Works Association 
Ms. Linda C. Bridwell , representing for-profit private water companies 
Mr. Paul Lashbrooke, representing the Kentucky Rural Water Association 
Mr. David W . Cartmell , Mayor, City of Maysville, representing the Kentucky League of Cities 

Members absent: 
Mr. Jody Jenkins, Union County Judge Executive, representing the Kentucky Association of 
Counties 
Mr. Martin T. Ivy, representing the Kentucky Municipal Utilities Association 

Guests: 
Mr. Jory Becker, Division of Water 
Mr. John Brady, Office of Financial Management 
Ms. Denise Pitts, Office of Financial Management 
Mr. Roger Recktenwald , Kentucky Association of Counties 
Ms. Lisa Wilson-Plajer, Kenvirons 
Mr. Phil Meador, Kenvirons 
Mr. Grondall Potter, Utility Management Group for Mountain Water District 
Mr. Benny Hamilton , Perry County Fiscal Court 
Mr. Mike Sanford , Mercer County Sanitation District 
Mr. Dennis Keene, Kentucky State Representative, District 67 
Ms. Betsy Laski , Bluegrass Area Development District 
Mr. Jim Adams, Lincoln County Judge Executive 
Mr. Ron Johnson, R. M. Johnson Engineering , Inc. 
Mr. Tim Schwendeman, Cumberland Valley Area Development District 
Mr. Les Moses, Cumberland Falls Highway Water District 
Mr. Ken Taylor, Kenvirons , Inc. 
Mr. Bill Payne, Lincoln County Sanitation District 
Ms. Annette Dupont-Ewing , Kentucky Municipal Association 
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Kentucky Infrastructure Authority 
Minutes of the Full Board - Regular Meeting - November 5, 2015 

PROCEEDINGS 

Chairman Tony Wilder called the meeting of the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority (KIA) 
Board to order. Commissioner Wilder confirmed that a quorum was present and that the 
press had been notified regarding the meeting. The Commissioner asked board 
members and guests to introduce themselves. 

I. BUSINESS (Board Action Required) 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
For: KIA Regular Board Meeting of October 1, 2015 

Mr. Jeff Derouen asked for one correction to the Minutes, he wanted it noted that the 
Executive Committee Session was called to address personnel matters. As previously 
noted, no action was taken at the time. 

Mr. Jeff Derouen moved to approve the Minutes of the October 1, 2015, regular 
board meeting. Ms. Linda Bridwell seconded, and the motion carried 
unanimously. 

NEW PROJECTS/ACTION ITEMS 

1. A RESOLUTION AND ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE KENTUCKY 
INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY AUTHORIZING AN AMENDMENT TO THE 
CONDITIONAL COMMITMENT FOR A FEDERALLY ASSISTED CLEAN WATER 
REVOLVING FUND A LOAN (A13-020) INCREASING THE AMOUNT TO $4,365,793 TO 
THE LINCOLN COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT, LINCOLN COUNTY, KENTUCKY 

Mr. Jory Becker, DOW, and Ms. Jami Johnson, KIA discussed the Lincoln County 
Sanitation District's request for a $2,365,793 increase to a Fund A loan that was 
previously approved on June 19, 2013 for $2,000,000 for the Phase 1 Sewer Project. 
After the original project was approved, at the request of Department of Local 
Government, the District expanded the scope of the project to serve a portion of the 
City of Hustonville (labeled Hustonville-Phase 1A Sewer Project), including the 
Hustonville Elementary School. All portions (Phase 1 and Phase 1A) of the project will 
served a total of 593 unserved customers in the US 127 Corridor. The District has 
agreements with both the City of Danville for the treatment of wastewater and City of 
Hustonville for operations and maintenance. The original project description is below: 

This project will provide wastewater collection and treatment to approximately 445 
unserved residential and commercial customers in the western portion of Lincoln 
County. The area includes US 127 south of Junction City and proceeding to the 
Moreland area. Current waste disposal methods consist of septic tanks and straight 
pipes which results in the discharge of raw sewage and septic tank effluent to the 
ground surface. 

The District was established on May 10, 2011 by the Lincoln County Fiscal Court. The 
District is governed by five directors who are appointed by the County Judge Executive 
and approved by the fiscal court. Connection to the public wastewater system is 
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mandatory within four months of the date that a property owner is notified that service 
is available. 

Ms. Linda Bridwell made the motion to amend the Fund A loan (A13-020) in the 
amount of $4,365, 793 to the Lincoln County Sanitation District with the standard 
conditions. Ms. Lona Brewer seconded and the motion was unanimously 
approved. 

2. A RESOLUTION AND ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE KENTUCKY 
INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY AUTHORIZING ISSUANCE OF A CONDITIONAL 
COMMITMENT FOR A FEDERALLY ASSISTED CLEAN WATER REVOLVING FUND A 
LOAN (A16-004) IN THE AMOUNT OF $848,000 TO THE MERCER COUNTY 
SANITATION DISTRICT, MERCER COUNTY, KENTUCKY 

Mr. Jory Becker, DOW, and Ms. Brandi Norton, KIA, discussed the Mercer County 
Sanitation District's request for a Fund "A" loan in the amount of $848,000 for the 
Kennedy Bridge Road Sanitary Sewer Improvements project. The project will install 
new sanitary sewer collection mains which will be extended from an existing system in 
Chimney Rock. The areas to receive new sewer service include 1599 Kennedy Bridge 
Road, a mobile home park consisting of 25 lots and Maple Hill Subdivision consisting 
of 9 single family homes currently served by onsite septic systems and an apartment 
complex located at 1603 Kennedy Bridge Road, consisting of 15 residential apartment 
units served by an onsite septic system. 

The project scope includes the construction of approximately 2,000 linear feet of 8" 
gravity sewer main and 1,000 linear feet of 3" sewer force main. The existing collection 
system is connected to a privately owned package treatment plant. The KPDES permit 
for the plant indicates that capacity is available to provide treatment for additional 
properties located in the vicinity of the plant. The plant discharge is currently in 
compliance, but the plant is aging and requires renovation to maintain reliable 
operation, therefore the scope will include an upgrade to the existing package 
treatment plant. This upgrade will include new structure and new equipment. The 
project would eliminate approximately 35 aged and inadequate onsite septic systems, 
eliminate infiltration of sewage to the Herrington Lake watershed and protect the health 
of the citizens that reside in the three unserved areas. 

The Mercer County Sanitation District provides sewer service to 211 households within 
Mercer County. 

Ms. Linda Bridwell made the motion to approve the Fund A loan (A16-004) in the 
amount of $848,000 to the Mercer County Sanitation District with the standard 
conditions along with the following special condition: The Mercer County 
Sanitation District shall increase sewer rates sufficient to generate an additional 
$30,000 in cash flow effective no later than July 1, 2017. Ms. Pamela Trautner 
seconded and the motion was unanimously approved. 

Page 3 of 8 



Kentucky Infrastructure Authority 
Minutes of the Full Board - Regular Meeting - November 5, 2015 

The three following resolutions for the Prestonsburg Utility Commission were taken under 
consideration together: 

3. A RESOLUTION AND ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE KENTUCKY 
INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY AUTHORIZING ISSUANCE OF A CONDITIONAL 
COMMITMENT FOR A FEDERALLY ASSISTED CLEAN WATER REVOLVING FUND 
LOAN (A 16-003) IN THE AMOUNT OF $2,033,200 TO THE CITY OF PRESTONSBURG 
FOR THE BENEFIT OF PRESTONSBURG UTILITY COMMISSION, FLOYD COUNTY, 
KENTUCKY 

Mr. Jory Becker, DOW, and Ms. Brandi Norton, KIA, discussed the City of 
Prestonsburg , for the benefit of the Prestonsburg Utility Commission's request a Fund 
"A" loan in the amount of $2,033,200 for the Stephens Branch and Lower Abbott Sewer 
Line Extension project. The project will provide sanitary sewer service to the Stephens 
Branch and Lower Abbott Creek communities. Both areas will be served by a pressure 
sewer system with instillation of nearly 32,000 linear feet of force main pipe ranging in 
1.5 to 3 inches. In addition , 180 individual grinder stations will be installed as well as 
two lift stations and the additional appurtenances to complete both systems. This 
project will eliminate the failing Music Manor package treatment plant. 

The Prestonsburg Utility Commission provides sewer services to 3,571 households 
within Floyd County. 

A RESOLUTION AND ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE KENTUCKY 
INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY AUTHORIZING ISSUANCE OF A CONDITIONAL 
COMMITMENT FOR A FEDERALLY ASSISTED CLEAN WATER REVOLVING FUND 
LOAN (A16-007) IN THE AMOUNT OF $2,163,000 TO THE CITY OF PRESTONSBURG 
FOR THE BENEFIT OF PRESTONSBURG UTILITY COMMISSION, FLOYD COUNTY, 
KENTUCKY 

Mr. Jory Becker, DOW, and Ms. Brandi Norton, KIA, discussed the City of 
Prestonsburg , for the benefit of the Prestonsburg Utility Commission's request a Fund 
"A" loan in the amount of $2 , 163,000 for the US 23 Banner Community Sewer System 
project. The project will provide sanitary sewer service to the US 23 corridor and Lower 
Daniels Creek community. Both areas will be served by a pressure sewer system with 
instillation of nearly 32,000 linear feet of force main pipe ranging in 1.5 to 3 inches. 
Additionally, 175 individual grinder stations will be installed as well as an upgrade to 
the Dwale lift station. This project will eliminate the failing Eastern Heights Motel 
package treatment plant. 

A RESOLUTION AND ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE KENTUCKY 
INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY AUTHORIZING ISSUANCE OF A CONDITIONAL 
COMMITMENT FOR A FEDERALLY ASSISTED CLEAN WATER REVOLVING FUND 
LOAN (A16-028) IN THE AMOUNT OF $1,952,900 TO THE CITY OF PRESTONSBURG 
FOR THE BENEFIT OF PRESTONSBURG UTILITY COMMISSION, FLOYD COUNTY, 
KENTUCKY 

Mr. Jory Becker, DOW, and Ms. Brandi Norton, KIA, discussed the City of 
Prestonsburg for the benefit of the Prestonsburg Utility Commission's request a Fund 
"A" loan in the amount of $1 ,952 ,900 for the KY 1428 and Stonecrest project. The 
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project will provide sanitary sewer service to the KY 1428 and Stonecrest communities. 
Both areas will be served by a pressure sewer system with instillation of nearly 22 ,000 
linear feet of force main pipe ranging in 1.5 to 6 inches. In addition, 150 individual 
grinder stations will be installed as well as an 80 GPM lift station and the additional 
appurtenances to complete both systems. This project will eliminate the failing Allen 
Elementary package treatment plant. 

Mr. Paul Lashbrooke made the motion to approve the Fund A loan (A 16-003) in 
the amount of $2,033, 200, Fund A Loan (A16-007) in the amount of $2, 163,000 
and Fund A Loan (A16-028) in the amount of $1,952,900 to the City of 
Prestonsburg with the standard conditions and the following special condition: 
The City of Prestonsburg for the benefit of the Prestonsburg Utility Commission 
shall increase sewer rates sufficient to generate an additional $80,000 in cash 
flow effective no later than July 1, 2017. Mr. Ron Lovan seconded and the 
motion was unanimously approved. 

4. A RESOLUTION AND ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE KENTUCKY 
INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY AUTHORIZING ISSUANCE OF A CONDITIONAL 
COMMITMENT FOR AN INFRASTRUCTURE REVOLVING FUND LOAN (B16-006) OF 
$350,000 TO THE PERRY COUNTY FISCAL COURT, PERRY COUNTY, KENTUCKY 

Ms. Jami Johnson, KIA, discussed the Perry County Fiscal Court's request for a Fund 
B loan in the amount of $350,000 for the Vicco Water System Emergency Repair 
Project. Perry County Fiscal Court recently acquired the Vicco Water & Wastewater 
System from the City of Vicco and is currently being operated under an emergency 
contract with Utility Management Group. This project will eliminate several issues in the 
water system to include installation of two new pump stations, several water meters, 
replacement of the telemetry at the Acup Tank; replacement of approximately 3,385 
linear feet (LF) exposed service line and a chlorine tester kit. 

The Perry County Fiscal Court purchases approximately 81 million gallons of water 
annually from Knott Co Water and Sewer District. A portion of the Fund B loan money 
will go towards debt to Knott Co Water and Sewer District in the amount of $158,000. 

Ms. Linda Bridwell made the motion to approve the Fund B loan (B16-006) in the 
amount of $350,000 to Perry County Fiscal Court with the standard conditions 
along with the following special condition: The Perry County Fiscal Court will 
fund any shortfalls in any of the utility's KIA debt service repayments. Ms. Lona 
Brewer seconded and the motion was unanimously approved. 

5. A RESOLUTION AND ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE KENTUCKY 
INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY AUTHORIZING ISSUANCE OF A CONDITIONAL 
COMMITMENT FOR A FEDERALLY ASSISTED DRINKING WATER REVOLVING FUND 
LOAN (F16-002) OF $1,720,500 TO THE CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER 
DISTRICT, WHITLEY COUNTY, KENTUCKY 

Mr. Jory Becker, DOW, and Ms. Sarah Aitken, KIA discussed the Cumberland Falls 
Highway Water District's request for a Fund "F" loan in the amount of $1,720,500 for 
the CFHWD - Line Replacement and Reinforcement project. The project will replace 
approximately 39,500 LF of waterline due to undersized lines and continuous leak 
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repairs . In addition, extensions of the distribution system will be made totaling 17,200 
LF which will serve approximately 20 additional users. The District will reinforce 3,200 
LF of waterline, relocate approximately 500 LF of waterline, and replace the master 
meter. Lastly, the project includes replacement of the remaining conventional meters 
with new radio read meters and upgrades to the radio based SCADA system. 

The District provides services for Whitley County. The District purchases water from 
Corbin Utilities Commission, West Laurel Water Association , and Williamsburg 
Municipal WTP. 

Mr. Jeff Derouen recused himself from voting. Ms. Linda Bridwell made the 
motion to approve the Fund Floan (F16-002) in the amount of $1,720,500 to the 
Cumberland Falls Highway Water District with the standard conditions. Mayor 
David Cartmell seconded and the motion was unanimously approved. 

6. A RESOLUTION AND ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE KENTUCKY 
INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY AUTHORIZING ISSUANCE OF A CONDITIONAL 
COMMITMENT FOR A FEDERALLY ASSISTED DRINKING WATER REVOLVING FUND 
LOAN (F16-003) IN THE AMOUNT OF $3,304,000 TO THE WESTERN PULASKI 
COUNTY WATER DISTRICT, PULASKI COUNTY, KENTUCKY 

Mr. Jory Becker, DOW, and Ms. Sarah Aitken, KIA discussed the Western Pulaski 
County Water District's request for a Fund "F" loan in the amount of $3,304,000 for the 
Water System Improvements and Replacement project. The project consists of 
approximately 1,800 LF of 3 inch water line replacement and 650 LF 3 inch water line 
extensions; 8,200 LF of 4 inch water line replacement; 21 ,000 LF of 6 inch water line 
replacement and 1,800 LF of 6 inch water line relocation ; and 7,500 LF of new 12 inch 
water transmission main. The project also includes the installation of a 300,000 gallon 
elevated water storage tank to replace an existing 100,000 gallon ground storage tank, 
as well as the renovation of an existing 300,000 gallon water storage tank. Lastly, the 
project will include the installation of two new pressure reducing stations and one 
hundred radio read meter systems. 

This project will provide major improvements to the District's water distribution system, 
eliminate several dilapidated /undersized water lines, provide additional water storage 
by replacing an undersized water storage tank, and provide pressure reduction to 
areas experiencing high pressures. The project will also improve the quality of water by 
renovating an existing water storage tank that is experiencing large scale paint loss on 
both the interior and exterior surfaces. Additionally, there are certain structural and 
safety components which will require repair in order to ensure continued operation . 

The District purchases water from the City of Somerset and the City of Russell Springs. 
Counties directly serviceable by the District include Casey, Pulaski , Russell and 
Wayne. The Public Service Commission has jurisdiction over this project. 

Mr. Jeff Derouen recused himself from voting. Ms. Linda Bridwell made the 
motion to approve the Fund Floan (F16-003) in the amount of $3,304,000 to the 
Western Pulaski County Water District with the standard conditions. Mr. Ron 
Lovan seconded and the motion unanimously carried. 
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7. A RESOLUTION OF THE KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY AUTHORIZING 
AND APPROVING THE ISSUANCE OF OBLIGATIONS OF THE KENTUCKY 
INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY TO REIMBURSE CAPITAL EXPENDITURES MADE 
BY GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES PURSUANT TO LOANS MADE BY THE KENTUCKY 
INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY TO SUCH GOVERNMENTAL AGENCIES 

This is a routine resolution allowing KIA to reimburse expenses that are paid out of 
the Authority's funds with bond proceeds. The projects listed below are covered under this 
resolution : 

APPLICANT FUND AMOUNT 
Lincoln County Sanitation A13-020 (Increase) $4,365,793 
District 
Mercer County Sanitation A16-004 $ 848,000 
District 
City of Prestonsburg fbo A16-003 $2,033,200 
Prestonsburg Utility 
Commission 
City of Prestonsburg fbo A16-007 $2,163,000 
Prestonsburg Utility 
Commission 
City of Prestonsburg fbo A16-28 $1,952,900 
Prestonsburg Utility 
Commission 
Perry County Sanitation 816-006 $ 350,000 
District 
Cumberland Falls Highway F16-002 $1,720,500 
Water District 
Western Pulaski County F16-003 $3,304,000 
Water District 

Ms. Linda Bridwell moved to approve the resolution. Mr. Ron Lovan seconded 
and the motion carried unanimously. 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

Kentucky Infrastructure Authority Secretary Adam Scott addressed the group. He noted 
two contracts from the Office of Financial Management for Dinsmore & Shohl and 
Morgan Stanley. Mr. Scott along with Jeff Derouen met regarding the abandonment of 
several Package Treatment Plants, representatives from KIA, DOW, PSC and other 
organizations have resurrected the KSWIG group and will meet regularly. 

Several KIA staff attended the CIFA Conference in Tampa, Florida. Mr. Scott informed 
the board that his presentation on Small System Regionalization was well attended. 

Also, Mr. Scott discussed the possibility of refinancing a system's water and/or 
wastewater debt to other lenders. Mr. Scott explained that several systems have had 
discussions with him and that future borrowers have constrained financial capacity to 
borrow from KIA. 
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Commissioner Tony Wilder made the motion to adjourn to an Executive Session 
to discuss personnel matters. Ms. Linda Bridwell seconded and the motion 
carried unanimously. 

After a brief Executive Session Ms. Linda Bridwell made the motion to reconvene 
the KIA Board meeting. Mr. Ron Lovan seconded and the motion carried 
unanimously. No actions were taken by the Executive Committee at this time. 

Ill. STATUS REPORT FOR FUNDS A, A2, B, B1 , C, F, F2 

ANNOUNCEMENTS/NOTIFICATIONS 

Next scheduled KIA board meeting: 
Tentatively set for Thursday, December 3, 2015 
1024 Capital Center Drive, Suite 340 
Frankfort, Kentucky 

There being no further business Commissioner Wilder moved to adjourn. Mr. Ron 
Lovan seconded and the motion carried unanimously. The November 5, 2015, 
regular meeting of the Board of the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority was 
adjourned. 

Submitted by: 

Adam J . Scott, Secretary 
Kentucky Infrastructure Authority 
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AGENDA 

KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 
FULL BOARD MEETING 

1024 CAPITAL CENTER DRIVE, SUITE 340 
November 5, 2015 - 1 :00 p.m. 

Call to Order: 
• Confirmation of Press Notice 
• Confirmation of Quorum 
• Recognition of Members/Guests 

I. BUSINESS (Board Action Required) 

A. Minutes 

1. Consideration of Approval of the Minutes of the Kentucky 
Infrastructure Authority Regular Board Meeting of 
October 1, 2015 

(Attachment l.A.1.) 

B. New Projects I Action Items 

1. Resolution and Order of the Board of Directors Authorizing 
an Amendment to a Fund A loan (A13-020) increasing the 
amount to $4,365,793 to the Lincoln County Sanitation 
District, Lincoln County, Kentucky (SX21137001 , 
SX21137017) 

(Attachment l.B.1.) 

2. Resolution and Order of the Board of Directors for Approval 
of a Fund A loan (A16-004) in the amount of $848,000 to 
the Mercer County Sanitation District, Mercer County, 
Kentucky (SX21167021) 

(Attachment l.B.2.) 

3. Resolution and Order of the Board of Directors for Approval 
of Fund A loan (A16-003) in the amount of $2,033,200, 
Fund A loan (A 16-007) in the amount of $2, 163,000 and 
Fund A loan (A16-028) in the amount of $1,952,900 
to the City of Prestonsburg, Floyd County, Kentucky 
(SX21071210, SX21071231 , SX21071235) 

(Attachment l.B.3.) 

4. Resolution and Order of the Board of Directors for Approval 
of a Fund B loan (B16-006) in the amount of $350,000 to 
the Perry County Fiscal Court, Perry County, Kentucky 
(WX21193029) 

(Attachment l.B.4.) 

Chair Tony Wilder 

Chair Tony Wilder 

Mr. Jory Becker, DOW 
Ms. Jami Johnson, KIA 

Mr. Jory Becker, DOW 
Ms. Brandi Norton, KIA 

Mr. Jory Becker, DOW 
Ms. Brandi Norton, KIA 

Ms. Jami Johnson, KIA 
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39 

79 



5. Resolution and Order of the Board of Directors for Approval Mr. Jory Becker, DOW 95 
of a Fund F loan (F16-002) in the amount of $1,720,500 to Ms. Sarah Aitken , KIA 
the Cumberland Falls Highway Water District, Whitley 
County, Kentucky (WX21235002) 

(Attachment 1.8.5.) 

6. Resolution and Order of the Board of Directors for Approval Mr. Jory Becker, DOW 107 
of a Fund Floan (F16-003) in the amount of $3,304,000 to Ms. Sarah Aitken , KIA 
the Western Pulaski County Water District, Pulaski 
County, Kentucky (WX21199123) 

(Attachment l.B.6.) 

7. Resolution and Order of the Board of Directors Authorizing Ms. Sarah Aitken , KIA 119 
and Approving the Issuance of Obligations of the Kentucky 
Infrastructure Authority to Reimburse Capital Expenditures 
made by Governmental Agencies Pursuant to Loans made 
by the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority to such Governmental 
Agencies 

(Attachment l.B.7.) 

II. STATUS REPORTS FOR FUNDS A, A2, B, 81, C, F, F2 Mr. Adam Scott, KIA 125 

Ill. ANNOUNCEMENTS/NOTIFICATIONS 

1. KIA Contract Awards Mr. Adam Scott, KIA 151 
(Attachment 111.1.) 

2. Next KIA Board Meeting: 
Tentatively set for Thursday, December 3, 2015 
Kentucky Infrastructure Authority 
1024 Capital Center Drive, Suite 340, Frankfort 

IV. ADJOURN Chair Tony Wilder 
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A RESOLUTION AND ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY AUTHORIZING ISSUANCE 
OF A CONDITIONAL COMMITMENT FOR A FEDERALLY ASSISTED 
DRINKING WATER REVOLVING FUND LOAN (F16-002) OF $1,720,500 
TO THE CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT, WHITLEY 
COUNTY, KENTUCKY 

WHEREAS, the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority (the "Authority") has been duly 
created as a body corporate and politic constituting a public corporation and a 
governmental agency of the Commonwealth of Kentucky pursuant to Chapter 224A of the 
Kentucky Revised Statutes (the "Act") ; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the Authority is duly and legally authorized to make 
loans to Governmental Agencies for the purpose of providing funds for the construction 
and acquisition of sanitary sewer facilities , water facilities or other types of infrastructure, 
and in that regard , to enter into Assistance Agreements with such Governmental Agencies 
governing the provisions in respect of which such loans are to be made, the amounts 
thereof and the repayment provisions in respect thereto; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority anticipates entering into an Assistance Agreement for a 
loan from the Authority's Federally Assisted Drinking Water Revolving Loan Program (Fund 
F) with the Cumberland Falls Highway Water District, subject to final determination of 
amount when the factors involving such financing have been determined ; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority will, in the near future, authorize and issue a series of its 
Infrastructure Authority Revenue Bonds for the purpose of funding loans to various 
governmental agencies , such series of Bonds to be known as Kentucky Infrastructure 
Authority Revenue Bonds with the appropriate Series designation ; and 

WHEREAS, the Authority wishes to establish terms and conditions on said Fund F 
loans prior to the issuance of Authority Revenue Bonds and recognizes that additional 
planning and design of the financed projects are required . 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY, ACTING 
BY AND THROUGH ITS BOARD OF DIRECTORS AS ITS DULY AUTHORIZED AND 
EMPOWERED GOVERNING BODY, DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AND ORDER, AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. All statements of fact set forth in the preambles to this Resolution and 
Order are incorporated herein by reference, the same as if set forth verbatim. All such 
statements of fact are hereby declared to be true and accurate in all material respects. 

Section 2. The Authority hereby authorizes the issuance of a conditional Federally 
Assisted Drinking Water Revolving Fund loan for $1 ,720,500 of project expense including 
capitalized interest for the construction period , to the Cumberland Falls Highway Water 
District for the CFHWD- Line Replacement and Reinforcement project. Such amounts are 
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subject to adjustment by further action of the Authority or may be adjusted by action of the 
Authority staff at the time of the issuance of bonds based on adjustment in project costs of 
not more than (10%) ten percent of the project cost authorized by this resolution. Upon 
satisfaction of all conditions of the commitment, execution of an assistance agreement for 
this loan is authorized . 

Section 3. Principal forgiveness of 25% will be deducted from the approved loan 
amount. The unforgiven principal balance of $1,290,375 shall be repaid. 

Section 4. The unforgiven principal shall be repayable over 20 years at an interest 
rate of 0. 75%. In addition to debt service , a 0.25% annual administration fee on the unpaid , 
unforgiven principal balance will be charged. From annual revenues , $4,300 must be set 
aside in a borrower held replacement reserve each December 1 until the balance reaches 
$43,000 and maintained for the life of the loan . These terms are subject to adjustment 
upon execution of the loan agreement, upon changes in the project conditions or 
determination that the project will require authority financing to be done on a taxable basis. 

Section 5. This Resolution and Order shall be in full force and effect from and after 
its adoption at a properly held meeting of the Kentucky Infrastructure Authority this 5th day 
of November, 2015. 

TONY WILDER, CHAIR 
KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 

ATTEST: 

ADAMJ.SCOTT, SECRETARY 
KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 

REVIEWED BY: 

PECK, SHAFFER & WILLIAMS LLP 
LEGAL COUNSEL TO THE 
KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 
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STEVEN L. BESHEAR 

GOVERNOR 

LEONARD K. PETERS 

SECRETARY 

ENERGY AND ENVIRONMENT CABINET 

DEPARTMENT FOR ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 

DIVISION OF WATER 

Mr. Tony Wilder 
Chairman 
Kentucky Infrastructure Authority 
1024 Capital Center Drive, Suite 340 
Frankfort, Kentucky 4060 l 

200 FAIR OAKS LANE , 4TH FLOOR 

FRANKFORT, KENTUCKY 40601 

www.kentucky.gov 

October 27, 2015 

Re: Fl6-002 
Cumberland Falls Hwy Water District--34132 
Activity ID: FGL20160003 
HUCl l: 05130101370, 05130101380, 

05130101390, and 05130101450 
Watershed Name: Cumberland River, above 

Rockcastle River, Watts Creek, Youngs Creek, and 
laurel River 

Project Name: Line Replacement and Reinforcement 

Dear Mr. Wilder: 

The Division of Water (DOW) hereby certifies that the Cumberland Falls Highway Water District is 
eligible to receive $1,720,500.00 from the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund. The DOW certifies that the project 
scope is consistent with the scope that was used to rank the project on the Intended Use Plan-Project Priority List. 

The Cumberland Falls Highway Water District's status relative to the Drinking Water State Revolving 
Fund General Conditions is provided below: 

l. Project specific environmental information is expected to be submitted to DOW in December 2015. 
2. Plans and specifications are expected to be submitted to DOW in December 2015. 
3. Construction bids are expected to be opened in February 2016. 

Upon compliance with the general conditions, the DOW will issue a final project certification prior to 
authorizing the loan agreement. A preconstruction and project management conference with the DOW must be held 
prior to commencement of construction. If you have any questions concerning this letter, please contact Joel 
Murphy, Project Manager, at (502) 564-3410, extension 4592. 

PG/BG:jjm 

~1Y1Wl 
-----;e~~Gv 

Division of Water 

c: Bill Perkins, Cumberland Falls Highway Water District 
Tim Schwendeman, Cumberland Valley ADD 
Ken Taylor, Kenvirons 

Kcntud.yUnbridlcdSpirit com An l-.qu31 Opportunity Employer M/1-/D 
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY Reviewer Sarah Aitken 
KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY Date • . 2015 
FUND F, FEDERALLY ASSISTED DRINKING WATER KIA Loan Number 
REVOLVING LOAN FUND WRIS Number 02 

BORROWER CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 
WHITLEY COUNTY 

BRIEF DESCRIPTION 

The project will replace approximately 39,500 LF of waterline due to undersized lines and continuous leak repairs. In addition , 
extensions of the distribution system will be made totaling 17,200 LF which will serve approximately 20 additional users. The 
District will reinforce ·3,200 LF of waterline, relocate approximately 500 LF of waterline, and replace the master meter. Lastly, the 
project includes replacement of the remaining conventional meters with new radio read meters and upgrades to the radio .based 
SCADA system. 

PROJECT FINANCING PROJECT BUDGET RD Fee% Actual % 

Fund F Loan $1 ,720,500 Administrative Expenses $36,500 
Local Funds 2,500 Legal Expenses 25,000 

Land , Easements 2,500 
Planning 10,000 
Eng - Design I Const 8.6% 8.0% 100,000 
Eng - lnsp 5.4% 5.0% 63,000 
Eng - Other 10,000 
Construction 1, 150,000 
Equipment 126,000 
Contingency 100,000 
Other 100,000 

TOTAL $1 ,723,000 TOTAL $1,723,000 

REPAYMENT Rate 0.75% Est. Annual Payment $72,825 
Term 20 Years 1st Pavment 6 Mo. after first draw 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES Engineer Kenvirons, Inc. 
Bond Counsel Peck, Shaffer, & Williams, a division of Dinsmore & Shchi , LLP 

PROJECT SCHEDULE Bid Opening Feb-16 
Construction Start Apr-16 
Construction Stop Jan-17 

DEBT PER CUSTOMER Existing $691 
Proposed $1 ,060 

OTHER DEBT See Attached 

OTHER STATE-FUNDED PROJECTS LAST 5 YRS See Attached 

RESIDENTIAL RATES Users Avg . Bill 
Current 3,174 $47.40 (for 4,000 gallons) 
Additional 20 

REGIONAL COORDINATION This project is consistent with regional planning recommendations. 

CASH FLOW 
I Cash Flow Before 

Debt Service Debt Service I Cash Flow After Debt Service I Coveraoe Ratio 
Audited 2013 282,414 143,997 138,417 2.0 
Audited 2014 254,138 144,266 109,872 1.8 
Projected 2015 406,250 143,401 262,849 2.8 
Projected 2016 577,587 164,244 413,343 3.5 
Projected 2017 544,469 200,537 343,933 2.7 
Projected 2018 515,075 249,242 265,833 2.1 
Projected 2019 485,093 249,624 235,469 1.9 
Projected 2020 454,511 250,086 204,425 1.8 
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Reviewer: Sarah Aitken 
Date:-r 5, 2015 

Loan Number: 

KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 
DRINKING WATER STATE REVOLVING FUND (FUND "F") 

CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT, WHITLEY COUNTY 
PROJECT REVIEW 

WX21235002 

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

The Cumberland Falls Highway Water District is requesting a Fund "F" loan in the 
amount of $1 ,720,500 for the CFHWD - Line Replacement and Reinforcement project. 
The project will replace approximately 39,500 LF of waterline due to undersized lines 
and continuous leak repairs. In addition , extensions of the distribution system will be 
made totaling 17,200 LF which will serve approximately 20 additional users. The District 
will reinforce 3,200 LF of waterline , relocate approximately 500 LF of waterline , and 
replace the master meter. Lastly, the project includes replacement of the remaining 
conventional meters with new radio read meters and upgrades to the radio based 
SCADA system. 

The District provides services for Whitley County. The District purchases water from 
Corbin Utilities Commission , West Laurel Water Association, and Williamsburg 
Municipal WTP. 

II . PROJECT BUDGET 

Administrative Expenses 
Legal Expenses 
Land, Easements 
Planning 
Engineering Fees - Design I Const 
Engineering Fees - Inspection 
Engineering Fees - Other 
Construction 
Equipment 
Contingency 
Other 
Total 

Total 
$ 36,500 

25,000 
2,500 

10,000 
100,000 
63,000 
10,000 

1, 150,000 
126,000 
100,000 
100,000 

$ 1,723,000 
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Ill. PROJECT FUNDING 

Amount 
Fund F Loan $ 1,720,500 
Local Funds 2,500 
Total $ 1,723,000 

IV. KIA DEBT SERVICE 

Construction Loan 
Less: Principal Forgiveness (25%) 
Amortized Loan Amount 
Interest Rate 
Loan Term (Years) 
Estimated Annual Debt SeNice 
Administrative Fee (0 .25%) 
Total Estimated Annual Debt Service 

V. PROJECT SCHEDULE 

Bid Opening: 
Construction Start: 
Construction Stop: 

VI. RA TE STRUCTURE 

A) Customers 

February 2016 
April 2016 
January 2017 

. . 
% 

: 

100% 
0% 

100% 

$ 1,720,500 
430, 125 

$ 1,290,375 
0.75% 

20 
$ 69,599 

3,226 
$ 72,825 

Customers Current Proposed Total 
Residential 
Commercial 
Industria l 
Institutional 
Total 

B) Rates 

Date of Last Rate Increase 
First 1,000 Gallons 
Over 1,000 Gallons per 1,000 
Gallons 
Cost for 4 ,000 gallons 
Increase% 
Affordability Index (Rate/MHI) 

3, 114 
56 

4 
31 

3,205 

Current 
06/01/15 

$21 .18 
8.74 

$47.40 
22 .0% 

2.1% 

20 
0 
0 
0 

20 

3,134 
56 

4 
31 

3,225 

Prior 
03/22/12 

$17.36 
7.16 

$38.84 
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VII. DEMOGRAPHICS 

Based on current Census data from the American Community Survey 5-Year Estimate 
2009-2013, the District's service area population was 8,953 with a Median Household 
Income (MHI) of $27,721. The median household income for the Commonwealth is 
$43,036. The project will qualify for a 0. 75% interest rate because the District's service 
area MHI is below 80% of the State 's MHI. 

County 
Population Unemployment 

Year City % Change County % Change Date Rate 

1980 8,075 33,396 June 2004 6.4% 

1990 7,419 -8.1% 33,326 -0.2% June 2009 11.9% 

2000 7,742 4.4% 35,865 7.6% June 2013 10.0% 

2010 7,304 -5.7% 35,637 -0.6% June 2014 9.3% 

Current 7,305 0.0% 35,71 8 0.2% 

Cumulative % -9.5% 7.0% 

VIII. 2010 CAPITALIZATION GRANT EQUIVALENCIES 

1) Green Project Reserve - The Drinking Water capitalization grant does not contain a 
"green" requirement. 

2) Additional Subsidization - This project qual ifies for additional subsidization in the 
amount of $430, 125. 

IX. FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (See Exhibit 1) 

Financial information was obtained from the audited financial statements for the years 
ended December 31 , 2012 through 2014. Percentage references in the History section 
below are based on whole dollar amounts and not the rounded amounts presented . 

HISTORY 

Revenues increased 3% from $1.57 million in 2012 to $1.63 million in 2014 due to a 
previously approved rate increase. Operating expenses decreased 7% from $805,876 
in 2012 to $754,469 in 2014 as result of a decrease in District staff. The debt coverage 
ratio was 1.2, 2.0 and 1.8 for 2012, 2013 and 2014, respectively. The balance sheet 
reflects a current ratio of 17.0, a debt to equity ratio of 0.6 and the number of months of 
operating expenses in unrestricted cash is 3.9. 

PROJECTIONS 

Projections are based on the following assumptions: 

1) Revenues will increase approximately 11 % in 2015 and 2016 to account for the 
22% rate increase effective March 22, 2015, and will remain flat thereafter. 

2) Operating expenses will increase 2% annually for inflation. 
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3) Debt coverage ratio will be 2. 7 in 2017 when principal and interest repayments 
begin . 

Based on the proforma assumptions, the District shows adequate cash flow to repay 
the KIA Fund Floan . 

REPLACEMENT RESERVE 

The annual replacement cost is $4,300. This amount should be added to the 
replacement account each December 1 until the balance reaches $43,000 and 
maintained for the life of the loan . 

X. DEBT OBLIGATIONS 
Outstanding 

Waterworks Revenue Bond, Series 1996 
Waterworks Revenue Bond, Series 2001 
Waterworks Revenue Bond, Series 2007 
RD, 2015 

$ 549,037 
420,949 

1,271 ,054 
803,000 

$ 3,044,040 Total 

XI. OTHER STATE OR FEDERAL FUNDING IN PAST FIVE YEARS 

Project Title Funding Source Amount 
US 25 Transmission Main and Pump USDA RD 1,200,00 

XII. CONTACTS 

Legal Applicant 
Entity Name 

Authorized Official 

County 

Email 

Phone 

Address 

Applicant Contact 

Name 

Organization 

Email 

Phone 

Address 

Cumberland Falls Highway Water District 

Jimmy Creekmore (Chairman) 

Whitley 

cfhwd@yahoo.com 

606-528-0222 

6926 Cumberland Falls Highway 

Corbin , KY 40701 

Les Moses 

Cumberland Falls Highway Water District 

cfhwd@ya hoo. com 

606-528-0222 

6926 Cumberland Falls Highway 

Corbin, KY 40701 

Maturity 
2035 
2041 
2044 
2055 

Type 
Loan/Grant 
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Project Administrator 

Name 

Organization 

Email 

Phone 

Address 

Consulting Engineer 

PE Name 

Firm Name 

Email 

Phone 

Address 

XIII. RECOMMENDATIONS 

Timothy M Schwendeman 

Cumberland Valley Area Development District 

timsch@cvadd .org 

606-864-7391 

342 Old Whitley Road 

London , KY 40744 

Kenneth Taylor, PE 

Kenvirons , Inc. 

ktaylor@kenvirons .com 

502-695-4357 

452 Versailles Road 

Frankfort, KY 40601 

KIA staff recommends approval of the loan with the standard cond itions. 
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CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT (WATER FUND) 

FINANCIAL SUMMARY (DECEMBER YEAR END) 

Audited Audited Audited Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected 

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

Balance Sheet 

Assets 

Current Assets 1,084,508 1,149,437 1,175,799 1,244 ,032 1,344 ,100 1,412,887 1,466,054 1,513,147 1,554,032 

Other Assets 5,602,926 5,481 ,595 5,362,789 5,334,696 7,149,999 7 ,143,698 7 ,074,917 6,981 ,845 6,863,938 

Total 6,687,434 6,631 ,032 6,538,588 6,578,728 8,494,099 8,556,585 8,540,971 8,494,993 8,417,971 

Liabilities & Equity 

Current Liabilities 48,568 64,808 69,268 71 ,577 73,892 88,714 92,042 95,377 84,718 

Long Term Liabilities 2,365,055 2,321 ,719 2,280,669 2,231 ,669 3,471 ,044 3,405,544 3,337,044 3,265,544 3,205,044 

Total Liabilities 2,413,623 2,386,527 2,349,937 2,303,246 3,544,936 3,494,258 3,429,086 3,360,921 3,289,762 

Net Assets 4,273,811 4,244,505 4,188,651 4,275,482 4,949,163 5,062,327 5,111 ,885 5,134,072 5,128,209 

Cash Flow 

Revenues 1,577,498 1,590,790 1,634 ,631 1,814,441 2,014,030 2,014,030 2,014,030 2,014,030 2,014,030 

Operating Expenses 1,411 , 136 1,313,871 1,384,925 1,412,623 1,440,875 1,473,993 1,503,387 1,533,369 1,563,951 

Other Income 6,484 5,495 4,432 4,432 4,432 4,432 4,432 4,432 4,432 

Cash Flow Before Debt Service 172,846 282,414 254,138 406,250 577,587 544,469 515,075 485,093 454,511 

Debt Service 

Existing Debt Service 143,345 143,997 144,266 143,401 164,244 164,124 176,417 176,799 177,261 

Proposed KIA Loan 0 0 0 0 0 36,413 72,825 72,825 72,825 

Total Debt Service 143,345 143,997 144,266 143,401 164,244 200,537 249,242 249,624 250,086 

Cash Flow After Debt Service 29,501 138,417 109,872 262,849 413,343 343,933 265,833 235,469 204,425 

Ratios 

Current Ratio 22.3 17.7 17.0 17.4 18.2 15.9 15.9 15.9 18.3 

Debt to Equity 0.6 0.6 0.6 0.5 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.7 0.6 

Days Sales in Accounts Receivable 33.2 33.0 31 .7 31 .7 31 .8 31 .8 31 .8 31.8 31 .8 

Months Operating Expenses in Unrestricted Cash 3.1 3.9 3.9 4.3 4.9 5.4 5.7 5.9 6.1 

0 Debt Coverage Ratio 1.2 2.0 1.8 2.8 3.5 2.7 2.1 1.9 1.8 
O> 



KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 

Matthew G. Bevin 
Governor 

May 16, 2017 

Capital Center Complex 
1024 Capital Center Drive, Suite 340 

Frankfort, Kentucky 40601 
(502) 573-0260 

(502) 573-0157 (fax) 
kia.ky.gov 

Cumberland Falls Highway Water District 
Attn: Jimmy Creekmore, Chairman 
6926 Cumberland Falls Highway 
Corbin, KY 40701 

Donna McNeil 
Executive Director 

KENTUCKY INFRASTRUCTURE AUTHORITY 
FEDERALLY ASSISTED DRINKING WATER REVOLVING LOAN FUND 

CONDITIONAL COMMITMENT LETTER (F16-002) 
FINAL EXTENSION 

Dear Chairman Creekmore: 

The Kentucky Infrastructure Authority ("the Authority") has approved a final extension of the 
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) loan F16-002 for the Waterline Replacement 
and Reinforcement Project. The Authority has extended the deadline for the District to meet the 
conditions set forth in the conditional commitment letter for a period of six (6) months. The 
original expiration date was November 16, 2016. The new expiration date will be November 16, 
2017. Please be aware that failure to complete the lea conditions by this date may result in 
rescinsion of the loan commitment and a reapplication for funds. 

Sincerely, 

~1Ylc~ 
Donna McNeil, Executive Director 
Kentucky Infrastructure Authority 

C: Ken Taylor 
Tim Schwendeman 
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Cumberland Falls Highway Water District 
XXXII. PROPOSED OPERATING B UDGET (WATER SYSTEM) 

(1st Full Year of Operation) Year Ending March 31, 2019 

A. ·Operating Income: 

Water Sales 
Disconnect/Reconnect/Late Charge Fees 
Other (Describe) 

Less Allowances and Deductions 

Total Operating Income 

B. Operation and Maintenance Expenses: 

$1 ,870,000 
63 ,000 

0 
( ) 

$1 ,933 ,000 

(Based on Uniform System of Accounts prescribed by National Association of 
Regulatory Utility Commissioners) 

Source of Supply Expense 
Pumping Expense 
Water Treatment Expense 
Transmission and Distribution Expense 
Customer Accounts Expense 
Administrative and General Expense 

Total Operating Expenses 

Net Operating Income 

C. Non-Operating Income: 

Interest on Deposits 
Other (Identify) 
Total Non-Operating Income 

D. Net Income 

E. Debt Repayment: 

Interest 
Principal 
Fees 

Total Debt Repayment 

F. Balance Available for Coverage 

1 
F:\PROJ ECTS\2006\2006234\psc submittal\operatingbudget - first full year.doc 

$580,000 
20,000 

2,000 
400,000 
225,000 
175,000 

$1,402,000 

$531 ,000 

$ 5,000 

$ 5,000 

$ 536,000 

$119,200 
128,000 

3,225 

$250,425 

$285,575 
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and 
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RESOLUTION 

CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 

June 19, 2017 

RE: Line Replacement and Reinforcement Project 
WX21235002 
DWSRF-F16-002 

The Cumberland Falls Highway Water District hereby resolves to award the construction of the "Line 
Replacement and Reinforcement Project'" to the lowest bidder: Clay Pipleine, Inc, for the amount of 
$n9,543.SO contingent upon approval of the Kentucky Public Service Commission and the funding 
agency. 



KENVIRONS 

Kenvirons, Inc. 452 Versailles Road • Frankfort, KY 4060 I • Phone: (502) 695-4357 • Fax: (502) 695-4363 
Civil & Environmental Engineering and Laboratory Services 

June 5, 2017 

Mr. Jimmy Creekmore, Chairman 
Cumberland Falls Highway Water District 
6926 Cumberland Falls Highway 
Corbin, Kentucky 40701 

RE: Cumberland Falls Highway Water District 
CFHWD Line Replacement and Reinforcement Project 
WX21235002; F16-002 

Dear Mr. Creekmore: 

Bids were received for the referenced project on June 1, 2017. Five (5) bids 
were received with the low bidder being Clay Pipeline, Inc. with a bid of 
$779,543.50. Attached for your reference is a tabulation of the received bids. 
Also attached is an updated budget based on awarding the project to the low 
bidder. 

It is hereby recommended to award the contract to Clay Pipeline, Inc. in the 
amount of $779,543.50. We are very familiar with Clay Pipeline, lnc.'s work and 
are sure they have the personnel , equipment and experience to complete the 
project in a timely professional manner. Over the years they have completed 
multiple projects on which Kenvirons, Inc. was the engineer. Should you have 
any questions or need additional information please contact me. 

Sincerely, 

=1(~~7L~ 
Kenneth D. Taylor, PE 
Vice President 

cc: Tim Schwendeman, CVADD 
Joel Murphy, KDOW 
Amanda Yeary, KIA 
Terry Humphries, KDOW 

Attachments 

F:\PROJECTS\200612006234\CORRESPONDENCE\Creekmore 6-5-1 7.doc 



KENVIRONS, INC. 
452 Versailles Road 
Frankfort, KY 40601 

Project No 2006234 

Base Bid 

lm .. ~ 
... ~; ·" .-. ~ ''"'"' 

1 6" PVC SOR 17 Pioe 

2 4" PVC SOR 17 Pioe 

3 3" PVC SOR 17 Pioe 

4 Directional Bore No. 1 

5 Directional Bore No. 2 

6 Directional Bore No. 3 

7 Directional Bore No. 4 

8 Directional Bore No. 5 

9 Directional Bore No. 6 

10 Directional Bore No. 7 

11 Directional Bore No. 8 

12 Bored & Jacked Casino for 3" & 4" Pioe 

13 Ooen Cut and Case for 6" Ploe 

14 Ooen Cut and Case for 3" & 4" Pioe 

15 Free Bore - AU Sizes 

16 6" Gate Valve 

17 4" Gate Valve 

18 3" Gate Valve 

19 6" x 6" Sleeved Tie-In 

20 4" x 4" Sleeved Tie-In 

21 3" x 3" Sleeved Tie-In 

22 3" x 2" Sleeved ne-ln 

23 6" x 6" Taooina Sleeve and Valve 

24 6" x 4" Taooina Sleeve and Valve 

25 4" x 4" Taooina Sleeve and Valve 

26 6" x 3" Taooina Sleeve and Valve 

27 3 .. x 3* Taooina Sleeve and Valve 

28 4" x 4'" x 3" Tee Tie-In 

29 Cut and Cao Ex. 6" Water Line 

30 Cut and Cao Ex. 4" Water Line 

31 Cut and Cao Ex. 3" Water Line 

32 Cut and Cao Ex. 2" Water Line 

33 Cut and Cao Ex. 1" Water Line 

34 4" Blow-Off Assemblv 

35 3" Blow-Off Assembly 

36 New Meter Service 

37 Reconnect Meter Service 

38 Relocate Meter Service 

39 Reolacement Meter Set 

40 Leak Detection Meter 

41 314" Service Tubino 

42 Master Meter Settino 

43 Gravel - Miscellaneous as anoroved 

44 Air Release Valve 

45 Pavement Re lacement 

45A Asohalt 

45B Concrete 

TOTAL BASE BIO 

Owner: 
Project: 
Bid Date: 

' ., , 
..... , 
LF 2 825 

LF 32 545 

LF 11 760 

LS 1 

LS 1 

LS 1 

LS 1 

LS 1 

LS 1 

LS 1 

LS 1 

LF 40 

LF 30 

LF 350 

LF 100 

EA 1 

EA 17 

EA 9 

EA 2 

EA 3 

EA 4 

EA 1 

EA 3 

EA 4 

EA 5 

EA 3 

EA 4 

EA 1 

EA 2 

EA 5 

EA 3 

EA 2 

EA 2 

EA 5 

EA 16 

EA 33 

EA 144 

EA 46 

LS 37 

LS 10 

LF 10400 

LS 1 

TN 400 

EA 2 

LF 2 000 

LF 500 

BID TABULATIONS 

Cumberland Falls Highway Water District 
Line Replacement and Reinforcement Project 
June 1, 2017at1 :30 P.M. Local Time 

Clay Pipeline, Inc. Akins Excavating Company, Inc. 
70 Fox Hollow Road 182 Busy Lane 

Manchester, KY 40962 Corbin, KY 40701 

·~ .• I ~·.£>~ 

$12.40 S35 030.00 $13.00 $36 725.00 

7.10 231 069.50 10.20 331 959.00 

6 .40 75 264.00 9.30 109 368.00 

13 585.00 13 585.00 3 000.00 3 000.00 

4 560.00 4 560.00 3 000.00 3 000.00 

2 575.00 2 575.00 3 000.00 3 000.00 

9620.00 9 620.00 21 000.00 21 000.00 

2 575.00 2 575.00 3 000.00 3 000.00 

10 940.00 10 940.00 3 000.00 3 000.00 

7 420.00 7 420.00 3 000.00 3 000.00 

16 950.00 16 950.00 24 000.00 24 000.00 

95.00 3 800.00 128.00 5 120.00 

60.00 1 800.00 55.00 1 650.00 

60.00 21 000.00 42.00 14 700.00 

30.00 3 000.00 35.00 3 500.00 

1 125.00 1125.00 1100.00 1100.00 

1 000.00 17 000.00 920.00 15 640.00 

858.00 7 722.00 860.00 7 740.00 

575.00 1150.00 1155.00 2 310.00 

500.00 1 500.00 995.00 2 985.00 

512.00 2 048.00 965.00 3 860.00 

600.00 600.00 970.00 970.00 

2 075.00 6 225.00 3 035.00 9105.00 

1 850.00 7 400.00 2 750.00 11 000.00 

1 730.00 8 650.00 2 540.00 12 700.00 

1 700.00 5 100.00 2 165.00 6 495.00 

1 450.00 5 800.00 2100.00 8 400.00 

690.00 690.00 , 130.00 1130.00 

290.00 580.00 715.00 1 430.00 

265.00 1 325.00 655.00 3 275.00 

800.00 2 400.00 650.00 1 950.00 

256.00 512.00 645.00 1 290.00 

105.00 210.00 585.00 1 170.00 

1 350.00 6 750.00 1 365.00 6 825.00 

1175.00 18 800.00 1 265.00 20 240.00 

655.00 21615.00 190.00 6 270.00 

372.00 53 568.00 400.00 57 600.00 

475.00 21 850.00 220.00 10 120.00 

555.00 20 535.00 225.00 8 325.00 

795.00 7 950.00 830.00 8 300.00 

5.00 52 000.00 5.00 52 000.00 

16 600.00 16 600.00 15 000.00 15 000.00 

21 .00 8 400.00 5.00 2 000.00 

875.00 1 750.00 1 820.00 3 640.00 

3.25 6 500.00 33.00 66 000.00 

68.00 34 000.00 34.00 17,000.00 

$779,543.50 $931,892.00 

Gist Construction, Inc. n States Utilities & Excavation, Norris Bros. Excavating 
981 Creek Bend Drive P.O. Box 14 1007 Rodgers Road 

Ciia~;~.728 Mt. Hermon KY 42157 Crossville, TN 38572 
.~ '" ''"' ;~~:·:' 

... ·~ 
·:.,-•. .i.··· ,.;· 

$10.00 S28 250.00 $24.00 S67 800.00 $25.22 $71 246.50 

10.00 325 450.00 22.00 715 990.00 22.31 726 078 .95 

10.00 117 600.00 21 .00 246 960.00 21 .34 250 958.40 

18 950.00 18 950.00 25 000.00 25 000.00 5 820.00 5 820.00 

6 800.00 6 800.00 11 000.00 11 000.00 5 820.00 5 820.00 

4 800.00 4 800.00 10 000.00 10 000.00 5 820.00 5 820.00 

12100.00 12 100.00 19 000.00 19 000.00 5 820.00 5 820.00 

4 750.00 4 750.00 10 000.00 10 000.00 5 820.00 5 820.00 

13 250.00 13 250.00 21 000.00 21 000.00 5 820.00 5 820.00 

9 675.00 9 675.00 16 000.00 16 000.00 5 820.00 5 820.00 

45 750.00 45 750.00 49 000.00 49 000.00 5 820.00 5 820.00 

110.00 4 400.00 120.00 4 800.00 145.50 5 820.00 

50.00 1 500.00 70.00 2 100.00 82.45 2 473.50 

50.00. 17 500.00 70.00 24 500.00 82.45 28 857.50 

30.00 3 000.00 60.00 6 000.00 106.70 10 670.00 

1 175.00 1175.00 825.00 825.00 824 .50 824.50 

950.00 16150.00 700.00 11 900.00 776.00 13192.00 

850.00 7 650.00 660.00 5 940.00 727.50 6 547.50 

1150.00 2 300.00 1 300.00 2 600.00 3 395.00 6 790.00 

1150.00 3450.00 1 300.00 3 900.00 3 201 .00 9 603.00 

850.00 3 400.00 1 300.00 5 200.00 3104.00 12 416.00 

750.00 750.00 1 300.00 1 300.00 2 910.00 2 910.00 

2 400.00 7 200.00 2 900.00 8 700.00 3 880.00 11 640.00 

2 000.00 8 000.00 2 650.00 10 600.00 3 686.00 14 744.00 

1 900.00 9 500.00 2 625.00 13 125.00 3 492.00 17 460.00 

1900.00 5 700.00 2 600.00 7 800.00 3 395.00 10 185.00 

1 750.00 7 000.00 2 500.00 10 000.00 3 201 .00 12 804.00 

1250.00 1 250.00 1 200.00 1 200.00 2 910.00 2 910.00 

1 000.00 2 000.00 1 000.00 2 000.00 1 455.00 2 910.00 

1 000.00 5 000.00 1 000.00 5 000.00 1 455.00 7 275.00 

900.00 2 700.00 1 000.00 3 000.00 1 455.00 4 365.00 

800.00 1 600.00 1 000.00 2 000.00 1455.00 2 910.00 

700.00 1 400.00 1 000.00 2 000.00 1 455.00 2910.00 

1 500.00 7 500.00 1 500.00 7 500.00 2 134.00 10 670.00 

1 350.00 21 600.00 1 400.00 22 400.00 2 425.00 38 800.00 

775.00 25 575.00 700.00 23 100.00 776.00 25 608.00 

375.00 54 000.00 370.00 53 280.00 664.45 95 680.80 

500.00 23 000.00 400.00 18 400.00 776.00 35 696.00 

600.00 22 200.00 700.00 25 900.00 664.45 24 584.65 

1 500.00 15 000.00 800.00 8 ODO.OD 4 365.00 43 650.00 

5.00 52 000.00 10.00 104 000.00 19.40 201 760.00 

23 000.00 23 000.00 26 000.00 26 000.00 6 305.00 6 305.00 

25.00 10 000.00 25.00 10 000.00 29.10 11 640.00 

800.00 1600.00 900.00 ·-.I" AIVl.IVI 2 716.00 5 432.00 

·"' " 
.,,,. - .,, _ 

25.00 50 000.00 _ .,.,~ew1r 1ur 5ll.~lc °1'.129 .~i 58 200.00 

30.00 15,000.00 ,y~ .•1 ·14'.So"o~ ~o "'~ 14 550.00 

$1,020,475.1111 -""'" .• $1,699, 120.00 •.'I S'?!f57,637.30 . -Denotes an anthmetic error was made on the Bids submitted. Values reported in the Bid Tabulation have been corrected based upon the um! pnce submitted. 
~ -_, : · l{ENN!:: I -t . .. 
: : DALE : : The above is a true and complete tabulation of the Bids received by Cumber1and Falls Highway Water District at their office located at 6926 Cumberland Falls Highway, 

Corbin, KY on June 1, 2017 at 1:30 P.M. Local Time. 

~-1-11 
Date 

- : T.AvlOR • : ="ti· ,, =cc · 
~ ':s:! \ 11680 : lJ.J = -:.o··< 4""\ •• ·~~ 
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Part Ill - Budget Information 
Project Cost Summary 

Project Title: CFHWD Water Line Replacement and Reinforcement 

Project Budget: Estimated ..... ! _______ _. 
enter date 

As Bid l.___-.-1_-J_u_n-_1_7 __ _.. 
enter date 

DWSRF Funding Funding Funding Funding 
Cost Classification KIA Loan Source 1 Source 2 Source 3 Source 4 

1 Administrative Expenses 30,000 
2 Legal Expenses 25,000 
3 Land , Appraisals , Easements 

4 Relocation Expense & Payments 
5 Planning 30,000 
6 Engineering Fees - Design 72,200 
7 Engineering Fees - Construction 14,400 
8 Engineering Fees - Inspection 47,500 

9 Engineering Fees - Other 10,000 

10 Construction 779,544 
11 Equipment 126,000 
12 Miscellaneous 100,000 
13 Contingencies 485,856 

Total 1,720,500 - - - -

Date 
Funding Sources Amount Committed Cost Categories 

1 Funding Source 1 -

2 Funding Source 2 - Treatment 

WRIS# WX: 21235002 

Revised ..... I _______ _.. 
enter date 

Funding Local Unfunded 
Source 5 Funds Costs 

2,500 

- 2,500 -

Funding 
Source 

3 Funding Source 3 - Transmission and Distribution DWSRF 

4 Funding Source 4 - Source 
5 Funding Source 5 - Storage 

Total - Purchase of Systems 
Restructuring 

Date Land Acouisition 
Local Funding Sources Amount Committed 

1 tap fees - CFHWD 2,500 5/21/2015 TOTAL COSTS 
2 
3 

Total 2,500 

Total Funding 1,723,000 

2 Revised 5/2006 

Total 
30,000 
25,000 

2,500 
-

30,000 
72,200 
14,400 

47,500 
10,000 

779,544 
126,000 
100,000 
485,856 

1,723,000 

Total Cost 

779,544 

779,544 
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CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY 
WATER DISTRICT 

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 , 2016 AND 2015 



CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 
DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

CONTENTS 

Independent Auditor's Report 1-2 

Management's Discussion & Analysis 3-6 
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Statements of Revenue, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 8 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Commissioners of 
The Cumberland Falls Highway Water District 
Corbin, KY 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the the business-type activities of the 
Cumberland Falls Highway Water District as of and for the years ended December 31 , 2016 and 
2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's 
basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fai r presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; th is 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fa ir presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. 
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness 
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our audit opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion , the financia l statements referred to above present fairly , in all material respects, 
the respective financial position of the business-type activities of the Cumberland Falls Highway 
Water District, as of December 31 , 2016 and 2015, and the respective changes in financial 
position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis on pages 3 through 6 be presented to supplement the 
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, 
is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential 
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational , 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained 
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient 
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Reporting Required by Governmental Accounting Standards 

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
April 18, 2017, on our consideration of the District's internal control over financial reporting and on 
our tests of compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing , and not 
to provide an opinion on the interal control over financial reporting or on compl iance. That report 
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Governmental Auditing Standards in 
considering the District's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Lexington, KY 
April 18, 2017 
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CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 

This section of the Cumberland Falls Highway Water District's annual financial report presents 
an analysis of the District's financial performance during the fiscal years ended December 31 , 
2016 and 2015. This information is presented in conjunction with the audited basic financial 
statements, which follow this section. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2015 

• The District's net position increased by $636,267 or 14 percent from $4,438,850 to 
$5,075, 117. 

• Gross profit from operations increased by $273,363 or 22 percent from $1 ,219,579 
to $1,492,942. 

• Operating expenses increased by $26,605 or 3 percent from $1 ,023,993 to 
$1 ,050,598. 

• Capital contributions to the District increased by $3,695 or 12 percent from $31 , 751 
to $35,446. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This annual report consists of the following two parts: Management's Discussion and Analysis 
and the Basic Financial Statements. The Financial Statements include notes which explain in 
detai l some of the information included in the basic financial statements. 

REQUIRED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Financial Statements of the District report information utilizing the fu ll accrual basis of 
accounting . The Financial Statements conform to accounting principles which are generally 
accepted in the United States of America . The Statements of Net Position include information 
on the District's assets and liabilities and provide information about the nature and amounts of 
investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to District creditors (liabilities). The 
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position identify the District's 
revenues and expenses. This statement provides information on the District's operations over 
the past two fiscal years and can be used to determine whether the Distri ct has recovered all 
of its actual and projected costs through user fees and other charges. The third financial 
statement is the Statement of Cash Flows. This statement provides information on the 
District's cash receipts , cash payments and changes in cash resulting from operations, 
investments and financing activities. From the Statements of Cash Flows, the reader can 
obtain comparative information on the sources and uses of cash and the change in the cash 
and cash equivalents balance for each of the last two fiscal years. 
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CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT 

The Statements of Net Position and the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in 
Net Position provide an indication of the District's financial condition and also indicate the 
financial condition of the District during the last fiscal year. The District's net position reflects 
the difference between assets and liabilities. An increase in net position over time typically 
indicates an improvement in financial condition . 

Table 1 
Condensed Statement of Net Position 

2016 2015 $Change % Change 

Current and other 
assets $ 2,266,723 $ 1,648,870 $ 617,853 37% 
Capital assets 5,971 ,997 5,867,172 104,825 2% 

Total Assets 8,238,720 7,516,042 722,678 10% 

Long-term debt 2,981,484 2,934,052 47,432 2% 

Other liabilities 182,119 143, 140 38,979 27% 
Total Liabilities 3, 163,603 3,077,192 86,411 3% 

Net position invested 
in capital assets 2,990,513 2,931 ,311 59,202 2% 
Net position restricted 
for debt service 572,524 414,938 157,586 38% 

Unrestricted net 
position 1,512,080 1,092,601 419,479 38% 

Total Net Position $ 5,075 ,117 r-'$ 4,438,850 $ 636,267 14% 

As the above table indicates, total assets increased by $722,678 from $7,516,042 to 
$8,238,720 during the fiscal year ended December 31 , 2016. This increase primarily resulted 
from an increase in cash and cash equivalents of $587,477 resulting from loans and grants for 
construction and an increase in operating income, supplemented by an increase in capital 
assets of $104,825. 

Table 1 also indicates an increase of $636,267 in net position, from $4,438,850 to $5,075, 117 
for fiscal year ending December 31 , 2016. As indicated above, this was due to an increase in 
operating income and grants. 
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CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position identify the various 
revenue and expense items which affect the change in net position. As the information in 
Table 2 indicates, income before capital contributions was $600,821 and capital contributions 
were $35,446, realizing a net change in net position of 636,267. 

Table 2 
Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses 

and Changes in Net Position 

Gross Profit 
Nonoperating revenues 

Total Revenues 

Depreciation expense 

Other operating 
expenses 
Nonoperating expenses 

Total Expenses 

Income before capital 
contributions 
Capital contributions 

Changes in net position 
Beginning net position 

Ending Net position 

2016 

$ 1,492 ,942 
273,465 

1,766,407 

269, 172 

781,426 
114,988 

1,165,586 

600,821 
35 ,446 

636,267 
4,438,850 

$ 5,075,117 

2015 $Change 

$ 1,219,579 $ 273,363 
122,357 151 ,108 

1,341 ,936 424,471 

241 ,912 27,260 

782 ,081 (655) 
99,495 15,493 

1, 123,488 42 ,098 

218,448 382,373 
31 ,751 3,695 

250, 199 386,068 
4,188,651 250,199 

$ 4,438 ,850 $ 636 ,267 

%Change 

22% 
123% 

32% 

11 % 

0% 
16% 

4% 

175% 
12% 

154% 
6% 

14% 

Table 2 indicates that the District's total Gross Profit increased by $273,363 resulting from 
increased water sales due to an increase in rates that took effect late in 2015. Total expenses 
increased by $42,098 mainly due to an increase in depreciation expense and interest expense. 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

As of December 31 , 2016, the District's investment in capital assets totaled $5,971 ,997, an 
increase of $104,825. A comparison of the District's capital assets over the past two years is 
presented in Note 3 of the financial statements. 
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CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 

LONG TERM DEBT 

As of December 31 , 2016, the District had $2,983, 112 in outstanding revenue bond debt, this 
is presented in the Statements of Net Position net of $1 ,628 in amortizable bond costs. The 
change in long-term debt obligations of $47,432 is from principal payments made during the 
year of $755,7 49, additional borrowings of $803,000, and amortization of bond costs of $181 . 

Additional information on the District's long-term debt is provided in Note 5 of the financial 
statements . 

ADDITIONAL FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to provide the District's customers , investors, and other 
interested parties with an overview of the District's financial operations and financial condition. 
Should the reader have questions regarding the information included in this report or wish to 
request additional financial information, please contact the CFHWD at 6926 Cumberland Falls 
Highway, Corbin Ky. 
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CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 
DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

2016 2015 
ASSETS 
CURRENT ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 707,244 $ 480,047 
Certificates of deposit 715,016 512 ,322 
Accounts receivable 189,251 168,171 
Inventory - materials and supplies 68,570 60,763 
Prepaid expenses 14, 118 12,629 

Total Current Assets 1,694, 199 1,233,932 

RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 572 ,524 414,938 

UTILITY PLANT 
Nondepreciable capital assets 73 , 147 1,137,820 
Depreciable capital assets, net of depreciation 5,898 ,850 4,729,352 

Net Utility Plant 5,971 ,997 5,867, 172 

TOT AL ASSETS $ 8,238,720 $ 7,516 ,042 

LIABILITIES 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable $ 18,263 $ 54,750 
Accrued interest 56,991 
Accrued taxes 17,268 7,341 
Revenue bonds payable - due within one year 51 ,000 792,744 

Total Current Liabilities 143,522 854 ,835 

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 
Revenue bonds payable - due in more than one year 2,930,484 2, 141 ,308 
Customer deposits 89 ,597 81 ,049 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 3,020 ,081 2,222,357 

TOTAL LIABILITIES 3, 163,603 3,077 , 192 

NET POSITION 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 2,990,513 2,931 ,311 
Restricted for debt service and Plant Replacement 572,524 414,938 
Unrestricted 1,512,080 1,092 ,601 

TOT AL NET POSITION 5,075, 117 4,438,850 

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION $ 8,238,720 $ 7,516 ,042 

The Accompanying Notes Are An Integral Part Of These Financial Statements 
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CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 
STATEMENTS OF REVENUE, EXPENSES 

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

2016 2015 

OPERATING REVENUES 
Water sales $ 1,917,569 $ 1,784,375 
Other income 64,682 58, 131 

Total Operating Revenues 1,982,251 1,842,506 

COST OF SALES 
Water purchases 489,309 622,927 

Gross Profit from Operations 1,492,942 1,219,579 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Advertising 822 1,527 
Commissioner fees 12,600 10,200 
Contractual services: 

Maintenance 3,282 11 ,932 
Operation supplies and materials 49,415 55,873 
Office supplies and other expenses 68,855 49,754 
Salaries and wages 325,733 321 ,978 
Employee benefits 185,351 191 , 720 
Professional services 37,735 29,290 
Transportation expenses 26,427 17,515 
Purchased power 22, 104 47,972 
Insurance 33,358 31 ,083 
Depreciation 269,172 241 ,912 
Bad debt expense 10,568 10, 115 
Other taxes 5,176 3,122 

Total Operating Expenses 1,050,598 1,023,993 

Operating Income (Loss) 442,344 195,586 

NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSE) 
Interest income 3,758 2,272 
Interest expense (114,988) (99,495) 
Grant income 269,707 120,085 

Net Nonoperating Revenue (Expense) 158,477 22,862 

Income (Loss) before Contributions 600,821 218,448 

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 35,446 31 ,751 

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 636,267 250,199 

NET POSITION 
Beginning of year 4,438,850 4, 188,651 
End of year $ 5,075,117 $ 4,438,850 

The Accompanying Notes Are An Integral Part Of These Financia l Statements 
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CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31 , 2016 AND 2015 

2016 
Cash flows from operating activities: 

Cash receipts from customers $ 1,961 ,171 
Cash payments to employees for services (325,733) 
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (980 ,858) 

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 654,580 

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities: 
Change in customer deposits 8,548 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities : 
Additions to capital assets (314 ,560) 
Capital contributions and grants 305 , 153 
Principal paid on debt (1 2,005) 
Interest paid on debt (57,997) 

Net cash provided (used) in capita l and related financing activities (79,409) 

Cash flows from investing activities: 
Interest received 3,758 

Net Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 587,477 

Cash and cash equivalents, Beginning of Year 1,407,307 

Cash and cash equivalents, End of Year $ 1,994,784 

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to 
net cash provided by operating activities : 
Operating income (loss) $ 442,344 

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net 
cash provided (used) by operating activities: 

Depreciation 269,172 
(Increase) decrease in operating assets : 
Accounts receivable (21 ,080) 
Inventory (7,807) 
Prepaid expenses (1 ,489) 
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities: 
Accounts payable (36,487) 
Accrued taxes 9,927 

Total cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 654,580 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents : 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 707,244 
Certifcates of deposit 715,016 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 572 ,524 

Total cash and cash equiavlents $ 1,994,784 

The Accompanying Notes Are An Integral Part Of These Financial Statements 
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2015 

$ 1,816,472 
(321 ,978) 

(1 ,046 ,027) 

448,467 

(5,579) 

(1 ,071 ,541 ) 
837,271 
(48 ,924) 
(99,314) 

(382 ,508) 

2,272 

62 ,652 

1,344 ,655 

$ 1,407,307 

$ 195,586 

241 ,912 

(26 ,034) 
(3,169) 

349 

39 ,298 
525 

$ 448,467 

$ 480,047 
512 ,322 
414,938 

$ 1,407,307 



CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Reporting Entity 

Cumberland Falls Highway Water District is a "Class B" water district located in Whitley 
County, Kentucky, with principal offices located at 6926 Cumberland Falls Highway, 
Corbin , Kentucky. It was organized in 1967, under Kentucky Revised Statutes, Chapter 
74. It is overseen by a three-member commission consisting of a chairman and two 
commissioners, all appointed by Whitley County Fiscal Court. Water is purchased from 
City of Corbin , City of Williamsburg and East Laurel Water District and resold to 
approximately 3,200 residential and commercial customers . 

Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus 

The District is accounted for as a governmental proprietary fund and as such, its 
financial statements include a Statement of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses and Changes in Net Position , and a Statement of Cash Flows. The District is 
financed and operated in a manner similar to a private business where the intent of the 
governing body is that cost (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or 
services to the public on a continuing basis are financed primarily through user charges. 

The District is accounted for using the "economic resources" measurement focus and 
the accrual basis of accounting . Accordingly, all assets, deferred outflows or resources, 
liabilities, and deferred inflows or resources are included on the Statement of Net 
Position . The Statement of Revenues , Expenses and Changes in Net Position presents 
increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position . Under the accrual 
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned 
while expenses are recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred , regardless 
of the timing of related cash flows. 

Operating Revenues and Expenses: The District distinguishes operating revenues and 
expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result 
from providing services and producing and delivering water to customers in connection 
with the District's ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues are charges to 
customers for water sales and services. Operating expenses include the cost of 
purchased water and other related service expenses, administrative expenses, and 
depreciation on capital assets . All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition 
are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. Non-operating revenues and 
expenses generally result from contracts with other entities to move existing water lines 
as required by road and railroad maintenance and improvements. 

Property and Equipment: The District capitalizes expenditures for property and 
equipment of $1 ,000 or more. Property and equipment are stated at cost. Donations 
are recorded at their fair market value at the date of transfer. No donated assets were 
received in the years ended December 31 , 2016 and 2015 

10 



CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Property and Equipment_: 
Depreciation of exhaustible fixed assets is charged as an expense against operations, 
and accumulated depreciation is reported on the balance sheets. Depreciation is 
provided for financial statement purposes by the straight-line method over the following 
estimated useful lives: 

Lines and storage 
Building 
Pumps and treatment equipment 
Maintenance equipment and vehicles . 
Office furniture and equipment 

50 years 
30 years 
20 years 
3-10 years 
3-5 years 

Capital Grants and Subsidies: The purchase of property and equipment acquired by 
grants and subsidies restricted for that purpose are capitalized and the grant or subsidy 
is recorded as non-operating revenue. These grants and subsidies are not subject to 
repayment. Certain plant assets have been contributed by customers. These 
contributions are not subject to repayment. 

Accounts Receivable: The District uses the direct write-off method for accounting for 
bad debts, which management feels is not materially different from the allowance 
method . Accounts written off as uncollectible during the years ended December 31 , 
2016 and 2015 totaled $10,568 and $10, 115, respectively. Receivables outstanding in 
excess of ninety days at December 31 , 2016 and 2015 totaled $10,219 and $10,117, 
respectively. 

Inventory: Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market determined by the first­
in , first-out method . 

Cash and Cash Equivalents: The District includes in cash and cash equivalents, cash 
on hand and unrestricted cash in checking , money market accounts , federated treasury 
obligation funds, and unrestricted certificates of deposit with maturities of three months 
or less. 

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents: The District has designated bank accounts per 
the loan resolution covenants for debt service, depreciation fund and meter deposits. 

Amortization of Debt Expense: Debt expense on the Waterworks Refunding and 
Improvement Revenue Bond of 1986, Series B, originally tota ling $13, 799, is being 
amortized over the life of the outstanding bonds. Amortization expense was $181 and 
$181 for 2016 and 2015, respectively. This has been included in interest expense. 
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CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported 
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period . Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

Interest: Interest is charged to expense as incurred except for interest related to loans 
used for construction projects, which is capitalized net of interest earned on such 
borrowed construction funds. Interest capitalization ceases when the construction 
project is substantially complete. There was no capitalized interest during 2016 and 
2015. 

Net Position Classifications: The District records restrictions for portions of its net 
position which are legally segregated for specific future use or which do not represent 
available spendable resources and therefore are not available for appropriation. 
Unrestricted portions of net position indicate amounts which are available for 
appropriation in future periods. Restrictions in net position are classified as follows: 

-Investment in capital assets, net of related debt includes the District's capital 
assets, (net of accumulated depreciation) reduced by the outstanding balances 
of bonds, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, 
construction , or improvement of those assets. 

-Restricted for Debt Service and Plant Renewal and replacement includes 
assets that have been set aside as required by statute or bond covenant for the 
future payment of the District's Debt and includes assets that have been set 
aside for future additions, repairs or replacement of property, plant or 
infrastructure. 

Unrestricted - This component of net position consists of net position that does not 
meet the definitions of "restricted" or "invested in capital assets, net of related debt. " 

Fair Value Measurements: The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents , 
accounts receivable, accounts payable , customer deposits and bonds approximates fair 
value because of the relative terms and short maturities of these financial instruments. 
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CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

NOTE 2 - COMPOSITION OF CASH 

The District investment policies conform to state statutes. The District deposits its funds 
in banks insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) . Investments 
include certificates of deposit with maturities of one year with banks. Collateral is 
required for all deposits in excess of FDIC insurance at 100% of the carrying amount at 
the bank. Collateral consists of obligations of the United States and Kentucky Revenue 
Bonds. The District's deposits and investments are collateralized with securities held by 
the bank's trust department in the District's name or letter of credit held by a third party 
in the District's name.. Following is an analysis of cash at December 31 , 2016 and 
2015: 

Unrestricted 
Restricted 

Total 

December 31 , 2016 
Bank Book 

Balance Balance 
$1,427,421 $1,422,260 

573,354 572,524 
$2,000,775 $1 ,994,784 

December 31 , 2015 
Bank Book 

Balance Balance 
$ 998,241 $ 992,369 

435,611 414,938 
$1,433,852 $1,407,307 

Custodial Credit Risk-Deposits Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of the 
failure of a financial institution, the District's deposits and/or investments may not be 
returned to it. The District does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. 

NOTE 3 - CREATION OF FUNDS AND RESTRICTIONS ON CASH 

The Bond Resolutions require the creation of various separate deposit accounts, each 
designated for a specific purpose, as defined in the resolution . A summary of the 
required accounts and their significant provisions follows: 

Revenue Fund 

All income to the District is deposited to the Revenue Fund, and then transferred to 
the other funds as indicated below. 

Bond and Interest Sinking Funds and Sinking Fund Reserves 

The Bond and Interest Sinking Funds were established to provide sources of funds 
for the payment of bond principal and interest, currently due. Each month funds 
equal to the total of (1) one-sixth of the next succeeding semiannual interest 
payment plus (2) one-twelfth of the next annual bond principal payments are to be 
transferred to the funds . 
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CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

NOTE 3 - CREATION OF FUNDS AND RESTRICTIONS ON CASH (continued) 

Depreciation Reserve Fund 

The Depreciation Reserve Fund was established to provide funds for extraordinary 
repairs , betterments, and expansion. The District is required to make deposits into 
the fund each month until the accumulated balance equals $119,025. Funds may 
be used as needed , but the balance must be restored to $119,025, as soon as 
possible, so long as any bonds are outstanding and unpaid. 

Operation and Maintenance Fund 

Monthly sums, sufficient to meet the current expenses of operating and maintaining 
the system, are to be transferred from the Revenue Fund. The balance shall not be 
in excess of an amount sufficient to cover anticipated expenditures for a two-month 
period , which is approximately $175,000. The balances as of December 31 , 2016 
and 2015 were $132,394 and $12,341 , respectively. 

NOTE 4 - UTILITY PLANT 

Details of utility plant activity for the year ending December 31 , 2016 are as follows: 
Balance Dec Balance Dec 

31 , 2015 Additions Deletions 31 , 2016 

Nondepreciable Capital Assets: 

Land & Land Rights $ 73,147 $ 7 0 $ 0 $ 73,147 

Construction in Progress 1,064,673 308,448 1,373,121 0 

Total Nondepreciable 1, 137,820 308,448 1,373 ,121 73 ,147 

Depreciable Capital Assets: 

Pumping Plant 181,449 1,373,1 21 0 1,554,570 

Transmission & Distribution Plant 8,065 ,700 39 ,761 0 8,105,461 

General Plant 478 ,083 25,787 0 503 ,870 

Total Depreciable 8,725 ,232 1,438,669 0 10, 163,901 

Total Utility Plant 9,863 ,052 1,747,117 1,373,121 10,237,048 

Less: Accumulated Depreciation (3,995 ,880) (269,172) 0 (4,265,052) 

Net Utility Plant $ 5,867 ,172 $1 ,477,945 $1 ,373,121 $ 5,971 ,996 
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CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS . 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

NOTE 5 - BONDS PAYABLE 

The Waterworks Revenue Bonds, Series 1996, provide for the partial financing of the 
cost of construction of extension, additions, and improvements to the existing system. 
The interest rate of the Bonds is 4.50%. The maturity date is 01 /01 /35 . 

The Waterworks Revenue Bonds, Series 2001 , provide for the partial financing of the 
cost of construction of extension, additions, and improvements to the existing 
waterworks system. The interest rate of the Bonds is 4.50%. The maturity date is 
01/01/41 . 

The Waterworks Revenue Bonds, Series 2007, provide for the partial financing of the 
cost of construction of extension, additions, and improvements to the existing 
waterworks system. The interest rate of the Bonds is 4.125%. The maturity date is 
01/01/44. 

The Waterworks Revenue Bonds, Series 2016, provide for the partial financing of the 
cost of construction of extension, additions, and improvements to the existing 
waterworks system. The interest rate of the Bonds is 2.625%. The maturity date is 
01/01/55. 

Al l bonds are secured by a lien on the gross income and revenues derived from the 
operation of the system sufficient to pay principal and interest on the bonds, as well as a 
statutory mortgage lien on the water util ity plant and all properties therewith , pursuant to 
the Kentucky Revised Statutes, and also a first lien on all water purchase contracts 
owned by the District. The U.S. Department of Agriculture's Rural Economic 
Community Development (RECD) , formerly Farmers Home Administration, requires the 
District to prepay monthly the required amounts of interest, due January 1 and July 1, 
and the required amounts of principal due January 1, according to bond redemption 
schedules. 
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CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

NOTE 5 - BONDS PAYABLE (Continued) 

The annual requirements for debt service as of December 31 , 2016, are as follows: 

Year Ending Interest Principal Total 

2017 $ 114,328 $ 51 ,000 $ 165,328 

2018 112,121 65 ,000 177,121 

2019 109,498 68,000 177,498 

2020 106,752 71 ,000 177,752 

2021 103,884 74,500 178,384 

2022-2026 471 ,795 418,500 890,295 

2027-2031 379,401 512,500 891 ,901 

2032-2036 266,446 568,903 835,349 

2037-2041 159,550 519,240 678,790 

2042-2046 65, 108 363,969 398,471 

2047-2051 29,588 142,000 171 ,588 

2052-2055 8,950 128,500 137,450 

Total $1 ,927,421 $2 ,983, 112 $4,879,927 

The following is a summary of bonds payable for the year ended December 31 , 2016: 

Amount due 
Beginning Ending within one 
Balance Additions Reductions Balance }'.ear 

1996 Issue $531 ,025 $0 $3,540 $527,485 $18,500 
2001 Issue 411 ,838 0 2,320 409,518 9,000 
20071ssue 1,249,254 0 6,145 1,243, 109 23,500 
2016 Issue 743,744 803,000 743,744 803,000 0 
Total Debt $2 ,935,861 $803,000 $755,749 $2,983,112 $51 ,000 

Interest expense paid during 2016 and 2015 was $114,988 and $99,314, respectively. 

NOTE 5 - RETIREMENT PLAN 

The District adopted a Savings Incentive Match Plan for Employees of Small Employers 
(SIMPLE) effective October 1, 2006. The SIMPLE IRA is available to employees who 
are expected to receive at least $5,000 in compensation during the year and who 
received at least $5,000 in compensation during the prior year. The District matches 
participants ' contributions to the Plan up to 3% of the participants' compensation . The 
District's contributions to the plan for 2016 and 2015 totaled $9,320 and $9,67 4, 
respectively. 
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CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015 

NOTE 6 - ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY 

The District is economically dependent for water purchases from the following three 
entities which account for 100% of water purchases: 

Name 2016 2015 
Corbin City Utilities $ 293,902 $ 332,941 
City of Williamsburg 142,706 179,628 
W. Laurel Water District 52,701 110,358 

$ 489,309 $ 622,927 

The District has entered into a water purchase agreements with the entities listed 
above, whereas the contract requires the entities to provide water to the District and the 
rates the District will be charged therein. The contracts will extend for terms ranging 
from 45 - 52 years beginning in 1968. The entities will not be required in any case to sell 
the District more than 8,000,000 gallons of water in any one month. The entities may 
interrupt the water supply for various reasons as outlined in the agreements. 

NOTE 7 - RECLASSIFICATION OF PRIOR YEAR AMOUNTS 

Certain 2015 amounts have been reclassified for consistency with the 2016 
presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on the reported results of operations. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

PINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING 
STANDARDS 

To the Board of Commissioners of 
The Cumberland Falls Highway Water District 
Corbin , KY 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial 
statements of the business-type activities of the Cumberland Falls Highway Water District, as of 
and for the year ended December 31 , 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the Cumberland Falls Highway Water District's basic financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated April 18, 201 7. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Cumberland 
Falls Highway Water District's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to 
determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of 
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the Cumberland Falls Highway Water District's internal control. 
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Cumberland Falls Highway 
Water District's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control , such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, 
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Cumberland Falls Highway Water 
District's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its 
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations , contracts, and grant agreements, 
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of 
financial statement amounts. 

However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing , and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed 
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, th is communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Lexington, KY 
April 18, 2017 
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5:20 PM 
06/17/17 
Accrual Basis 

CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 
Balance Sheet 
As of May 31 , 2017 

ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Checking/Savings 
Revenue Fund - CVB 
Payroll Checking - CVB 
0 & M Fund - CVB 
Petty Cash Fund 
Depreciation Res Fund - CVB 
Meter Deposit Fund - CVB 
FMHA Reserve Fund - CVB 
Tax Liability Account 
Certificate of Deposit 12/22 

Total Checking/Savings 

Accounts Receivable 
Customer Accounts Receivable 

Total Accounts Receivable 

Other Current Assets 
Inventory 
Prepaid Insurance 
Misc. Deferred Debits - Ser B 

Total Other Current Assets 

Total Current Assets 

Fixed Assets 
Accumulated Depreciation 
Trans/Distr - Land & ROM 
Plant-Land & ROW 
Pumping Plant Struc & lmprov 
Plant-Stuct & Improvements 
Pump. Pit-Elect Struc & Eq 
Trans/Distr-Reservoirs 
Trans/Distr-Lines 
Trans/Distr-Mains 
Trans/Distr-Meters 
Trans/Distr-Meter lnstallatio 
Trans/Distr-Hydrants 
Plant-Office Furn & Eq 
Plant-Transportation Eq 
Plant-Tools Shop & Grarage Eq 
Backhoe 
Plant-Communication Eq 
Other Misc Equipment 

May 31 , 17 

622,277.76 
33, 111.43 

170,209.03 
1,605.13 

372,855.72 
97,856.94 

132,410.30 
15,614.63 

715,964.51 

2, 161,905.45 

183,557.21 

183,557.21 

75,250.22 
6, 118.00 
1,809.05 

83,177.27 

2,428,639.93 

-4,340,742.00 
22,492.00 
50,655.00 

1,457,394.81 
149,818.20 

97,175.14 
1,005,396.26 
6,331,755.76 

17,528.23 
500,336.05 
235,763.93 

5,525.44 
58,335.57 

164, 117.48 
49,577.94 
45,450.00 

5,130.59 
14,940.56 
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5:20 PM 

06/17/17 
Accrual Basis 

CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 

Balance Sheet 

CAT Mini-Excavator 

Total Fixed Assets 

Other Assets 
10405 ·New WIP 
Clearing accont 

Total Other Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

LIABILITIES & EQUITY 
Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
Accounts Payable 

As of May 31 , 2017 

Other Accounts Payalble 
School taxes 
Ky Sales Tax Payable 

Total Accounts Payable 

Other Current Liabilities 
Customer Deposits 
Whitley Co. Occ Tax liability 
Accrued Interest - Other 
American Funds 
2100 · Payroll Liabilities 

Company FICA 
Company Medicare 
Emloyee FICA 
Employee Medicare 
Federal Withholding 
State Withholding 
2100 · Payroll Liabilities - 0 ... 

Total 2100 · Payroll Liabilities 

Whitley Co. 911 fees 

Total Other Current Liabilities 

Total Current Liabilities 

Long Term Liabilities 
Bonds - RECD Loan Ln # 91-05 
Bonds - 2001 Ln # 91-08 
Loan #91-14 

May 31 , 17 

16,500.00 

5,887' 150.96 

14,900.00 
-77.03 

14,822.97 

8,330,613.86 

-2,035.00 
4,686.69 
-207.13 

2,444.56 

82,775.48 
551.43 

47,500.00 
1,606.47 

19,330.29 
4,896.48 

20,936.86 
4,948.05 

34,895.62 
-70,450.66 
-12,623.71 

1,932.93 

9,858.00 

144,224.31 

146,668.87 

515,000.00 
402,837.96 

1,226,754.05 
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5:20 PM 
06/17/17 
Accrual Basis 

CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 
Balance Sheet 
As of May 31 , 2017 

RD Loan 91 -16 

Total Long Term Liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

Equity 
Appropriated Retained Earning 
Contribution in Aid of Constr 
Fed Grants in Aid of Constr 
Contr in Aid of Const - Other 
3900 · Retained Earnings 
Net Income 

Total Equity 

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 

May31,17 . / 

803,000.00 v 
2,947,592.01 

3,094,260.88 

435,799.99 
2,730,622.00 
2,843,699.00 

5,000.00 
. -900,401.21 

121 ,633.20 

5,236,352.98 

8,330,613.86 
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5:22 PM 
06/17/17 
Accrual Basis 

CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 
Profit & Loss 

May 2017 

Ordinary Income/Expense 
Income 

WATER SALES 
Sales - Res Customers 
Sales - Commercial 
Sales - Pub Auth 
Industrial Sales 
Sales - Fire Protection 
Sales - Public Utilities 

Total WATER SALES 

Total Income 

Expense 
DEPRECIATION EXPENSE 
CONTRACT SERVICES 

Contract Services - Dist Oper 

Total CONTRACT SERVICES 

Labor, Wages, & Benefits 
Administrative regular wages 
Administrative overtime 
Operations regular labor 
Operations overtime 
Employee benefits 
Retirement benefit 
Labor alloc to Meter Install 

Total Labor, Wages, & Benefits 

MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Mat & Supplies - Dist Opers 
Mat & Supplies - Dist Maint 
Mat & Supplies - Cust. Acct 

Total MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 

OTHER EXPENSE 
Interest expense - Cust Depos 
Commissioners fees 
Insurance - Auto/Gen Adm 
Insurance - Fidelity Bonds 
Advertising 
Uncollectable Accounts 
Misc - Admin & General 

May 17 

134,558.15 
4,514.74 
6,385.28 
2,085.94 

24.18 
539.84 

148,108.13 vi 
148,108.13 

20,130.00 

170.00 

170.00 

7,866.00 
103.50 

15,198.40 
6,288.26 

16,638.22 
812.36 

-945.74 

45,961 .00 

55.00 
4,923.47 
2,023.43 

7,001 .90 

6.59 
1,500.00 
1,600.14 

616.98 
822.38 
452.35 

16,771.34 
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5:22 PM 
06/17/17 
Accrual Basis 

CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 
Profit & Loss 

May 2017 

Total OTHER EXPENSE 

OUTSIDE SERVICES 
Outside Services - Acctg 
Outside Services - Legal 

Total OUTSIDE SERVICES 

POWER 
Power - Pumping 

Total POWER 

TRANSPORTATION 
Transportation - Dist Oper 
Transportation - Dist Maint 
Trans/Dist - Misc Exp Ops 
Misc - Trans/Distr Maint 

Total TRANSPORTATION 

WATER PURCHASED 
Water Purchased - Corbin 
Water purchased - W'Burg 
Water purchased - W. Laurel 

Total WATER PURCHASED 

Total Expense 

Net Ordinary Income 

Other Income/Expense 
Other Income 

Interest Income 
MISC INCOME 

Sales - Misc 

Total MISC INCOME 

Total Other Income 

Other Expense 
INTEREST EXPENSE 

Interest expense - LT. Debt 

Total INTEREST EXPENSE 

Total Other Expense 

May 17 

21,769.78 

2,395.00 
75.00 

2,470.00 

1,090.33 

1,090.33 

1,031.62 
1,031.62 

243.64 
243.65 

2,550.53 

29,249.20 
11,055.00 

545.93 

40,850.13 

141,993.67 

6,114.46 

119.09 

5,279.93 

5,279.93 

5,399.02 

9,500.00 

9,500.00 

9,500.00 
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5:22' PM 

06/17/17 
Accrual Basis 

CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 

Profit & Loss 
May 2017 

May 17 

Net Other Income -4,100.98 

Net Income 2,013.48 
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5:25 PM CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 

06/17/17 Profit & Loss - YTD Comparison 
Accrual Basis January through May 2017 

Jan - May 17 Jan - May 16 $Change 

Ordinary Income/Expense 
Income 

WATER SALES 
Sales - Res Customers 708,087.04 703,834.92 4,252.12 
Sales - Commercial 20,653.72 19,091.76 1,561.96 
Sales - Pub Auth 25,308.29 29,934.87 -4,626.58 
Industrial Sales 10,240.36 9,568.84 671.52 
Sales - Fire Protection 154.99 105.87 49.12 
Sales - Public Utilities 3,000.30 2,734.73 265.57 ( 

Total WATER SALES 767,444.70 765,270.99 2,173.71 

Total Income 767,444.70 765,270.99 2, 173.71 

Expense 
DEPRECIATION EXPENSE 100,650.00 103,302.00 -2,652.00 
CONTRACT SERVICES 

Contract Services - Dist Oper 1,200.00 860.00 340.00 
Contract Services - Dist Main 0.00 81.60 -81.60 

Total CONTRACT SERVICES 1,200.00 941.60 258.40 

Labor, Wages, & Benefits 
Administrative regular wag ... 36,936.00 36,594.00 342.00 
Administrative overtime 424.15 96.76 327.39 
Operations regular labor 71,366.40 73,434.34 -2,067.94 
Operations overtime 23,539.53 18, 172.05 5,367.48 v 
Employee benefits 81,591.99 70,493.70 11 ,098.29 
Retirement benefit 3,956.00 706.56 3,249.44 
Labor alloc to Meter Install -5,083.64 -3, 145.60 -1,938.04 

Total Labor, Wages, & Benefits 212,730.43 196,351.81 16,378.62 

MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 
Mat & Supplies - Pump Maint 0.00 3,588.84 -3,588.84 
Mat & Supplies - Treat. Ope ... 506.76 590.00 -83.24 
Mat & Supplies - Dist Opers 289.08 1,233.07 -943.99 
Mat & Supplies - Dist Maint 22,873.14 15,903.19 6,969.95 
Mat & Supplies - Cust. Acct 9,557.85 12,616.74 -3,058.89 

Total MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 33,226.83 33,931.84 -705.01 

OTHER EXPENSE 
Interest expense - Cust De ... 18.92 87.59 -68.67 
Commissioners fees 7,500.00 4,500.00 3,000.00 
Unemployment Insurance 0.00 4,104.08 -4,104.08 
Insurance - Auto/Gen Adm 8,000.70 8,000.70 0.00 
Workers Comp Insurance 1,886.60 1,185.92 700.68 
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5:25 PM CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 

06/17/17 Profit & Loss - YTD Comparison 
Accrual Basis January through May 2017 

Jan - May 17 Jan - May 16 $Change 

Insurance - Fidelity Bonds 3,084.90 0.00 3,084.90 
Advertising 879.76 0.00 879.76 
Uncollectable Accounts 11,184.67 10,633.32 551.35 v 
Misc - Admin & General 33,266.35 11,661.57 21,604.78 

Total OTHER EXPENSE 65,821.90 40,173.18 25,648.72 

OUTSIDE SERVICES 
Outside Services - Acctg 11,975.00 11 ,975.00 0.00 
Outside Services - Legal 225.00 150.00 75.00 

Total OUTSIDE SERVICES 12,200.00 12,125.00 75.00 

POWER 
Power - Pumping 7,465.50 12,611.18 -5, 145.68 
Power - Office 0.00 124.33 -124.33 

Total POWER 7,465.50 12,735.51 -5,270.01 

TRANSPORTATION 
Transportation - Dist Oper 3,683.98 4,565.89 -881.91 
Transportation - Dist Maint 3,749.04 4,777.21 -1 ,028.17 
Trans/Dist - Misc Exp Ops 1,345.57 225.09 1, 120.48 
Misc - Trans/Distr Maint 1,345.61 749.27 596.34 

Total TRANSPORTATION 10,124.20 10,317.46 -193.26 

WATER PURCHASED 
Water Purchased - Corbin 134,594.80 102,179.92 32,414.88 
Water purchased - W'Burg 57,175.00 48,969.90 8,205.10 
Water purchased - W. Laurel 1,677.51 31 ,894.79 -30,217.28 

Total WATER PURCHASED 193,447.31 183,044.61 10,402.70 

Total Expense 636,866.17 592,923.01 43,943.16 

Net Ordinary Income 130,578.53 172,347.98 -41,769.45 

Other Income/Expense 
Other Income 

Interest Income 2,711.66 367.79 2,343.87 
MISC INCOME 

Sales - Misc Penalties 0.00 0.01 -0.01 
Sales - Misc 23,652.56 25,911.90 -2,259.34 

Total MISC INCOME 23,652.56 25,911.91 -2,259.35 

Total Other Income 26,364.22 26,279.70 84.52 
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5:25 PM 
06/17/17 
Accrual Basis 

CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 
Profit & Loss - YTD Comparison 

January through May 2017 

Jan - May 17 Jan - May 16 

Other Expense 
INTEREST EXPENSE 

Interest expense - LT. Debt 57,261.04 12,004.00 

Total INTEREST EXPENSE 57,261.04 12,004.00 

Total Other Expense 57,261.04 12,004.00 

Net Other Income -30,896.82 14,275.70 

Net Income 99,681.71 186,623.68 

$Change 

45,257.04 

45,257.04 

45,257.04 

-45,172.52 

-86,941.97 
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5:41 PM CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 
06/17/17 Budget vs Actual 
Accrual Basis January through May 2017 

Jan - May 17 Budget $ Over Budget 

Ordinary Income/Expense 
Income 

WATER SALES 767,444.70 764,500.00 2,944.70 

Total Income 767,444.70 764,500.00 2,944.70 

Expense 
DEPRECIATION EXPEN ... 100,650.00 102,000.00 -1,350.00 
CONTRACT SERVICES 1,200.00 1,250.00 -50.00 

Labor, Wages, & Benefits 217,814.07 196,300.00 21,514.07 

MATERIALS & SUPPLIES 33,226.83 33,650.00 -423.17 

OTHER EXPENSE 65,821.90 39,950.00 25,871.90 

OUTSIDE SERVICES 12,200.00 11,800.00 400.00 

POWER 7,465.50 12,700.00 -5,234.50 

TAXES 0.00 0.00 0.00 

TRANSPORTATION 10,124.20 8,400.00 1,724.20 

WATER PURCHASED 193,447.31 237,000.00 -43,552.69 

Total Expense 641,949.81 643,050.00 -1, 100.19 

Net Ordinary Income 125,494.89 121,450.00 4,044.89 

Other Income/Expense 
Other Income 

Interest Income 2,711.66 
MISC INCOME 23,652.56 25,845.00 -2,192.44 

Total Other Income 26,364.22 25,845.00 519.22 

Other Expense 
INTEREST EXPENSE 57,261.04 26,665.00 30,596.04 

Total Other Expense 57,261.04 26,665.00 30,596.04 

Net Other Income -30,896.82 -820.00 -30,076.82 

Net Income 94,598.07 120,630.00 -26,031.93 
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Monthly Cash Report 
May-17 

MONTHLY 

5/31/2017 4/30/2017 $Change 

Checking/Savings 
Revenue Fund - CVB 622,277.76 640,121.67 -17,843.91 
Payroll Checking - CVB 33,111.43 23,936.90 9,174.53 
0 & M Fund - CVB 170,209.03 130,647.76 39,561.27 
Petty Cash Fund 1,605.13 1,605.13 0.00 
Construction Fund - CVB 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Depreciation Res Fund - CVB 372,855.72 366,800.83 6,054.89 
Meter Deposit Fund - CVB 97,856.94 95,829.56 2,027.38 
Tax Liability Account 15,614.63 13,376.77 2,237.86 
Certificate of Deposit 12/22 715,964.51 715,964.51 0.00 

Total Operating cash 2,029,495.15 1,988,283.13 . 41,212.02 

FMHA Reserve Fund - CVB 132,410.30 132,410.30 0.00 

Total cash 2, 161,905.45 2, 120,693.43 01,212.0~ 
"-. -

YTD 

5/31/2017 12/31/2016 $Change 

Checking/Savings 
Revenue Fund - CVB 622,277.76 519,601.66 102,676.10 
Payroll Checking - CVB 33,111.43 7,318.28 25,793.15 
0 & M Fund - CVB 170,209.03 169,822.12 386.91 
Petty Cash Fund 1,605.13 1,605.13 0.00 
Construction Fund - CVB 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Depreciation Res Fund - CVB 372,855.72 350,533.08 22,322.64 
Meter Deposit Fund - CVB 97,856.94 89,597.07 8,259.87 
Tax Liability Account 15,614.63 9,882.81 5,731.82 
Certificate of Deposit 12/22 715,964.51 713,818.24 2,146.27 

Total operating cash 2,029,495.15 1,862, 178.39 167,316.76 

FMHA Reserve Fund - CVB 132,410.30 132,393.61 16.69 

Total cash 2, 161,905.45 1,994,572.00 (161 ,3;3.45 
'--..... 



Exhibit H 

Existing Long Term Debt 
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R-1 

The ~older of tlus Bona has comenred to the issuance of$ Si z 
on a panty as go secw-uy and source of paymeru w· 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA l. 

COMMONWEAL TH OF KENTUCKY 
COUNTY OF WHITLEY 

CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 
WATERWORKS REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 1996 

INTEREST RATE: 4.50% 

REGISTERED 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: That the Cumberland Fal ls Highway Water District (the "District"). aC1ing by and through tts Board of Commissioners {the "Commission;, a publ ic body corporate in Whitley County, Kentucky, for value received, 
hereby promises to pay to UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, acting by and through the U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, 77t Corporate Drive. Suite 200, Lexington, Kentucky 40503-5477, the registered owner hereof. or to tts registered assigns, solely 
from the fund hereinafter identified, the sum of 

on the first day of January, in years and installments as follows: 

·'·-

Attest:L 

WfSTERFIRD ·OONTE CO. , INC., LOUJSV1\.lf. Ml. 

SEVEN HUNDRED SIXTY-SIX THOUSAND DOLLARS ($766,000) 

. ,. 

This Bond is issued by the District under and in full compliance with the Constitution and Statutes of the Commonwealth 
of Kentucky , including Chapters 58 and 74 of the Kentucky Revised Statutes (colleC1ively the "Acr) , and pursuant to a duly 
adopted Bond Resolution of the District authorizing same (the 11Current Bond Resolution"), to which Current Bond Resolution 
reference is hereby made for a description of the nature and extent of the security thereby created, the rights and limitations of 
rights of the registered owner of th is Bond, and the rights, obligations and duties of the District, for the purpose of financing the 
cost (not otherwise provided) of the construction of extensions, additions and improvements to the existing waterworks system 
of the District (said existing waterwori<s system, together with said extensions, additions and improvements, being hereinafter 
referred to as the ' System;. 

This Bond ranks on a parity as to security and source of payment with certain outstanding Cumbertand Falls Highway 
Water District Waterworks Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bonds of 1986, Series A and B, dated June 27, 1 986 as to the 
Series A Bonds and May 20, 1987 as to the Series B Bonds (the "Prior Bonds"), au1horized by a Resolution adopted by the 
Commission of !he District on June 9, 1986 (the "Prior Bond Resolution .. ). According ly, the Prior Bonds, this Bond, together with 
ar'1y bonds ranking on a parity herewith, is payable from and secured on a first lien basis by a pledge of the gross revenues to 
be derived from 1ha operation of the System. 

OFT~~~r N THE REVERSE HEREOF] 

'~~~~~ reqwred to exist, happen and be performed 
en performed in due time, form and manner 
galions of the District, does not exceed any 



REGISTERED 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
COMMONWEAL TH OF KENTUCKY 

COUNTY OF WHITLEY 

CUMBERLAND FALLS IDGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 
WATERWORKS REVENUE BOND, SERIES 2001 

Interest Rate: 4.50% 

The holder of~h!s Bond has consented to the issuance of $~146 .• 0".,U of bonds 
rank.mg on a pant) as w .secunty and source of paymenl with this bond. 

REGISTERED 

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: That the Cumberland Falls Highway Water District (the "Districr), acting by and through its Board of Commissioners (the "Commission"), a public body corporate in Whitle~ 
County, Kentucky, for value received, hereby promises to pay to the UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, acting by and through the U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE. 771 Corporate Drive, Suite 200, Lexington, Kentuck) 
40503-5477, the Registered Owner hereof, or to its registered assigns, as hereinafter provided, solely from the fund hereinafter identified, the sum of 

FIVE HUNDRED TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($502,000) 
on the first day of January, in years and installments as follows: and Interest being payable, without deduction for exchange or collection charges, in lawful money of the United 

Payment Due Principal Payment Due Principal Payment Due Principal States of America, at the address of the Registered Owner shown on the registration book of the District. 
~ ~ 4mlwm'.J.. ~ ~ .Elllmmnl This Bond is issued by the District under and in full compliance with the Const~ution and Statutes of the 

2004 $5,000 2017 $ 9,000 2030 $16,500 Commonwealth of Kentucky, including Chapters 58 and 74 of the Kentucky Revised Statutes (collectively the 
2005 5,500 2018 9,500 2031 17,000 "Act"), and pursuant to a duly adopted Bond Resolution of the District authorizing same (the "Current Bond 
2000 5,500 2019 1 o.ooo 2032 10,000 Resolution"), to which Current Bond Resolution reference is hereby made for a description of the nature and 
2001 6,000 2020 10,500 2033 18,500 extent of the security thereby created, the rights and limitations of rights of the Registered Owner of this Bond, 
2000 6,000 2021 11 ,000 2034 19,500 and the rights, obligations and duties of the District, for the purpose of financing the cost (not otherwise 
2009 6,500 2022 1 1 ,500 2035 21 ,000 provided) of the construction of extensions, additions and improvements to the existing waterworks system of 
2010 7,000 2023 12 ,000 2035 21 ,500 the District (said existing waterworks system, together with said extensions, additions and improvements, being 
2011 7,000 2024 12,500 2037 23,000 hereinafter referred to as the "System"). 
2012 7,500 2025 13,000 2038 23,500 [FURTHER PROVISIONS OF THIS BOND ARE SET FORTH ON THE REVERSE HEREOF] 
2013 7,500 2026 13,500 2039 25,000 It 1s hereby certified, recited and declared that all acts, condrt1ons and things required to exist, happen and 

~~:: ::~~ ., P~~~r~ ~~~~ ~ ri:S&1~~m~-uab•JR~~J!ac~n~:~~l~~o~~~t~~~'in~~e;i~e:if~~~ 
2016 9,000 ~-- ,o ~ . iJJ.500~ ' ~ ~ · 1gations · tnc es ~xc~,iP,.Y;-).ilJ:l1t nbed ~the Const1tut1on or Statutes of the 

~ ~ ~~ ~ ~~ 1~ ·~ monw tuc1r~- w~ w.~ and in hke manner, solely from said i[6( , to nter on the bala~f sai<f'.O c1 um~,Jwtim~ time ~~ IN W ESS WHER sailmbld Falls Higt(~ Wat lstnct, by its Board of Commissioners, 
remaining unpaid, at the Interest Rat ec1fi ve yo · of ua~ each ~ cause ~~ b ecute its ~JWJW'...#fo. c to be hereunto affixed, and attested by 
year, beginning with the first Janua July ~th Bon , su :1s pa1 , as the ecreta , :<ffile o is Bon , ~1c ~{!1i'lfar , 2002. 
prov1s1ons hereinafter set forth with respect to prepayment may be and become applicable hereto, bo!JI. principal 

\ ~"",\\t 

Wl!STl!AflUD·DONTt CO,, INC .. lOUtSvtlLE. KY. 

\\0\9tl0f ll\ ~ ".. t , .. E Of 
tOISl•l' to b\~u~ 1'".il\lt 
'<iU:31 ooo Of a S"= ·ij! 'n H• 
'.)I flt\ I 11 lPSITl:\ t3 l ; S ;Qll 
SOUICE Of 1

' 

CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 
Whitley County, Kentucky 

By:~ 



UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
COMMONWEAL TH OF KENTUCKY 

COUNTY OF WHITLEY 

REGISTERED CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT REGISTERED 

WATERWORKS REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2005 
INTEREST RATE: 4.125% 

$1,415;000 
KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: That the Cumberland Falls Highway Water District (the "Districf'), acting by and through its Board of Commissioners (the "Commission"), a public body corporate in Whitley Coun 

Kentucky for value received, hereby promises to pay to UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, acting by and through the U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE, 771 Corporate Drive, Suite 200, Lexington, Kentucky 40503-5477, the Register 
Owner hereof, or its registered assigns, solely from the fund hereinafter identified, the sum of 

ONE MILLION FOUR HUNDRED FIFTEEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($1,415,000) 
on the first day of January, in years and installments as follows: 

Attest.rP~ 

WESlERFIB.D·BONTE CO., INC .. lOUISVILLE . KY. 

# ,,,;'._((i_(((•)~·~·:.:;~·i'i; . 
_.~,,_... Q FAll ···!i; . 

COUNTY 

OF WHITLEY 

·'r -~ ,.- . , . 
'·!i· .. ~Ii D\S ~ _..~,y 

·!!!f!f!Hffif f_iffif~~~-· 

CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 
Whitley County, Kentucky 

By:.-'---'~-~--=-----""'---' j/)f_· -'---~----
Chairman 



No. R-1 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
COMMONWEAL TH OF KENTUCKY 

CUMBERLAND FALLS HIGHWAY WATER DISTRICT 
WATERWORKS REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2015 

Interest Rate: 2.625% 

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS: 

$803,000 

That the Cumberland Falls Highway Water District (the "District"), acting by and through 
its Board of Commissioners (the "Commission"), a public body corporate in Whitley County, 
Kentucky, for value received, hereby promises to pay to 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
acting by and through the 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 
771 Corporate Drive, Suite 200 

Lexington, Kentucky 40503-5477 

the registered owner hereof, or to its registered assigns, solely from the fund hereinafter identified, 
the sum of 

EIGHT HUNDRED THREE THOUSAND DOLLARS ($803,000), 

on the first day of January, in years and installments as follows: 

Year Principal Year Principal Year Principal 
2018 $12,000 2031 $17,500 2044 $25,000 
2019 12,500 2032 18,000 2045 25,500 
2020 13,000 2033 18,500 2046 26,000 
2021 13,500 2034 19,000 2047 27,000 
2022 13,500 2035 19,500 2048 27,500 
2023 14,000 2036 20,000 2049 28,500 
2024 14,500 2037 20,500 2050 29,000 
2025 15,000 2038 21,000 2051 30,000 
2026 15,000 2039 21,500 2052 31,000 
2027 15,500 2040 22,000 2053 31,500 
2028 16,000 2041 23,000 2054 32,500 
2029 16,500 2042 23,500 2055 33,500 
2030 17,000 2043 24,000 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF said Cumberland Falls Highway Water District, by its Board of 
Commissioners, has caused this Bond to be executed by its Chairman, its corporate seal to be 
hereunto affixed, and attested by its Secretary, on the date of this Bond, which is October 21, 2015. 

Cumberland Falls Highway Water District 

Attest: 

m\L~J 
Secretary 

(Seal of District) 

PROVISION FOR REGISTRATION 

This Bond shall be registered on the registration book of the District kept for that purpose 
by the Secretary, as Bond Registrar, upon presentation hereof to said Secretary, who shall make 
notation of such registration in the registration blank, and this Bond may thereafter be transferred 
only upon written transfer acknowledged by the registered owner or its attorney, such transfer to be 
made on said book and endorsed hereon. 

Date of 
Re istration 

October 21, 2015 

Name of 
Re · stered Owner 

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
acting by and through the 

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 
771 Corporate Drive, Suite 200 

Lexin ton, Kentuc 40503-5477 

Signature 
of Bond Registrar 




